Boy Scout Leader
Resource Book






&)

\////ﬁz&/@ J
i~ r 3 ‘

PUTTING 1T ALL
TOGETHER

- Goars, Aims, ans The PorPOSE oF SCOOTING

for wove Anovmation ”
VARSITY SCo0T HANDBoox LB7%25 A
SCLOUTHASTER WANDBOOK LB6SO)
LOBSCLOVY LEADER Boow (d3220



MAIN EVENT - PUTTING IT ALL TOGETHER

I. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

II. GOALS
A. Discovery
1. Select participant
2. Shoot "goals"
3. Announce "score"
B. How we'll use
1. To improve your program
2. To benefit boys
3. To build on your strengths
4. To implement priorities
C. Characteristics
Specific
. Measurable
Realistic
Result in a PLAN to achieve
a. Map and Destination illustration.
b. Football game illustration.
5. Have a date associated

W=
- .

III. TOOLS AND PRQJECTS
A. Examine various tools
B. Examine what tools are used on
C. Explore the differences between tools and projects

Iv. PURPOSES
A. Develop Character
B. Develop Citizenship
C. Develop Personal fitness

V. METHODS
A. The den Patrol method
B. Uniform Uniform
C. Ideals Ideals
D. Home & Neighborhood Qutdoor activities
Centered
E. Advancement Advancement
F. Activity Program -—-
G. Adult Male Association
H. Leadership Development
L Personal Growth

VI. GOAL SETTING SESSION - 5 Minutes
VII. GOAL SHARING SESSION

VIIT. CONCLUSION
A. Goals motivate us to action.
B. There is a difference between a goal and its plan.
C. BSA methods are the plans, NOT the goals.
The tools, not the projects.

§



PUTTING IT ALL TOGETHER

USING THE SCOUTING METHODS AS TOOLS

The Scouting METHODS have been successful in reaching the three purposes of
Scouting: developing CHARACTER, CITIZENSHIP, and PERSONAL FITNESS. But,
frequently, a particular Boy Scout Troop, or Cub Scout Pack will plan its
program based on the Tleader's wrong perception about the Scouting program.
Often, the use of the methods will be unbalanced. More often than not, the
unit pursues a method rather than using it.

For example it is understood that the Eagle Progress Award is the highest
rank in the Boy Scout Advancement program. It should also be understood that
not every Scout has the capabilities of attaining that very difficult award.
Possession of the award does not point toward later success, but EARNING it
will. So a Boy Scout Troop program designed to "hatch" Eagle Scouts is not
using the Advancement Method correctly.

Let's examine the Methods, and see how they can be used as effective tools
in YOUR unit's program.

THE DEN - THE PATROL METHOD

The den and the patrol method aren't exactly the same, but they embody the
same principles. They represent nothing more than a STABLE group of boys
of roughly similar ages, interests, and neighborhoods. In reality, they are
not much different than the group of boys playing outside on your street right
now. Those boys are doing something they like, and doing it TOGETHER with
other boys they like. That's the central concept of the den and the patrol.

For strength in your overall program, you should try to allow your Scouts
to join a den or patrol that includes their friends or neighbors. Try to
cluster your dens or patrols around various neighborhood "hubs" to take
advantage of the natural tendency of boys to want to be with their friends.
Then it will be easier for them to select their leadership (Denner or Patrol
Leader) with a fair idea of who will be the best. They will naturally want
to go on outings or participate in activities if their friends are around,
too.

By arbitrarily assigning boys to a den or a patrol on the basis of which one

leeds a boy, or which one has room is to use the method of the den or the
atrol method incorrectly. Boys should be allowed to form more natural groupings
'r the most strength. -

_ SCOUTS

a Boy Scout Troop, the patrol Method takes on the further dimension of
widing the program leadership for the troop. The patrols, through the
trol Tleaders' counciT, plan and conduct their own activities. They need
major part in the planning of the things THEY are going to be doing. The
anning builds character, and the process of carrying out those plans builds
tizenship.



It should be remembered, though, that the patrol Teader council does NOT plan

in a vacuum of guidance. The Scoutmaster has the ultimate responsibility
to be SURE that the program planned is SAFE, APPROPRIATE, and SCOUTING. The
leaders NEED your help in LEARNING how to make those kinds of decisions.

THE UNIFORM

Now, it seems that the uniform would be an obvious item to be dincluded in
your unit operation. But, sadly, the uniform seems to be expendable -
especially in the weaker units. Let's think about the uniform for a little
bit, and see how it can benefit YOU.

“Scouting is a game". Baden-Powell told us that, and we can understand his
meaning. The boys join to have fun, there are certain rules to play by, there
are coaches and referees, and, just 1ike soccer and baseball, there is a
UNIFORM. The uniform helps the players identify their own team, and it helps
the fans know the players from the coaches. The people who wear their uniforms
have a deeper bonding to the group it represents. "See me? I'm a ....".
This relates back to the previous item concerning the den and the patrol method.
The den and the patrol will be stronger if the uniform is an important method

in YOUR unit's program.

Now, how does this relate to character, and all that? Well, it 1is a great
responsibility for a boy to see to it that his uniform is clean and being
worn properly. It helps his character to be accountable to his den or patrol
members for his appearance. It builds his character to be visibly associated
with the greatest youth program in the world. Yes, it even builds his character
to have his friends give him a hard time because he's a Scout. Remember our
goals? Remember our tools? The uniform is a powerful tool for the successful
Cub Scout Pack, or Boy Scout Troop.

THE IDEALS

I've read for a couple of years about the "Mission Statement" of the Boy Scouts
of America. It 1is simply a re-statement of the Purposes we've already
mentioned. One part of it says that "those ideals are represented in the
Scout Oath, and Scout Law". These ideals, then, are critical to the success
of our mission. As a boy holds himself up to the high standard that the
Promises, Mottos, Laws, and Slogans represent, he sees his behavior and
character through the eyes of a boy reaching for a higher maturity. The ideals
are hard to understand - even for many adults - and even harder to follow,
so the boys need illustrations, instructions, and encouragements in order
to be able to begin to live them.

Be sure you maintain a serious view of the ideals. Include them as a part
of your meetings. Find an application (positive, of course) during the meeting.
Bring to life the hard-to-understand parts of each ideal. Spend some time
pondering this exercise: MWhat activity can you think of that will help your
boys understand "Duty to God", or "Duty to Country", or "Help other people"?

1O



If it is hard for you, (it was for me), then think how hard it is for that
new boy in your Pack or Troop. By the way, some of the ideas I had included:
Including a simple prayer or moment of silent reverence at some time during
a meeting. Examining the Timits of his "country" whether it is only his block,
or his community. Planning at Tleast one "service project” for the unit each
month. I'm sure you can think of many more.

The ideals are what we are. To be successful, use them as a central and
important part of your operation.

HOME AND THE QUTDOORS

Each of the Scouting programs takes place in a certain setting - a unique
environment. The successful unit will strive to nurture their Scouts dn the
right place. Just as various plants live and thrive in the proper soils and
water conditions, so does each Scouting program thrive in its best environment.
So what is it?

The Cub Scout program takes place best when it is home and neighborhood
centered. Consider: most 7 year olds have a hard time convincing Mom or
Dad that they can cross the street alone, let alone take long trips to a den
meeting. The older Cub and Webelos Scouts don't have much better Tuck.
Besides, their friends live near their home, and that's where their den members
come from (remember?). AND, one of our purposes is to strengthen understanding
within the family, so the family must be a major center of activity for the
den and pack program. Anyway, we'll have a better chance of getting "parent
involvement", by keeping their boys near-at-home...within the parent's comfort
zone.

The Boy Scout program, on the other hand, is dealing with older boys and young
men who are all trying to break free in one way or another from their parents
influence in their Tlives. They aren't vrebellious, simply seeking more
independence. We take advantage of this desire by moving away from the home
and into a "rugged" environment, the outdoors. We teach a series of skills
to each Scout that only make sense if they go "out" to use them. When was
the Tlast time you ever had to read a map and compass in your backyard? The
skills are taught for a purpose - so they can be used, and this results in
reaching the aims of Scouting.

This means that a Boy Scout Troop needs to plan as much OUTDOOR activities
as they can. They need to emphasize the camping and hiking aspects of fun
things to do. As you Tlook over your planning materials, you'll notice that
the BSA was kind enough to include a suggested outdoor activity nearly every
month. Your success may rely on how many of them you include in YOUR plans.

ADVANCEMENT PLAN

This 1is easily one of the least understood and most abused methods we have.

More packs and troops suffer from improper use of advancement than nearly

any of the other methods. Since it is the most visible, and the one that

boys are the most eager to pursue, we can quickly lose sight of its use as

a TOOL rather than a GOAL. The key phrase to remember is: we are not in
the BADGE business, but we're in the CHARACTER business.

/!



To begin with, this tool is sort-of age or ability related. This means that
the requirements for Wolf are much too easy for a 16 year old, and the
requirements for Eagle are much too hard for a 7 year old. That's obvious.
But what isn't so obvious, is that the requirements for the Bear were written
for a third or fourth grader, not a second grade boy. The second grader should
be working out of the Wolf Book, EVEN if he has completed all the possible
activities. (That this should happen in the first place shows a lack of
understanding of the plan.) So, too, the younger Boy Scout should not be
working on very many merit badges, but should be focusing on the skill awards.
The merit badges he would work on should not include most of the required
merit badges for Eagle. Some of them are hard enough for adults to truly
learn and apply.

Which brings us to the second point, and that is that each and EVERY badge
that a Scout receives MUST be earned. He doesn't have to die for 1it, but
he should feel the stretch as he learns and earns it. The Cub Scout motto
of "Do Your Best" applies to every phase of the advancement plan. A cheaply
earned badge has no lasting value, and if you help a Scout get such a cheap
badge, then you are involved in the fraud that says the badge does- have value.
The other Scouts that really do earn that badge know when another Scout has
not, and then you are seen as being unfair. Baden-Powell didn't believe in
standardized testing for badges, but he did strongly believe that each badge
should be earned.

In the Cub Scout program, the EARNING of each badge 1is approved by the Cub
Scout's parents, not the den leader. The den leader may indicate for the
parents which advancements have been worked on, but should not sign the boy's
book. One of our purposes is to help strengthen the family, and we can't
do that by taking a parent's place in the advancement plan. "But what about
the parents that aren't interested? Doesn't Johnny deserve to get the badges?"
O0f course he does, but our goal is not to earn a badge, but to use the badge
to entice Johnny to learn, or experience this certain thing. You'll need
to deal with Johnny's parents in some other way.

For the Webelos advancement approval, the Webelos den leader is the person
who approves of each phase of the EARNING. He may do this personally, or
he may designate someone else to approve, but the Webelos den Tleader is the
final quality control agent for Webelos advancement. This begins to prepare
the Webelos Scout for his Boy Scout advancement plan. It is CRITICAL that
the Webelos den Tleader insure his boys EARN the badges, not just give them
out. The Arrow of Light should have the same significance to the Scout as
an Eagle Award...they just aren't handed out to everyone who's been a good
guy. Besides, the Webelos badge and the Arrow of Light contain some very
significant Boy Scout knowledge that will be viewed critically by his future
Scoutmaster.

Boy Scout advancement follows the same reason, just uses different agents.
A Scout LEARNS, he is TESTED, he is REVIEWED, and he RECEIVES the badge. The
troop's program should be planned in such a way that the normal advancement
skills are not only taught, but used in such a way that the Scout will be
at a disadvantage without the skills, thus enticing him to really LEARN these
skills. Adults need to be OUT of the advancement loop as much as possaible,
delegating as needed to the boy leadership of the troop. This does NOT apply
to merit badges, however.

{2



Merit badges are a way for Scouts to accomplish several phases of our purposes.

1) He will have the opportunity to explore several potential career areas
- counselors should be recruited with this in mind.

2) The challenge of calling an unfamiliar adult to learn a skill will serve
to build character and prepare a scout for the REAL world, right? Let
him make the call.

3) The pursuit of the merit badges needed for Star, Life and Eagle awards
will test the temper of the steel in the Scout's desire. We shouldn't
make this pursuit overly easy for him. This is an example of the ultimate
character builder - Tletting the Scout make the effort that we so dearly
want to make for him.

FINALLY, you must be VERY, VERY cautious of the urge to change the requirements
for ANY badge. I've talked with numerous Scoutmasters who feel justified
in making certain stipulations about certain levels of advancement. “A Scout
should earn First within 18 months, or he's out". Show that Scout, his parents,
and the National Court of Honr where that requirement is written. “"We make
the Scouts earn citizenship in the community for his Star." Again, show
me where that "requirement" is found. These sentiments may seem noble and
uplifting, but they are NOT requirements. You can accomplish many of the
same objectives in other ways...We'll see this later.

ACTIVITY PROGRAM

The watch-word concerning activities 1is BALANCE. Whatever you choose to do
in the way of activities, be sure that there is variety to appeal to all of
the boys. You will not be able to please all of the boys all of the time,
but, you MUST please each of the boys SOMETIME.

In the Cub Scout program it is convenient to plan a den meeting around a craft,
but you could have just as much fun with the boys with a den meeting planned
around a skit, or songs, or games. You should not feel required to do a craft
each and every week - that's not variety nor is it balance. Feel free to
choose something theme-related from this book, or from the Cub Scout Program
Helps, or from other sources you might find in the library or your own "idea
file". The boys need a varied diet.

The Boy Scout Troop meeting or Campout can fall into the same sameness. Do
you always have to play the same games? Learn the same knots in the same
way? Go to the same camping spot? Eat the same menu? Follow the same format?

If you are not really satisfied with what's going on in your troop, examine
the VARIETY and BALANCE in the monthly program. Beans and weenies can get
old - quick. Serve up a fancy program once in a while.

These Tast few methods are not as pertinent to Cub Scouting, though the use
of the concepts would be a plus for any pack. To understnad these methods,
however, 1is to sense the REAL power in the Boy Scouts of America as an
organization that will have a hand in preserving our future.

i3



ADULT MALE ASSOCIATION

Without getting into a grave discussion over the political and emotional issue
of the sexes, suffice it to say that these boys in Scouting will grow up to
be men, not women. Try as hard as we can, we can never change their "Y"
chromosomes, and the resulting effects, into an "X". It is our responsibility
as leaders to help these young boys mature, in a healthy manner, into healthy
men. We do this in Scouting, not by books and lectures, but by putting them
in the presence of just such a man. The adult men in your troop should reflect
the image of manhood that is compatible with your "community's" definition.
The BSA requires that they be men of good character. You need to think about
that when selecting leaders, or even choosing dads to go on outings. The
role models we select for our Scouts, will affect them positively, negatively,
or will cause them to drop out. Make informed choices.

A second issue is simply one of policy. The BSA has a strict policy of no
women camping with Scouts on campouts. Like all policies, it has legitimate
reasons for existing, and equally valid reasons why one might justify ignoring
it. The policy, however, has been implemented to protect you, the Scouts,
the BSA, and families of the troop. Consider it one of the rules of the game.
Imagine any organized sport with rules, and one of the players or teams using
a different set of rules to play. Can't do it and still be playing the proper
game. Same goes for the policies of the BSA. No women on campouts with Scouts.

LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

One of the most important products we produce is a leader. This leader has
good character, 1is a qualified citizen, and has an attitude of personal
physical, mental and moral fitness. This is the strength of our Scouting
program. Examine the records of leaders in our society, and you'll find a
greater proportion of Scouting background than 1in the general population.
We do good work - IF - we use the Leadership Development method in our troop
programs. How does it work?

It begins with the premise that leadership can be taught. Research has
jdentified eleven skills - teachable skills - used by leaders to be leaders.
I won't list them, they're described in The Official Scoutmaster's Handbook.
Just be aware that they work - you can learn them, AND you can teach them.

The next premise is that in order to learn these skills, Scouts must PRACTICE
them. You can't practice for them, they have to do it on their own. This
is the hardest part. It is so easy to plan and lead the troop activity on
your own...then nothing will go wrong, the boys are guaranteed to have fun,
advance to Eagle, and live happily ever after. That's not the way it works.
We have to allow our junior leaders to fail on their own - fail successfully
- fail with a net 1like a trapeze artist. Content yourself with being the
net. You've had your chance to be 12 or 15, Tet your Scouts have their chance
too.

Lastly, as a Scoutmaster, the #1 job you have... the most important item on
your agenda... the highest priority task you have before you... 1is to TRAIN
your Junior leaders. TRAIN them how to be Tleaders. The skill of effective
teaching (one of those eleven) is the plan you should use. The plan is easy
to use, and it works... if you let it. Besides, didn't you want to be a
Scoutmaster because you wouldn't have to do very much? Sure you did.

1%



PERSONAL GROWTH

This last method is the one that binds up the rest. It is the means by which
we gain the commitment of our Scouts to try to Tive up to the ideals. It
is also the method used so sporadically and with no purpose.

Personal growth is the concept of deliberately moving a Scout in a particular
direction of growth. It should be one with care, and with an eye to improving
the Scout's character. This means that you should have a very good idea of
who this Scout is, and what he needs in the way of growth. Most Scouts are
more selfish than a good Scout should be, so the largest area of personal
growth will be in the area of Service to Others. The daily Good Turn, personal,
patrol, and troop service projects should be emphasized with each Scout.

Other areas of growth, are found in the requirements of each of the Progress
Awards. These are: Activity, Scout Spirit, Scout Skills as represented by
Skill Awards or Merit Badges, Service Projects, and Leadership. The 1last
two are for Star, Life and Eagle. Too many people confuse the meaning of
Showing Scout Spirit. It 1is NOT being an enthusiastic participator in the
troop, it is something MUCH different. Turn to the Tenderfoot Progress Award,
and read the requirement for Showing Scout Spirit - THAT'S what we mean! A
Scout should LIVE the Scout Oath and Law. He mahy need some counseling in
order to do this. This is the way we use Personal Growth. It may take the
form of increasing some Scout Skills, and a particular skill award or merit
badge will be prescribed. Some other actions or projects may be assigned
in order to strengthen certain characteristics. The Scout that has a healthy
respect for his Scoutmaster will try to accomplish these tasks, and he will
grow. HOWEVER, these Personal Growth projects must NEVER be confused with
the Advancement Requirements. A Progress Award is not awarded contingent
on the Scout fulfilling each and every whim of the Scoutmaster's Conference
goals, but based on the requirements in the book.

We can make powerful changes in the value system, and in the behavior pattern
of our Scouts. We don't have to resort to using the Advancement Method or
some other method to do this, just use the Personal Growth Method as it should
be used - with concern and care.

L5



SUMMARY

As we proceed to build the Tives of the Scouts in our care, we have such
a powerful toolbox at our disposal. We should never stop Tlearning how to
use each and every one of the tools in our Scouting Programs. Try harder
to include balanced use of each one of the Methods we've covered in this
article. A carpenter that only used a hammer, or a car mechanic that tried
to use a saw would not hold their job for very long. A Scout Leader has a
more vresponsible reason to become familiar with the Methods (tools) of the
Boy Scouts of America. They work pretty well - if they are used as they were
intended.

Good Building!!!

/b



RECRUITING
&

PARENT INVOLVEMENT

for meve ’v\wm’, |
CulR SCOUT LEADER WANDBOOK. “TROOP OMMITre GCUIDEBOOK.
(B3220 LBLSOS

Z
ScovTHASTER HANDRooK  BONOIG PAREOT ARD FAMuy
LBbSoY PARTICIPATION L3732 (7



GETTING IN TOUCH WITH PARENTS

Parents are the future leaders of your organization, and the resources for
your unit's program. VYou need to know how to get in TOUCH with them, STAY
in touch with them, and help them be EAGER TO HELP YOU. YOU CAN DO IT!! Here

is a system you can use.

RULE #1 - The most important person in the world is the other person.
RULE #2 -The other person agrees with RULE #1.

RULE #3 - Find out what the other person wants, and give it to him.

RULE #4 - Practice, Practice, Practice.

So, how do you start? We'll assume that you don't know this parent. Have
you had trouble making conversation with strangers? You won't any longer!!!
Remember this: You are a very important person. The parents in your unit
Took up to you as an important person, a person with more courage than they
see in themselves. They'll pay attention to you as the leader.

NOW, important person, choose which parents you'd like to start your first
conversation with. Walk right up to them, SMILE, hold out your hand for a
FIRM handshake, and say "Hi, my name is . What 1is yours?" Guess
what! They will smile, too - shake your hand - and tell you THEIR NAME! Say
it back to them - write it down, later, but DON'T forget it. Maybe you don't
like your name, but boy-oh-boy does the other person love his! Be sure to
use it now and then in the conversation to follow.

Well, you've already got them going our way, so just keep going. What do
you say next? I hope you can memorize a word, because the letters of the
word stand for what you need to know for the conversation. The word is: FORM.
Memorize it and use it for the next four or five minutes of conversation.

The first letter - F - stands for FAMILY. They have one, and you can begin
asking questions about it. Things Tike: Where did they get married, how
many children do they have, their home towns, where did they go to school
- things like that. Be interested in the answers, remember them for later,
and keep the conversation rolling. ;

When you've asked enough questions about their family,, you can move on to
the second letter - 0. This stands for OCCUPATION. Ask where they work,
what do they do, how long, etc. Be interested in them and their answers.

Third, is - R - for RECREATION. Ask what they do in their spare time. What
are their hobbies, church, clubs, sports, TV programs - what do they do to
have fun? -Once again, show your genuine interest in them.

Last, is - M - for MESSAGE. You have just spent four or five minutes
concentrating on RULES #1 and #2, and you now know a GREAT DEAL more about
these people than nearly ANYBODY ELSE DOES. VYou have found out the kinds
of things they can do, and Tike to do. You are ready to give them what they
want.

/¥



What's the message?

Only YOU know what the message will be. Based on what you know about them
already, you have probably thought about several unit positions they might
fill well. Are they candidates for your committee, a special event, a resource
person for supplies or services? The list goes on and on, doesn't it! DON'T
RECRUIT them now! Tell them you would like to talk some more with them, later,
about something important that they would Tlike. Plan a time with them when
you can go see them about the program and how they will fit in.

Now, because you have shown an interest in them, and you have shown what a
great conversationalist you are, they will be MUCH more receptive to your
needs than you could EVER hope for before you began. Their skills and interests
should be your guide in finding that job or need for them in your unit. They
will be more inclined to help because you have been friendly, interested 1in

THEM, and you have not pressured them.

Will it work every time? I'm afraid not. BUT if you remember RULE #4, and
try this over and over, with anybody you meet, you will be more successful
than you've ever dreamed possible. Don't be discouraged if your conversation
doesn‘t turn out perfect every time - PRACTICE makes perfect. REMEMBER, the
most important thing is getting in touch with the parents.

John Larson

SOMEBODY ELSE

There‘s a clever young fellow named
SOMEBODY ELSE—

There’s nothing this fellow can't do.

He's busy from morning 'til way late
at night— .

Just substituting for you.

You're asked to do this, or asked to do
that,

And what is your ready reply?

“Get SOMEBODY ELSE, Mister
Chairman—

He'll do it much better than [."

There’s so much to do in our Scouting,

So much, and the workers are few,

And SOMEBODY ELSE is getting
weary and worn—

Just substituting for you.

So, next time you're asked to do some-
thing worthwhile,

Just give them this honest reply,

“If SOMEBODY ELSE can give time
and support,

You can bet your last dime, so can I

—Goldsharo, N.C. Trailblazer

/9



EFFECTIVE RECRUITING

You've got such a Tot of work to do, and nobody to help you. The people you've
asked say no, they're too busy themselves to be of much help. Sound familiar?
There's a way to solve this problem, and it works most of the time -- IF you
practice it!

First, this method works best FACE-TO-FACE. It's entirely too easy to say
no over the telephone. Second, remember that almost nobody wants to do
something to help YOU, but they'll do something to help THEM. However, if
you do this right, helping you will be what they see as helping them. People
nearly always feel that way with a friend. So step #1 is to become a friend
with the other person.

Now becoming a friend doesn't take weeks or years, but just a few minutes
of being interested an finding out something about them. The interest you
show will start that friendship, and it really doesn't take much more than
genuine interest to keep it alive and growing. Find out about their family,
their occupation, their recreation and REMEMBER it. MWrite it down at home,
if you have to, but be certain you remember it the next time you see them.

So, the friendship begins or has been growing, and now you need to recruit.
It may only be five minutes after you met them, but this WILL work! Follow
closely! Before you start, can you clearly explain what you want done? What
IS the job? How much time and effort might it need? Do you know? With what
you know about them and their skills and interest, do THEY have the skills
this job needs? If they don't, DON'T recruit them - not yet, not for this
job. Find a different job for them that they CAN do. If you think they can
do this job, the next step is easy.

Tell them they seem to be a sharp person, one with talent (it had better be
true!). Tell them you appreciate knowing someone with talent. They'll go
"Aw shucks". Tell them there's a place in your program for people with talent,
and that you would 1ike them to consider playing a part in the success of
the unit. THIS IS IMPORTANT!! DON'T 1let them say ANYTHING until you say
"we don't need an answer today, it wouldn't be fair to ask you to make a snap
judgement about this important request". NOW ask them to consider doing
whatever job it is you had in mind.

Now tell them WHAT they'd be doing, who with, how much and how much time to
expect, when they could expect to help and training, where they'd find resource
material, etc. If there's a handbook, or some printed material that will
help them understand, give it to them. IMPORTANT - say "Why don't you look
this over, and give it some serious thought. You'd be a valuable part of
our unit, and we'd 1ike to have your help. Why don't I come and see you on

(a time a couple of days away) and we'll go over any questions
you might have?" Get the time confirmed, and say your good byes - that wasn't
hard!



When you recruit helpers this way, you aren't begging them to help. You're
not pressuring them to help against their will. You're not tricking them
into anything. You're letting them feel good about themselves by helping
you and your program. People recruited this way are more loyal to you and
will work harder and longer for you. They know you're their friend, you
recognize their hidden genius, and you have a genuine need for their talents,
their abilities. BUT, to make it work BEST, you have to practice, practice,
face-to-face. The more you recruit, the better you'll become.

John Larson

' "Homy,vhdynumﬂlsﬁﬁmﬁ!Gﬁmuim.lnmunuloﬂm..."

2/






for Move informatron -

SCOVTMASTER'S HANOBOOK  LBSOS
OB SCO0T LEADER Boox, LB 3220
TNSIGMA oMo GUIDE LB3oby B

" ;S .
e



SPECIAL ORDER FrOR SHINTS AND TROUSERS

WE SUGGEST THAT MEASUREN‘{:NTS BE TAKEN
!'FJOM PHE FNT GA MFNT l"AI Fii YOU WFLL

FOQ USE Qﬁﬂ.\} 5" STQCK S é:.w \‘Mg O WEIGHT ) ibs.
NOT PROVIDE REASOMNADBLE Fi7, D
Q@ HEIGHT fr. in.

FOR SHIRTS
© NECK
SIZE
O SLEEVE
LENGTH
(5 ~5)

© YOKE
(= ¥)

From shoulder seam
10 shoulder seam.

© CHEST
-0

Draw tape snug around
chest cver shouider blades
and up into armpit.

O ARMHOLE

(B ) Double the measurement
A=A
on_ FOR TROUSERS
TR ) I
o : o WAIST j
r 3 : i Draw tapa snug above top
“ ! E of trousers around waist.
5 : O SEAT
W-: — i (§=3) Measure around largest
1";\ B B E S part of seat,
BR FR :
© OUTSEAM
R il RO RS (©-0) From top of waistband to
bottem of trouser leg.
o INSEAM
=1 Fror crotch to bottom
of trouser leg.
@ FRONT RISE
(FR-FR)
“SPECIAL MEASUREMENTS FOR TROUSERS AND Flom sipic soam taitop
SHORTS ARE LIMITED UP TO WAIST SIZE 60", © BACK RISE
(BR-BR)

From crotch seam o top

LIST PARTS WANTED ON OTHER SIDE PR
Y



QUOTES FROM B.P. ON

UNIFORMING

rThe uniform, in every detail, was taken from a sketch
of myself in the kit which I wore in South Africa, 1887 an
1896, and in Kashmir in 18g7-8.

Our badge was taken from the ‘ North Pomt " used o
maps for orientating them with the North; it wa
sanctioned for use for Trained Scouts in the Army in 1898

Our motto, ** Be Prepared,” was the motto of the Sout
Afncan Constabulary, in which I served.

Uniform for Scout Officials

1 HAVE said before now: “ I don’t care a ﬁg whether a Scout|
wears uniform or not so long as his heart is in his-work and
he carries out the Scout Law.” But the fact is that there,
 is hardly a Scout who does not wear uniform if he can
afford to buy it.

The spirit prompts him to it.

Scout Movement—the Scoutmasters and Commissioners
| there is no obligation on them to wear uniform if they
' don’tlikeit. At the same time, they have in their positions
to think of others rather than of themselves.

Personally, I put on uniform, even if I have only a |

# Patrol to inspect, because I am certain that it raises the'
#moral tone of the boys. It hexghtens their estimation of |
§ their uniform when they see it is not beneath a grown man |
to wear it ; it heightens their estimation of themselves
when they find themselves taken seriously by men who also
‘count it of 1mportance to be in the same brotherhood |
| with- them. !

I have been in the habit of wearing shorts instead ©of |
knee-breeches when in Scout uniform, but I do it intention- |
ally, not merely because I am much more comfortable in i
|shorts, but because it puts me more closely on a level with |
the boys and less on the standing of an “ officer,” as we |
understand him in the Army

A Scout official’s line is rather that of an elder brother or
a father to his boys than of an officer or a schoolmaster.
And the more he assimilates his inward ideas and his |
‘outward dress with theirs, the more he is likely to be in |
sympathy with them and they with him,

August, 1913.

s e F

eSS

i . The same rule applies naturally to those who carry on the \ .

s R—r
You will never get good uniformlng in your troop
unless you insist upon good umformmg “And you can't
very well insist upon it unless you are correctly uni-
formed. Again, your example is one of the most im-
portant factors—as in everything else connected with
the troop.

gy

Smartness in uniform and correctness in detail seems a
small matter to fuss about, but has its value in the develop-
ment of self-respect, and means an immense deal to the
reputation of the Movement among outsiders who judge
by what they see.

It is largely a matter of example. Show me a slackly-
dressed Troop and I can * Sherlock " a slackly-dressed
Scoutmaster.. - Think of it, Scoutmasters, when you are

: ﬁttmg on your uniform or putting that final saucy cock to
your ‘hat. You are the model to your boys and your
smartness will reflect itself in them.

. September, 1918.




NANRNA NS

NS

SN R

The original Boy Scout uniform
designed by Baden-Powell ] 908,

.
-
s
4
o
2
1
-

=

MONDSRNRWNE

AL
\\

SPURRED by Baden-Powell’s enthusiasm and personal magnetism, Boy
Scout patrols had started to appear in each of the communities in which
the General had stopped on his country-wide tour to describe his Boy
Scouts scheme. Now, with the publication of Scouting for Boys, patrols
by the thousand sprang up throughout the British Isles. By the time the
sixth and final part of the book had made its appearance at the end of
March, Boy Scouting had swept like a tidal wave across the length and
breadth of the United Kingdom.

Small bands of boys in broad-brimmed hats, with brightly coloured
- scarves round their necks, roamed through the countryside. Mothers
were pressed into cutting knickers and trousers into shorts, while the boys
bravely folded down their long, black stockings to expose their pale knees
to the harsh. English winter—according to Baden-Powell’s drawing of
what the well-dressed Scout should wear. Hardware stores had a run on
broomsticks to be used as Scout staves. In almost every British town and
village, houses and pavements became decorated with long chalk arrows
. to indicate to stragglers that ‘I have gone this way’ or chalk circles with
- a prominent centre to proclaim that ‘I have gone home’. Shrill whistle
signals broke the silence of practically every English park. The chop-chop §
of tomahawk-shaped axes resounded in woods throughout the land, and
the swirling smoke from thousands of camp fires rose over the tree tops.

Lo



U-n-if-o-r-m ! 1! ) - )
And when we say “uniform,” we mean ‘umform—.'
There is only one Boy]Scogt ‘JIcf‘ruform and there is

way of wearing that Uniform,

tm?’r{ 3:;11 sa%vt]it football player with a baseball cap on

his head, if you saw a postman in a street cleaper,s.

“white wings” or a West Point cadet wearing a sailor’s

flaring trousers you would think that he was crazy.
Why not then consider a Scout “batty” if he wears a
green cap, red sweater, a pair of grey knickers while
the rest of his uniform is seemingly correct?

It says in the Handbook for Boys that it is not neces-
sary for a boy to have a uniform in order to carry out
the Boy Scout Program. That is true, o1 course. You
have to act like a Scout, e a Scout, whethet you are in
uniform’ or not. You can’t take off and put on the
spirit of Scouting as you can a Scou‘t_.shirt.-_ Off on a
hike, you can have just as good a time, bu_lld just as
good a camp fire, signal just as effectively if you and
your boys are just wearing everyday old clothes in-
stead of the Scout uniform, but somehow you’!l find
after you've tried both ways that the very wearing of
the Scout Uniform lnits you all more closely together,
makes you more of a unit. Moreover you'll also find
that old clothes aren’t always the best for hiking. The

Scout uniform is tried and tcsfcd, durable, comfortable,
just right, every way.

Either—or

But the .main point is, either wear the uniform or
don’t wear it. Don’t malce any half-way-betweens, It
is a case of “to ‘wear or not to wear that is the ques--
tion,” to misquote Shakespeare. Go in your old clothes
or in your Scout-Uniform. Don’t mix the two.

And when the members of your Patrol wear their
uniforms, insist on having them wear them the only
correct way.” Make them understand that there is only
one (1) way of tying the neckerchief, one’ (1) way of
wearing the Patrol medallion, one (1) color of stock-
ings to wear, and so forth, ‘ .

If you make them conform strictly to this, your pride
in looking at your boys when they line up at Troop
meeting will prove to he contagious. Your Scouts will
bécome proud, too, of belonging to the neatest Patrol in
the Troop and they will do their best to wear the uni-
form right and keep it:in order,

21




Uniforms

HE Scout uniform will help you achieve the objectives of

~9 @ Scouting. The uniform by itself can’t make a good Scout or
/ !@ a good troop, butitsuse willimprove l?oth the Scoutand the
L * The uniform improves a Scout’s image. troop because it is a visible symbol of Scouting.
Uniform

The uniform makes the Boy Scout troop visible as a force for
good and creates a positive youth image in the community.
Scouting is an action program, and wearing the uniform is an
action that shows each Scout’s commitment to the aims of
Scouting. The uniform gives the Scout international identity in a
world brotherhood of youth who believe in the same ideals. The
uniform is practical attire for Scout activities, and provides a way
for Scouts to wear the badges that show what they have
accomplished.

Just as it identifies the wearer as a Scout, the uniform reminds
him that he is a Scout and influences his actions. The Scout
uniform is also a leveler, Whatever a boy’s background, when he
puts on the uniform he shares equally in the program.

g——

The uniform brings strangers together.
— —d

How the Uniform Can Help a Boy j

It is not the purpose of the Scout uniform to hide the differences
between boys or make them feel that they are all the same. Scouts
come from many backgrounds. They have their own religious
beliefs and family traditions. Scouting wants boys to take pride in
these differences.

There is a way in which Scouts are alike. When he sees another =
person in a Scout uniform, he knows he is like that person because
both have committed themselves to the Scout Oath or Promise and
Scout Law. The Scout Oath or Promise and Law bind Scouts

qtogether. The Scout uniform is worn to identify openly with these
beliefs.
" By wearing the uniform Scouts give each other support. Boys
 need that and they can give it to each other. It’s good to discover
that others share our beliefs. It means all Scouts are brothers.

By wearing the uniform Scouts declare their faith and
commitment to important beliefs that bind them to all people. It's a
way of making visible their belief in God, their loyalty to our
country, their commitment to “help other people at all times.”

Young people recognize the importance of taking a stand
regarding their beliefs. They say: “If you believe it, beit.” At some
point in a Scout’s experience he openly declared an acceptance of
the Scout Oath. But the values of the Scout Oath and Law make a
difference in a boy only when he acts upon them.

As Scouts wear the uniform, they are standing for some
principles—in the open, where everyone can see. Scouts are
‘:tanding with each other, not alone, declaring their intent to be

The uniform stands for high ideals.

“other people” oriented. ‘




How the Uniform Can Help the Troop

1. When smartly worn, the uniform can help to build good troop
spirit.

2. By investing in a uniform, a Scout and his parents are really
making a commitment to take Scouting seriously.

3. The uniform makes the troop visible as a force for good in the
community. ¢

4. When properly worn on the correct occasions, it can attract new
members.

5. Scouts in uniform create a strong, positive youth image in the
neighborhood, thus helping to counteract the negative feelings
some adults have about youth.

Red beret

Field cap #

Khaki visored cap S————r - )
with red front panel Your troop may choose its official uniform from the options shown. When the choice
Is made, all Scouts wear the selected uniform. The adult leaders and junior
assistant Scoutmasters will wear the same official uniform, hut it need not be the
same as that chosen for wear by the Scouts in your troop.

frf the troop votes not to wear
' neckerchiefs, shirts may be worn
| with the collars open. Boy Scout
bolo ties may be worn, if desired.

Shoulder epaulets are a part of the

official tan shirts introduged in

1980. Red shoulder iuup. Identify
Boy Scouting.

- i o

R e

o

Broad-brim hat




HOW TO WEAR THE NECKERCHIEF

— A a. Fold long edge over several

flat folds to about 6 inches
from tip of neckerchief. A
tight fold prevents gathering
around the neck and is more

/

N

+ efficient than rolling or
twirling.
W7 -~
\+

Cub Scoul
Shde

Webhelos
Siide

Boy Scout

Slide

b. Place around neck of V-
neck shirt. On shirts with
collars, the unit has a choice
of wearing the neckerchief
over the turned under collar
or under the open collar.

¢. Draw neckerchief slide over
ends and adjust to fit snugly.

d. By vote of troop, ends may
be left hanging loose or may
be tied in a slipknot.

The Bogui!Neckerehief s

THE" SCOU it NEGKERCHIEI"

How to Tié the Neckercluef

First, fold the neckerchief "dingonally to

form a triangle. Turn. the long’ edge:over
about three inches cvg,nly, onee; . l\vncc,,or
even three times, to the size of the bay, to,
insure the nt:ckcrclnc[s Iylng smooll;]y ot
the back unr.l hnngmg corrcctly in Hromt.”
Place around the neck over'the colldt'of the’
shirt, inseft the slide up over the ends to the
pomt whcre lhc kno!‘. would he tied as,a’

hand:-: knot This Jower knot‘ is'a e
:cmmdcr of the"Daily Good Turn: Thié ad-
\'anlaﬂes ‘of the’ slide are that:in hot weather
and on’ the  hike.the ncckerclucf ‘can De.
-loosencd around. the throqt while in a cold
wind or snuwstorm it can be drawn up closer

 and serve as’ a muﬁler.

- Useés for tIle Scout Neckcrclucf

. SCOUTING | TRIANGULAR BA
1. Signal Flag.on Stick (Morse) (1}\ Ty ressure of arm;ﬁ?\ﬁgg b
§ SI?::E Fla;(;tSemn_pborc (2)- ' tm Sling (10
vl e (Troop) . s 3.- Collax Bone.Fracr
4. Rope Ludder (Troos’)) 4. Ankle SpmmE‘]:D:-osler:észl)
5. Bag, Hobo,Style (1 w3 Fractured Hip (7 to 9)
6. ,Lashmg for bundlel_ . Kerchief Stretcher (5}
7. Coulking for boat , [ 7. Padding for splints (several)
v 8. '§ail for boat (4)- . 8. Chest Carry (1)
‘8. Covering for food

‘10, Belt, emergcncy (13

11..Knof tying practice - i
12, :Substitites for closhr.ux (4)
13, Trunks for bathing. (1} -
14, Apron‘for.kitchen police- -
‘13.-Troop'identification,
- 16. Good Turn Remfinder 1)
17. Guard Rope (Tros, )
mergency: sock’ uf
. 'Distress Signal (1
‘,.ID Smoke Signals (1)
_.gl. Flardi (1) e

. 10. Hand Bandages (1 1)

12, Foot ‘Bandages (1) ;
3¢ Support for Sprained wrist ©.

“14. Tourquet_uscs 1)

<15, Trench B f!')

-mduge
* Commpress. A1
17.° Smuke mus{:a

T:ed' hands ca;r;c(el“)’"wu

beginnets; bluye, 22, Guida ¥ g e
hité, Ltfe Saver; J n:;k; r:gga t(on;‘gp )wny ou: Of

GENEI? Sun shelter- for i injured’ (I]

‘tyinga mmuh
g'-!)ZAMosqutm ‘covering for head

i Red kerchief o cm proje:!mg poles
in transit

3 ;'Swe_nt baid for games }ll’nd'dmg for cnrrymg load. on

Téim’ ‘identification {gamies) -
or three. leygcd 'race, -
runningithe: ngaum

80T
h’}ﬁ"afwn

9. Re aifing Harness By
0:-Su mluu for hat or cap’

9. Tump Line e Carry (1) Pﬂpk stnp
*11. Head Bandages (1) :

9]

.around tFie other,‘

-often. ‘accomplished through - the

‘knot has ‘become known as; the :

tnnt

'ﬂ
Th‘e' Neckerchief P ;
E By By {""'\ A .('-5 '
Thc neckerc}uef ig: chnraclgglsltlci of the ‘S Gulty: the, \:qf‘ d

over
.The pxoncers or. cowboy& wore’ bnght colored‘ scalfs
mound their necks for:protection: againstthe, rays'of - the
sun and’ agamst the sandistorm ! e neckerchmf protects
a Scout in. i similar manner, and its colot shows to ‘what
group within-the great brotherhood he belones: Tt m'!y
show hig - Patrol Troop or. his :
D;strxct A Scout carl mak
di g fhis nac r-
chlef In order always'to“
eusﬂy nvmlabl' it

in‘an’ overha id
knot. ‘Sinee” a'{“Good- Turn - ia."

use of the- neckerchief, necessitat.
ing the untying of; this knot, :the

“Good Tu,rn Knot ” It is n cohstant remmderfto the Scout
of his daily deed of; ikindness.



INSIGNIA CONTROL LISTING

CUB SCOUT INSIGNIA Sl S

LRI

posthion

P ——Ia Mg s, i IR S Lt

i 2 e i positon | e ! — pns
Y L [BENT3)
i | : T nrsatitn 2
z . : — .
I Y Higi slﬁevo./

\ posihan 2

; —_—

RIGHT SLEEVE T

Lol slegye
B P | s, s - . bosihon 3

WEBELOS COLORS LEFT SLEEVE

WEBELOS SCOUT Anove nghl pockat
RIGHT SLEEVE

ey "‘\.\

“ %4__ It
s i
—_—

—_—

‘____________- Abovo lelt pocke:

T 3™ Medals worn here

Right packel liap

Left pochng
postan 1

Lelt poc gt
DSy

T T Right pockel,
CUB SCOUTER cenlered
RIGHT SLEEVE

Lol paraer
PSR

Lelt porker _‘.j“_'_ W‘\ Lell pochet

DOsitGn ¥ pos:ho

Sho/iiss RIGHT POCKET .3

con

LEFT POCKET >

Bneh o

g
Loy, gieen

Onty hive medats niay by WOrn Al a bime. pinngg o .
Sihale tow unmediately anave the seam of the -
puckut

AN ot the gl

/ 1900

BOY SCOUT INSIGNIA

SHOUIDFN SFAM

fugnt slenva
[CEULTT

ELanlmend sdwmgdeler baagin adintify
Highit shevvee, A el v

poslion 2

el oy

- Gldet £na
HR CUTR T IR TS
Long Scow 1900

Medallion

= Leli slceve,
posiban 3

Rigni sieeve

osilion J Shaulaer

No. 443, is lor

members ol lroop I . el .o L o ™™o e ]
bands ar thum
caps. AIGHT SLEEVE LEFT SLEEVE
=
Den Chiel—— [
Service [
Award
Above nght g 8%\
ket S
pocke % Above ieh Den chiet v
@ * pocket shoulder
1 “[ cora
——— Medals worn here

Right pockel
liap

” —= Lefl pockel positon
) cantered

Left pocket.
position 4
Right pocket
position, contared Only ive medals may be worn ata bme. pinnec n 3
single row imimedinlely ahove the seam pi tne fed
pockel

RIGHT POCKET LEFT POCKET

s



THE OFFICIAL DRESS UNIFORM

The official dress uniform is available
by special order from B.S.A. National Supply.
It is the official dress uniform for all B.S.A.
volunteer and professional Scouters. Additional
information can be found in the Exploring catolog
available at the Scout Shop.

8. Men’s and Women’s Dress Uniform. For
more information concerning the sizes avail-
able and the current prices, please write for
form 70-134, Dress Uniform Order Form. Write
to: Boy Scouts of America, S304, 1325 Walnut
Hill Lane, Irving, Texas 75038-3096.




OFFICIAL DRESS UNIFORM—Special Retail Order Form

Please complete following information: Date e e o = Ship To (only if different from sold to):
Sold To:
Name ___ Name
Please print or type Please print or type
Address e Address
City State ZIP City State _ ZIP
Daytime Phone ( )
Catalog i Quantity e A .
Kimibsar Size Each Item Name or Description Each Price Total Price
EX945 Male Blue Blazer-—Regular Even Sizes 36-50 82.95
EX9458 Male Blue Blazer—Short Even Sizes 36-46 82.95
EX945L Male Blue Blazer--Long Even Sizes 38-50 82.95
EX922 Men's Gray Trousers—Regular
All Sizes 28-38; Even Sizes 40-46 42.95
EX921 Female Blue Blazer Even Sizes 4-24 98.00
EX923 Female Gray Dress Slacks Even Sizes 4-24 45.00
EX924 Female Gray Dress Skirt Even Sizes 4-24 42.00
EX724A Tie—Men’'s Red/White/Blue 13.50
EX861A Tie—Ladies’ Red/White/Blue 6.50
EX251 Detachable Emblem-—Boy Scouter 19.00
EX350 Detachable Emblem—Cub Scouter 19.00
EX355 Detachable Emblem—Universal 19.00
EX5607 Detachable Emblem—Exploring 19.00
EX5810 Detachable Emblem—Sea Exploring 19.00
Total Merchandise
FOR FAST CREDIT CARD SERVICE All orders must be accompaéniedsby [ check Ty
VISA, MasterCard, American Express [ money order payable to Boy Scouts of pplicabie Sales Tax
CALL BSA Operators TOLL FREE é]mfgcee:'igraghg;gfefsﬂ VISA [ MasterCard See Chart Below
(Orders only) 1-800-323-0732 IMPORTANT: it Gver $400) st Ba Pkg./Del. Chg.
; A : Orders over u
("? cc‘Jntlne_ntaI Us.). accompanied by a certified check or money Bee Cltet Below
lllinois residents call 1-312-681-6100, order. Personal checks over the amount of
ask for Operator “D.” $400 cannot be accepted. Grand Total

For other information call our BSA Midwestern
Distribution Center, 1-312-681-6100

Name of credit card used account number

Expiration date

Signature

Send Orders to:
Boy Scouts of America, PO. Box 175
Bellwood, IL 60104

Date

Return Items +to:
Boy Scouts of America

EDC 2109 Westinghouse Bl mryzand ....... 504

P.0., Box 7143
Charotte, NC 28217

Prices subject to change without notice

No. 70-134

22

Packing/Delivery Charges

LIPS $14:99: tmme o0 5 5 St von e $2.05
From $15t0 $2999 ..... ... . ..... .. .. 2.90
From $30t0 $64.99 .. ... ..... ... .. ... 390
From $65t0 $9999 .. ......... .. .. ... 405
$100orover........... J 535
State Sales Tax List
Arizona .. ...... 5% Mississippi ........ 6%
California. ... .6%:% Missouri .. .. .. o 4v%
Colorado . ... ... 3% Nebraska ....... 31%%
*Connecticut . . .7%%  *New Jersey ... . ... 6%
District of New Mexico . .. .. 3340%
Columbia. .. .. 6% New York ...... ... 7%
Florida i s soe 5% North Carolina . . . .. 3%
lllinois ......... 5% North Dakota . .. ... 4%
lowa .......... 4%  *Pennsylvania ...... 6%
Kansas ........ 3% South Carclina. . . .. 5%
Kentucky . ... ... 5% South Dakota .. .. .. 4%
Louisiana ...... 4% TEXa8 wovmaniviut 5100
ine ......... 5% Vermont ...... ... 4%
Virginia. .. ........ 4%
“Massachusetts . .5% Washington. .. ... 612%
Michigan....... 404 West Virginia ... ... 4%
*Minnesota . .. ... 6% VWOMING wemussn 3%

"Omit tax on exempt clothing

3/86






OFFICIAL DRESS UNIFORM—Special Retail Order Form

Please compiete following information: Date oo, e Ship To (only if different from sold to):
Sold To.
Name __ Fisase print or lype T Name Please print or type
Address = = Address
City State ZIP . City State ZIP =
Daytime Phone ( ) _
Sﬂﬁ:ﬁ Size Qgggﬁty item Name or Description Each Price Total Price
EX945 Male Blue Blazer-—Regular Even Sizes 36-50 82.95
EX9458 Male Blue Blazer—Short Even Sizes 36-46 82.95
EX945L Male Blue Blazer--Long Even Sizes 38-50 82.95
EX922 Men's Gray Trousers—Reguiar
All Sizes 28-38; Even Sizes 40-46 42.95
EX921 Female Blue Blazer Even Sizes 4-24 98.00
EX923 Female Gray Dress Slacks Even Sizes 4-24 45.00
EX924 Female Gray Dress Skirt Even Sizes 4-24 42.00
EX724A Tie—Men's Red/White/Blue 13.50
EX861A Tie—Ladies' Red/White/Blue 6.50
EX251 Detachable Emblem-—Boy Scouter 19.00
EX350 Detachable Emblem—Cub Scouter 19.00
EX355 Detachable Emblem—Universal 19.00
EX5607 Detachable Emblem—Exploring 19.00
EX5810 Detachable Emblem—Sea Exploring 19.00
Total Merchandise
:;:JSIZFI:AST SHERIT CARD'SERWCE Slﬁgnex gr;ggtr Bzyaa%clgr?op%rgsdsggu% g?eck Applicabie Sales Tax
, MasterCard, American Express :
)
(inGantinental 115,). aCcompaniod by & coriod oheok o money | 5@ Chait Below
lllinois residents call 1-312-681-6100, order. Personal checks over the amount of
ask for Operator “D." $400 cannot be accepted. Grand Total

For other information call our BSA Midwestern
Distribution Center, 1-312-681-6100

Name of credit card used account number

Expiration date

Signature

Send Orders to:
Boy Scouts of America, PO. Box 175
Bellwood, IL 60104

Date

Return Items to:
Boy Scouts of America

EDC 2109 Westinghouse Blmryland ....... 5%

P.0. Box 7143
Charotte, NC 28217

Prices subject to change without notice

No. 70-134

22

Packing/Delivery Charges

Upto$1499. . ... .. . . ........... $2.05
Eromi$1540 $2999 icvvw vn s 10 13 10 290
From $30 to $64.99 ..... ... ......... 390
From $65to $9999 . .. ... ... ... ..., 4.05
$100orover........................ 5.35
State Sales Tax List
Arizona ... ... .. 5% Mississippi ........ 6%
California. . . .. 6v2% Missouri......... 4va%
Colorado . . . .. .. 3% Nebraska ....... 312%
*Connecticut .. .7%%  *New Jersey ....... 6%
District of New Mexico ... .. 3%%
Columbia. .. .. 6% New York ......... 7%
Florida......... 5% North Carolina . .. .. 3%
llinois ......... 5% North Dakota ... ... 4%
lowa ...... ....4%  “"Pennsylvania ...... 6%
Kansas ........ 3% South Carolina. . . .. 5%
Kenfucky .. ... .. 5% South Dakota . . . ... 4%
Louisiana ...... 4% Texas ...........5%%
ine ......... 5% Vermont ... .. ...4%
Virginia . . .. .. 4%
*Massachusetts . .5% Washingten. . ... .6%%
Michigan .. ... .. 4% West Virginia ... ... 4%
*Minnesota . ... .. 6% Wyoming . ........ 3%
“Omit tax on exempt clothing
3/86






s'mr move w§ormatson-

ECwat wWe Qmﬁts

4 S‘p\d O Woasy

Q‘m‘ \-wtf a”abOOk-' 11F S
b‘“ a“e" Hav\lbook L% 2l

(N Séout ‘-‘W “’NO "‘1’ ‘)00‘&. Lr 2o

A9



PHILOSOPHY OF SONG LEADING

Songs and cheers are a very effective part of Cub Scouting.
Both are easily used in a gathering to catch the boys' interest.
The opening serves to wake the boys up and burn some of their
energy. The closing serves to slow down the tempo of the meeting
and wind things up. One of the nicest things about songs and cheers
is that they don't require any special or outstanding talents, only
a willing voice. Boys enjoy a song that is sung off key as much
as they enjoy one that is sung in perfect pitch. So just have
fun with them.,

At first, you may find boys are reluctant to sing in a group.
Smile, be confident and start singing. The attitude you project to
singing will be picked up. Gently insist that they try and sing
with you, you'll find that they enjoy singing very much. Remember
not to keep the boys singing the same song over and over, even
if it seems to be going well. Sing it once or twice, then stop,
leaving them wanting more, not glad it's over.

Songs and cheers have many purposes. Fast action songs and
rousing cheers help let off steam. Quiet songs help calm and
restore order. Cheers help develop and maintain den spirit.

Patriotic songs are an important steadying influence on boys.

You may sometimes want a song to match a theme, this book
helps provide some of those theme songs. Try also to compose your
own songs. It is not as hard as it sound. The easiest methods
combines a familiar tune with your words altered to express the
theme. Your words don't have to be rhythmic masterpieces, just
fun for you and the boys. So be courageous; try it.

It is important to display the words of a song not familiar
to your group. Use construction paper, butcher paper, poster
board, song sheets, or whatever is available. Use lettering
that stands out and is large enough to be easily read. When
singing a song that uses repetions, explain that these repetitons
are represented by blank lines. Use "0ld McDonald Had A Farm"
as an example; explain that it is sung in same in all the verses
.with only a few words different in each succeeding verse.

Cheers and yells help to let off steam at den or pack meetins.
U e the imaginations of the boys. Get them to help you invent cheers.
Football cheers can be adapted to den yells. Try to make the
last line of the cheer easy to shout, keep the lines simple and
rhythmic.

When you're leading a song, smile and don't be afraid of

being a little silly, Remember the den leader's secret word:
"KISMIF" KEEP IT SIMPLE, MAKE IT FUN.

A



"SOMG LEADING"

. Songs have always played a great part in scouting. Every training staff
should have sameone capable of leading songs. Here are scme tips:

An sudience expects 8ix things from a good song leader:

1. The name of the song. Announce each song clearly and
neme the tune if it is not an original song.

2. The pitch of key. Sing a few notes to give the pitch.
Be sure the whole group has it--if you're too high or too
low--gtop and start over egain.

3. The tempo-~beating time. Start everyone at the same time--
shout in rhythm with the time, "Let's Go", or clap the
hands or stomp with the foot and start on the next beat.
Use simple motions--an up and down, pump handle motion
will get you started. Don't try to imitate a symphony
conductor.

L. Information about the song. The words--The tune. Be sure
your whole group knows the song. If they don't--then teach
them. Songbooks are valuable in learning songs, but after
the song is learned, have group sing with the boock cloged--
the results will be more satisfactory.

5. Pep--Enthusiasm. Don't insist on volume, at least at the
start., Tell the crowd that it's singing you want, not
noise or volume. If it doesn't go so well, then no one will
know the difference: If it looks promising, say "That
was splendid for practice--now let's sing."

6. Leadership--Control. Plan your selections carefully--
chooge songs that fit the crowd and occasion. Beware of
parodies and songs that might offend. Don't ask what songs
they want--Tell 'Em,

Formal leadership (Time Beating) is not always necessary. Sing in natural
groupings-~scomeone starts the song and everybody just sings. 014 favorite
songs can be used effectively in this type of singing.

The occasion will dictate the procedure and methods to be followed in
conducting group singing. Ordinarily the first song on a program should
be a well known song. The crowd can't go wrong and the success of this
first song will establigh the success of the leader. If the group is
used to singing together, there is little necessity for "Ice Breaking".

Use old, familiar songs with new groups. Men usually prefer good harmony.
Boys like action songs. Substituting motions for words will help the

- leader establigh control. Don't try difficult, Hard-To-Learn tunes except
when conditions are right. KNOW THE SOWGS YOU ARE LEADING. ‘




TEACHING A SONG

Teaching a song is a part of song
leading itself, so all the above rules
apply. Teaching offers some spe-
cial problems, which these hints
may help to make simples:

1. Always warm un the crowd
with well-known sonps helore
trying out a new one.

2. Provide copies of the words.
Use songhbooks, mimeographed
song sheets, or words on a
blackboard or large sheet of

paper.

3. Sing the new song through
alone or with a smell group
who already know it.

4. Let the crowd try a verse at a
time, slowly at first. When
they master it, pick up speed.

5. Musical accompaniment helps
—piano, accordion, guitar,
harmonica are all good be-
cause they can play harmony,
not just single melody notes,

o

When they've sung it a time or
two, stop — don’'t make it 4
music lesson. Go at once intg
a familiar song.

Use every chance you have to lead
and teach songs. Practice on your
den, your pack, your family,
whenever you can. In song lead-
ing, as in most musical accom-
plishments, it takes '‘do” to get
“know-how."”

“Now,” said Mr. Barnum, “we’re going to do something

all Cub Scouts love to do—sing.” He held up his hands as
if he were allowing them to drip dry. "And remembker,

men, use those hands to express the words of tie song .. ."”

35



-RIQOLES

Why {3 it that when you are looki-. for something you always [Ind it In the last

place you look?
tecause you always stop looklng when you [i{nd it,

I am something that is lighter than a feather, and yet harder to hold, What am I?
Your breath,

I am something that can run but can't walk, What am I?

Water,

I am something that has teeth, but can't eat, What am I?

A comb.

What did Tennesaee? _
The same thing that Arkansas,

If your uncle's sister is not your aunt; just what relation is she to you?
She is your mother,

What animal are you when you have a cold.
Horese,

What has a tail but is not an animal?
A kite,

What did one salad say to the other salad?
I'm all mixed up,

Whzt has four legs, eats oats, has a tail, and sees equally well from beth ends?
A blind horse,

What goes up that never comes down?
Your age.

Why are Cub Scouts so chubby?
Becasue Scouting rounds a guy out,

What's the difference between an optimist and a pessimist?
An optimist sees the doughnut, the pessimist sees the hole,

What do ghosts wear on their feet?
Boo-ts,

What is the hest way to find a tiger?
Asleep. '

What do ghosts call mistakes?
Boo boos,

What well-known animal drives an automobile?

R.Oad hop,. -%"I\



DUNUD

&

TOOTSIE TA SPARKLERS

(Tune: Singing in the Rain)
I'm singing in the rain,
Just singing in the rain,

What a glorious feeling I'm happy again,

THUMBS UP — Tootsie Ta, Tootsie Ta, Tootsie Ta Ta (Wiggle a little)

Repeat above chorus

THUMBRS UP, ELBOWS IN Tootsie Ta - etc. as above

Repeat above chorus

THUMBS UP, ELBOWS IN, KNEES TOGETHER Tootsie Ta, etc. as above

Repeat above chorus

THUMBS UP, ELBOWS IN, KNEES TOGETHER, CHEST OUT - Tootsie Ta
etc., as above

Repeat above chorus

THUMBS UP, ELBOWS IN, KNEES TOGETHER, CHEST OUT, BUNS OUT -
Tootsie Ta, etc. as above

Repeat above chorus

THUMBS UP, ELBOWS IN, KNEES TOGETHER, CHEST OUT, BUNS ouT,
EYES CROSSED - Tootsie Ta, etc. as above

Repeat above chorus

THUMBS UP, ELBOWS IN, KNEES TOGETHER, CHEST 0UT, BUNS OUT,
EYES CROSSED, TONGUE OUT - Tootsie ta, etc. as above.

Note: on the Tootsie Ta portion wiggle some - it adds much .
to the interpretation of the song.

RAINDROPS
(Tune: Written below words)

If all of the raindrops were
(bubblegum) and (gumdrops)

Oh, what a world this would be
T'd stand outside with my mouth
open wide going:
"Ah-ah-ah-ah-ah-ah-ah!"

e ]

1 il |

3

4
‘F:.
]

- = gEEmE

B
\

RPN

Al

\

|_1L N B — 1! l":‘tﬂ =
— — @

= L{O



SONGS
LOLLIPOP SP%RKLERS

(Tune: Harrigan)

I, - 0 — double L - I P - 0 - P spells Lollipop
That's the only decent kind of candy, candy

The guy that made it must have been a dandy, dandy,
L - 0O - double L - I P - 0 — P for me

It's a lick on a stick guaranteed to make you sick
That's Lollipop for me.

A PEANUT SAT ON A RAILROAD TRACK
(Tune: Polly Wolly Doodle)

A peanut sat on a railroad track,
His heart was all a-flutter

(pat chest rapidly)

"Round the bend came number ten.
TOOT! TOOT!

(Pull imaginary cord)

Peanut butter!

SOULEHL!

(palms together)

CALOMINE LOTION

(done in a sing-song fashion - Leader says each line - Audience
repeats same line - Hit knees and clap to keep beat.)
FLEAS,

FLEAS, FLIES

FLEAS, FLIES., MOSQUITOS

COCKROACHES

CALOMINE, CALOMINE, CALOMINE LOTION

OH NO MORE CALOMINE LOTION

ITCHY, ITCHY, SCRATCHY, SCRATCHY,
00, I GOT ONE ON MY BACKY

EEEK GOES THE BUG WHEN YOU SPRAY IT WITH
THE BUG SPRAY

SCHHHHHHHHHHHHH (spray the bug motion)

H1



BLESSINGS
(Tune: tdelweis)

"Bless our firende, bless our food,

Crame, oh Lord, be with us:

May cur words gilow with peace

Yay vour love surround us. )

Friendship and love, may it bloom and grow,
Bleem and grow, forever,

Bless our friends, bless our food.

Cowe, oh Lord, and be with us.

CELERY SONG
(Tune: Auld Lang Syne)

Oh celery raw is hard to chew
And celery stewed is quietly chewed.
(Repeat over and over)

THE MEAT'S ALL GONE
(Tune: Hail, hal, the Gang's All Here)

Hail, haii, the meat's all gone
What'll be the next course?
What'll be the next course

Hail, hail, the meat's all gone,
What'll be the next course now?

Hail, hail, the drink's all gone,
What "1l be the next course?
What'll be the next course?

Hail, hail, the drink's all gone,
What'll be the next course now?

(continue with as many food items 2as you want )

HURRAY FOR SCOUTING
(Tune: Hey, Look Me Over)

25 is silver, 50 years are gold

75 is for diamonds of anniversaries, I am told
Jump up and cheer, folks!

Shake handsall around,

I figure after 75, the fun is just begun.

So we'll be up flying higher,

The games and the fun

Ever doing craft stuff, and advancing on and on,
75 years is just brand new for Scouting, more and
Get ready for 75 more!

more

SONGS
&
SPARKLERS



AMBRI DA, AMERICA

America, America,
ilow can 1 tell vou how I feel,
You boave given me many tressures,

1

vou 80,

Love, iove, love, love
e oond truth on Farih is love

¥ ,
Love tLhey neighbor as they brother,

Love, Love, Love,

Peace, peace, peace, peace.
Peace on FHarth good will toward man,
Peace and harmony with nature,
Peace, peace, peace.

GING GANG GOOLIE

Ginglang Goolie Goolie Gotcha

Ging Cang Goo,

Ging Gang Goo '

Ging Gang Goolie Goolie Got

Ging Gang Goo

Ging Gang Goo

Hayla, Hayla Shayla, Hayla Shayla

Hayla, Ho.

Hayla, Hayla Shayla, Hayla Shavyla

Hayi., Ho

Sally Wally, Sally Wally Sally Wally, Sally
Qonpah, oompah, ocompah, compah, coommmm!

Wally




SJONG3
INDIAN TAPSZ %
Rraas - SPARKLERS
(Tune: Taps)
Great Spirit come
With beat of drum
LoUrpey now
With each one
Lreat Spirit please,
Titl each one
of your tribe
Eeach their tepees.
CHAIRS TO MEND
(Tune: see music below)
Chairs to mend, old chairs to mend,
Mackerel, fresh mackerel, .
. 6) Any old 1ags, any old raga” G&
P 3? t} ' | i Y1 i.‘ 1 —
T E T | 'i ‘E
1] + {‘)l .f___&j
— A5~ i " A
07 @)
o)
LY “ \
j!}’ - } ] R ——. {
: i
—0—y A g
oo C 0 T ¢ -
TENDOY WAKRIOR™
(Tune: Zulu Warrior)
Ay cum a zimbah zimbah zia
Ay cum a 2zimbah zimbah zee
Ay cum a zimbah zimbah zia
Ay cum a zimbah =zimbah zee
See him tliere, the Tendoy Warrior,
See him there, the Tendoy Chief. (chief, chief, chief, chant)

uu



TEN IN A BED
(Tune: see music below)

There were ten in a bed and the little one said,
"Roll over, I'm crowded."

So they all rolled over and one fell out

and gave a shout.

Please remember to tie a knot in your

pajamas. Single beds were onlymade for nine.

2i There were nine in a bed....

3-9. Count one less repetition

10. There was one in the bed and the little one siad,
"I'm lonely, Goodnight."




SPOTTED BEDBUGS

(Tune:

Onward Spotted bed bugs
Marching up the sheets,.
Tickle, tickle tickle
On poor Grandma's feet.
Crandma gets excited
Grandpa gets the gun
Boom, boom, boom, boom,
Boom, boom, boom, boom
See those bed bugs run.

Onward spotted bed bugs
Marching off the sheets,
Carrying off the wounded
And poor grandma's feet.

THE LITTLE SKUNK'S HOLE
(Tune: Turkey in the Straw)

1.

Onward Christian Soldiers)

Oh, I stuck my head in a little skunk's hole

And the little skunk said,
"Well, bless my sould!
Take it out! Take it out!
Take it out! Take it out!
Remove it!"

Oh, I didn't take it out,

And the little skunk said,
"If you don't take it out,
You'll wish .you had.

" Take it out! Take it out!

Take it out! Take it out!
Remove it'!

SPOKEN

PHEEW! I removed it!

TONY CHESTNUT
(Tune: One little, two little,

Tony Chestnut Knows I love you
Knows 1 love you
Knows I love you
Tony Chestnut Knows I love you
That's what Tony Chestnut Knows.

Actions to this song: '
Poirt to toes, then chest thenhead, then eye, then fist on

heart,

to continue these actions.

\]\(

then a finger outward indicating you.

three little Indians)

SONGS
&
SPARKLERS

Follow words



TOM THE TOAD
{Tune: Oh Christmas

Oh Tom the Toad
Oh Tom the Toad
Whny are you lying in
Oh Tom the Toad
Oh Tom the Toad
Why are you lying in
You did not see that
and on your head are
Oh Tom the Toad
Oh Tom the Toad
Why are you lying in

ON TO SCOUTING
{Tune: Shell Be Com

He'll become a littl

He'l? become 5 1littl

He will come to all
greetrings,

He'll be quite a handsome Bobcat when he's eight.

He'll beconrie a fears
He'll become a fears

Tree)

the road.

the road.
car ahead
tire treads

the road.
in' Round the Mountain)

e Bobcat when he's eight,
e Bobcat when he's eight,

our meetings, and he'll smile at all our

ome Wolf before he's nine,.
ome Wolf before he's nine.

HE will snarl and bark and growl, and he probably will howl,

He will make us very

He'll become
He'll become
He will have
HE will have

great
great

B VI 1]

milli

joil

He "1l become a Webel
He'll become a Webel
He will learn to giv
He's a strong and ha

We will send him on
We will send him on

proud before he's nine.

big Bear before he's ten,
big Bear before he's ten,

on questions when he's ten.

os when he is ten,
os when he is ten,
e to others and he'll have a
ppy Cub Scout when he's ten.

to Scouting at eleven,
to Scouting at eleven,

fascination for each item in creation,

den of brothers,

We will wish him happy Scouting at a special Cub Scout outing,

This is pretty close

to heaven at eleven,

41



SONGS

&
SPARKLERS

ODE TO AN OLD CUBMASTER
(Tune: Tie me Kangaroo Down, Sport)

Tie me Tiger Cubs Up, Chugk
Tie me Tiger Cubs Up,

Tie me Tiger Cubs Up, Chuck
Oh, tie me Tiger Cubs Up
All together now.

Send the Bobcats down the track,Jack
Send the Bobcats down the track

Send the Bobcats down the track, Jack.
Send the Bobcats down the track

All together now.

Let those wolves be, Lee
Let those wolves be . :
Let those Wolves be, Lee
Let those Wolves be

All together now.

Turn the Bears loose, Bruce
Turn the Bears loose

Turn the Bears loose, Bruce
Turn the Bears loose

All together now.

Let my Webelos go, Bro
Let my Webelos go,
Let my Webelos go, Bro
Let my Webelos go
All together now.

Tan me hide when I'm dead, Fred
Tan me hide when I'm dead

Tan me hide when I'm dead, Fred
And leave it hanging on the shed.

Well, we tanned his hide when he died , Clyde
We tanned his hide when he died

Well, we tanned his hide when he died, Clyde
And that's it hanging on the shed.

Ity



GAMES

for move wmformation

DEN crget HANDBOOK ez
CUB SCLOVT LEADER Boote 63220
PATROL LCADER HANDBOOK cuc o

C“6 SCOUT LEADeR How-To BoOK Lo 2wy
P&DGRAV\ HeLi’S LE 7oL

74



YOU SHOULD ALWAYS TRY TO HAVE "GAMES" AS PART OF A "DEN OR PACK MEETING."
THEY ARE NOT HARD TO COME UP WITH EVEN WHEN USING "THEMES." HERE IS AN EXAMPLE
OF HOW YOU MIGHT CHANGE A GAME.

“SWAT THE FLY"
NEED TWO TEAMS, TWO BLINDFOLDS, AND TWO FLY SWATTERS (UNUSED IF POSSIBLE).
THE BOYS COUNT OFF FOR TWO TEAMS, THEN ONE OF EACH TEAM IS CHOSEN TO BE THE
SWATTER. HE THEN PUTS ON THE BLINDFOLD AND IS TURNED AROUND THREE TIMES.
ON THE WORD GO EACH TEAM WILL SAY LEFT OR RIGHT UNTIL ONE OF THE BOYS SWATS

THE OTHER. THEN THEY "SCORE A POINT" AND TWO MORE BOYS TRY IT UNTIL ALL HAVE
HAD A CHANCE. THE TEAM WITH THE MOST POINTS IS THE WINNER.

NOW TAKE THIS GAME AND TRY IT FOR THANKSGIVING. USE FEATHERS INSTEAD OF FLY
SWATTERS. BOYS GOBBLE ONCE FOR RIGHT TWICE FOR LEFT.

AS YOU CAN SEE IT WILL WORK IN ALMOST ANY TIME OF YEAR.
"I SPY"

ALL BOYS PLAY AT ONCE. ONE BOY IS CHOSEN AND LOOKS FOR SOMETHING FROM ONE

OF THE COLORS OF THE RAINBOW. WHEN HE HAS FOUND IT HE WILL SAY "I SPY SOMETHING

THAT IS BLUE"™ THE REST OF THE BOYS TRY TO GUESS WHAT IT IS. THE WINNER WILL
BE THE NEXT ONE TO LOOK FOR SOMETHING.

50



"UNTRAINED PUPPY"

NEED SPRAY BOTTLES (SUCH AS FROM "SPRAY & WASH.") ALSO PIECE OF PAPER PINED
TO LEFT POCKET. PLAY OUTDOORS!!

ON THE WORD GO EACH BOY TRIES TO "WET ON THE OTHER BOYS PAPER" AFTER A GIVEN
AMOUNT OF TIME THE DRYEST PAPER WINS.

“SWAT THE KNIGHT"
NEED NEWSPAPER, BLINDFOLD, CRACKERS & STRING. TIE THE CRACKER ON THE BOYS
HEAD AND BLINDFOLD THEM. EACH BOY IS TO TRY AND CRUSH THE CRACKER ON THE
OTHER BOYS HEAD. THE LAST ONE WITH THE MOST CRACKER IS THE WINNER.
"BALLOON BUST"
NEED BALLOONS & LUNG POWER. ALL BLOW UP BALLOONS AT SAME TIME AND TIE THEM.

WHEN YOU SAY NOW! THEY ALL SIT ON THEM, OR STOMP ON THEM, OR PUT THEM UNDER
THEIR ARMS, OR SLAP THEM ON THE TABLE WITH THEIR HANDS.



"I LOVE THIS ONE"
"TURKEY RELAY"

NEED FEATHER DUSTERS (ONE FOR EACH TEAM), WAXED PAPER, PAPER PLATES, AND CANDY
CORN. PUT THREE OR FOUR PIECES OF CORN ON WAX PAPER OR PLATE. PLAYERS ARE
DIVIDED INTO TEAMS OF FIVE OR SIX EACH. ON THE WORD GO EACH ONE IN TURN WILL
PUT THE FEATHER DUSTER BEHIND THEIR BACK AND WADDLE UP TO CORN. THEN THEY
MUST BEND OVER AND EAT CORN WITH THEIR MOUTH ONLY. EACH MEMBER WILL DO THIS
UNTIL ONE TEAM WINS. ***PLEASE PUT DOWN FRESH WAX PAPER WITH NEW CORN FOR
EACH PLAYER WHEN THEY COME UP TO PLAY.

IF LARGE GROUP YOU COULD ALSO HAVE THEM BE DIFFERENT ANIMALS AND THE SOUND
THEY MAKE WILL CHANGE. DUCK, CHICKEN, GOOSE, ETC. |

"SPOON RELAY"

NEED TWO SPOONS WITH ABOUT FIFTEEN FEET OF STRING -TIED TO IT. THE FIRST MEMBER
OF THE TEAM WILL START BY UNROLLING THE STRING AND PUTTING THE SPOON DOWN
HIS CLOTHES. THE NEXT BOY THEN TAKES THE SPOON AND PUTS 'IT UP HIS CLOTHES
UNTIL THE LAST BOY IN LINE ROLLS IT UP ON THE SPOON AGAIN. THE FIRST TEAM
FINISHED IS THE WINNER. THEY CAN PULL IT ALL THE WAY OUT BEFORE GIVING IT
TO THE NEXT BOY OR NOT.

54



“FLOOR SAIL BOAT RACE"

TAKE WHEELS FROM PINEWOOD DERBY CARS AND PUT ON FLAT PIECE OF WOQD. EACH
PIECE IS TO BE THE SAME SIZE. DRILL SMALL HOLE IN TOP FOR DOWEL TO FIT IN,
FIT WITH PAPER SAIL GRAB PIECE OF NEWSPAPER AND PLAY.

ALL BOYS WILL HAVE THEIR OWN MADE AND RACE IT AT ONE TIME. AT STARTING LINE
THEY FAN THE SAIL WITH THE NEWSPAPER TO MAKE IT GO, UNTIL THEY REACH THE FINISH
LINE. FIRST ONE ACROSS IS THE WINNER.

“TELEPHONE"

BOYS WILL LINE UP INTO TEAMS OF FIVE OR SIX. YOU WILL NEED TWO ADULTS TO
GIVE THE FIRST BOY IN EACH LINE THE SAME MESSAGE. ON THE WORD GO THE FIRST
BOY ON EACH TEAM WILL RUN UP TO THE FINISH LINE, EAT TWO CRACKERS, THEN RUN
BACK AND TELL THE NEXT BOY WHAT THE MESSAGE IS. ALL BOYS DO THIS UNTIL THE
LAST BOY ON TEAM WILL TELL THE JUDGE, WHO WILL THEN DECIDE IF IT IS THE SAME
MESSAGE THAT THEY STARTED WITH. THEN FIRST BOY WILL GO TO BACK OF LINE AND
START ALL OVER AGAIN WITH NEW MESSAGE.

53



"DOG AND CAT"

NEED ABOUT TEN PIECES OF STRING IN TWO COLORS. SOMEONE WILL HIDE THE STRING
ARQOUND THE AREA. DIVIDE BOYS INTO TWO TEAMS. ONE BOY ON ONE TEAM IS THE
CAT, ONE BOY ON OTHER TEAM IS DOG. WHEN YOU SAY GO EACH TEAM MEMBER WILL
LOOK FOR THE COLOR OF STRING THAT IS THEIRS. UPON FINDING IT THEY WILL BARK
OR MEOW UNTIL THE ANIMAL COMES OVER TO PICK IT UP. THEY CAN NOT POINT TO
IT OR PICK IT UP. THE DOG OR CAT ARE THE ONLY ONES THAT CAN DO THAT. THE
TEAM THAT FINDS ALL TEN OR HAS THE MOST WHEN THE TIME IS OVER IS THE WINNER.

5%



CITIZENSHIP



Fesources:

Flag 1.

2

(VL)

E(

Boy Scout Handbook

"The Stars and the Stripest by Boleslaw and Marie Louise
D'Otrange Mastai. (Alfred A. Knopf Co.) It is lavishly and
colorfully illustrated with photographs of flags through

the years. Costs $25.00, so borrow from your library.

"The Flag Book of the United States" by Dr. Whitney S$mith
(Morrow Pubiisher) $12.95 review of al} F]ags-used in this
country.

Use your ercyclopedic.

!The Untold Story Behind our Country's FiacH by Lawrence

Pheips Tower pubiished by General Pitls, Ine.

400 2nd Ave. So. Dept. 150

Minneapolis, MN 55440 (not sure abcut cost)
Americanism Dept. Veterans of Forcig: Wars. National
Headquartars, 34th & Broadwey, Kansas City, M0. 64113
Y0ur Flag! Annin & Co. Flag Makers Verona, N.J.
Disabled American Veterans.

"Th= Flag of the United States' U. S. Navy Recruiting Service

"Our Flag" office of Armad Forces information & Education,
Dept. of Defense

‘'‘How _to Respect_and Display Our Flaa" U. £ Marine Corps.

Congressmean

“Steying Den & Pack Ceremonies'' book
».se of dmerican Flag ng. 25-31
Z.Arerica pg. 40-42 - pg. 207-2908
3.Promisa ng. 4

. Flag pg. 51,54,60, & 66

5.Cub Scout pg. 65 : COM}QI'/&A 19/
Sancty C"”A‘Wl



bihy That Flaa®

Mlany  theories and  romantic legends have been  put  forward to
€nplain  why  ctars and stripes were chosen for the new nation's
flag and who firet desiarned it.

Some historianz claim the stripes were inspired oYy the
rattlesnare fleo +lown on the "Alfred" of the newly commissioned
continental fleet 1n Jdanuary, 177&, by Lt. John  Faul Jones.,

Gthere claim +the striped banner of the Sons of Liberty was the
source. Mest &aree the stars were taken from the military banner
Gt colornial Rhade Island.

e populer  story of Eetcesy Ross sewing the {irst stars &
stripes from Gecrge Weshington's design iz a picturesgue legen
There is no proof of the story’s truth although there was & Bets

did mal. some chips’ ensigns for the'Fhiladelphia Na

for the horor is Francie Hophkinscon.

= s from MNew Jersey to the Centinentzi
aloks T beclaration of Independences, & membar
cf the Mari Lcmm ttee——and & recogniced designer!

fiis Billz for F2700 rendered to Congress i
"ocurrernoy desions. design for the Great Seal of tho
] for the flag..." etc. There is ~c

rigd of 125 years, the Urnited Statss Flao

24 times. Yet, since its creation Lle

in the blue fi1eld, the propaoriicr of ths
r

: or the size of ?h@
ad newver been afficia

On Jurme 24, 1712, Fresident William H. Taft, signed an soutive
order nrescribing the official proportions o g , the

a
arrancement cf the stars and the relative sizes of the stars  and
the =stripes.

Because +lags vary in overall size the proportions specifisd in
thd crder were given in unite to the scale cf: L i e Low

: (Same evxcepticns are permitted in the colore carried armd
used Ly the military services.)

Mon—-gqovernment tlags are close to this scale but not guite as
accuwralbe. The most peopular sizes used by Scout troops are T hy 9
feet and 4 172 by S 1/2 feet, which scale is claoess to the
official government proportions.

Fatriotic sociwties may properly carry and display facsimiles- c
hictoric American ¥Flagos. -

57



THE FLAG GOES BY

Hats off!
Along the street there comes
A blare of bugles, a ruffle of drums,
A flash of color beneath the sky:
Hats off!
The flag is passing by!

Blue and crimson and white it shines,

Over the steel-tipped, ordered lines.
Hats off!

The colors before us fly;

But more than the flag is passing by:

Sea-fights and land-fights, grim and great,
Fought to make and to save the State;
Weary marches and sinking ships;

Cheers of victory on dying lips;

Days of plenty and years of peace;
March of a strong land’s swift increase;
Equal justice, right and law,

Stately honor and reverend awe;

Sign of a nation, great and strong

To ward her people from foreign wrong;
Pride and glory and honor,—all

Live in the colors to stand or fall.

Hats off!
Along the street there comes
A blare of bugles, a ruffle of drums;
And loyal hearts are beating high:
Hats off!
The flag is passing by!

—Henry Holcomb Bennett

(From The Patriotic Anthology [New York: The Literary Guild of America, 19411, p. 500.)
5y



'
irt
i
o

FERSONNEL : Flag bearers and colcr guards for American Flaa and

Fack flag. (If there 1s an uneven number of color guards,
the American Flag has precedence and should have the most.)

ECUIFMENT : American Flag, Fack flaa, flag stands, recorded mucic

SETTI

SHEAE

NG Flag stands are in place at front of rcom or an. stage.
Fleg bearers and color guards are in position in rear of
room. Speaker may be in rear of roocm or in any convenient
place nearby. Cubmaster usually calls the meeting to order
and introduces the den who will perfarm the ceremony. at
this time, the speaker advencas to the front of the room.
(Make certain he can be heard by everyone. )

ER: ATTENTION! WILL THE AUDIENCE FLEASE RISET GOLOR GUARD ,
FRESENT THE COLCRS! (or "COLOFR GUARD, ADVARNCE") Speaker s
command should be lcud and clear.

Calor quard advances from rear of rocm with flag bearers in
front, followed by guards. The American Flag shoud alwavs
Bbe on the marching right in the procession. As procession
begineg. speaker gives his next command.

HAMD SaALUTE! (He salutes &and audience does likewise.)
Speaker’'s eyes should follow the Gnerican Flag until it is
in position in frent of the rocon. Flag bearers and celor

guards take pesiticn in front of the rocm near flag <=tands.
They stand at attention, facine the audience. The flags are
held vertically.

FLEASE REFEAT THE FLEDGE 0OF ALLEGIANCE WITH ME. (He beqgins
the pledge with audience joining in.)

At this point, the Fack flag is lowered slightly and full
attention is given to the American flag. Take care neéeither
flag touches the floor. Flag bearers and color quards do
not salute or repeat pledge. When pledge is finished., the
cspeaker gives the next command which is the signal for all
salutes Lo be dropped. The pack flag is then raised again
to a vertical position.

TWo! COLOR GUARD, FOST THE COLORS! The American Flag is
placed in its stand: then flag bearer and cclor guard salute
it and step back intao place. The Fack flag is then posted;
ite bearer and quard salute it and step back into nlace.
(The American Flag is alwaves posted aor raised first, and
removed or lowered last.)

COLOR GUARD, DISMISSED! Flag bearers lead procession to
back of room, with speaker following last.

59



Arrangement for Flag Cermany

If flags are Lto be posted an the stage, the American Flag will be

posted un the audience’'s left. Since it should be on the
marching right in the procession, it will be necesszary for the
flagse to cross in front of the rocom. (See diagram below) The

Rmerican Flag crosses in front of the pack flag.

If flags are posted on audience level, the American F1
placed on the audience’'s right. In this case. the +1
cross.

a0 will be
ags do not

When the colors are retired at the end of the meeting, the same
positions aro used as shown below, except in reverse order.

AoVANG iG] RETIRING
p STAGE STAGE
bt 5 as? g .
IXGEd m DPOxX XOdd — DDO KX
s £ l_S..} Ay
: : -

[

! \

- " -
| e S e g ] -——3 -
: 77
oe——— [ Faes L
i (I oM |
! . ‘ ISTAGE Eo
- B B g |y | ¥
I - S iy ¢
| G i 5 a i i >
! 2 :E" 5 2 Bl <
: s vV V
__R8 e 3X
L VANV X X FLAG STAND & O

VANV N

i .5 BLAG GUAR
& vs FLAG BEARE

~ SPEAKER =
( R . / STAGE \
O, & )§0x§\\-/%OQQ 5 PP x
o A % y

s e s o
> /gﬂ

|

T —- > -

%DO~>—%—‘"
PO P o
L AUDIENCE - I

{
FLAGS \
BELW I
STAGE i

4

!

I

1

OG-~ -« == <~

(5]
v
v
@

AUDIENCE
AUDIENCE
AUDIENCE

&

_

HO



- -

S IO o

Ll

BASIC RULES FCR FLAG CERLMOCNLES

The color guard consists of a caller, flag bearers, and honor guards,
The hcnor guards functicn is to protect the flags, It is recommended

that the color gusard be in full uniform.

Flags are carried with the left arm at the left side znd suvoported by
the right arm extended about chest height.

The American flag is never dipped in szlute to any person or thing,
No other flzg is carried higher than the American flag.

The American flag should be carried in the center and in front of
other flags, or it may be carried cn the marching right with all

other flags to its left.

when the American flag is placed on a platform, it goes on the richt
of the speaker and to the left of the zudience. When there is one
floor level, it may be placed to the right of the audience znd to
the left of the spezker,

erican flag is always posted last and is removed first,

The L&

]

In retiring the colors, the flags do not cross one another.

z periods of national mourning, only the American flag is draped

Puring

for mourning. A black ribbon which measures the combined lengths

of the width and height of the flag is tied around the pole at the

top of the flag.

Opening Closing
(commands) ‘ (ccmmands)

Will the audience please rise, 1. Will the audience plezs= rise.
Color guard, advence. 2, Color guard, advance..
Present the colors. (American 3. Retire the colors. (color
flag bearer tazkes one step forward) " guard face the American flas,
Call , hand salute! Bearer gives the quiet
Pledge allegiance, (Caller leads command ,'salute', Color
Fledge, Rest of color guard at guard salute the flag in unison
attention) (American flag is removed first
Post the colors. (as flags are posted then the other flags removed ir
all color guard face the American flag. unison) :
Bearer gives the quiet command, 'Salute’
Color guard salute the American flag in
unison
Color guard dismissed. 4. Color guard dismissed.

b/



It takes two to hoist the Flag properly.
One to c=secure the Flag to the halvyard
and hoist it—-—the other to hold and keep
it from touching the ground.

The two flag-raisers march, in step. to

the flaagpole. Number 1, on the right,
carries the folded Flag. The Flag is
always kept folded when stored. (See

"Lowering the Flag" for folding instruc-
tions.) :

At the flagpeole, Number 1 continuss +o
hold ths folded Flag while MNumber 2 un-
fasterns the halyard from a cleat on the

pole. He guickly tests the halvard to
make sure 1t is running freely, This ig
very importfant——particularly when ice or
rust may have formed on the pulley af
the peak in czld weather or when the
pole may neot have been used for a numnber
cf dave.

The Flaa ie  alwavye hoieted From ime

:
leeward side of the fleagpole

Mumber 1 then lcosens the <olded Fl-aao
and hands the hecist end to Number

union Ffirst, being careful to nold his
end af the lac =0 that ro part of 3
touvches he ground...

Mumber 2 fastens the halvard teo bath grommets on the Flaog'es-

haoist, . then starts hoisting the Flag briskly hand over hand
without a pause. Number 1 keeps it from tocuching the greourd,
until the Flag i1s floating fres. Then he steps back a pace and

calittes — which he holds.

Note: Number 2 allows the up halyard to slide through his hands
as he hauls on the down halyard to raise the flag. I¥ the breecze
is too strong for him to control the flag, Number 1 holds the up
halyard until the Flag i= at the peal.

As soon as the Flag is raised to the peat, Number 2 epcures the
halvard to the pole, steps back & pace and joins Number 1 in the
salute. Then both drop their =salutes in unison and march off.

The Flag should ALWAYS bhe hoisted unfurled, not rolled up.

S



]
Two-Man Flag Letarl:
They
fasten the halvard, and while one
arnce at =alute, the other nauls

2T &
the

Lowering The

img down the colors at sundown
t O land or afloat, has

P S o B G

own time—honcred procedures.
march to the flagstaff, un-

colors down slowly.

Whern the +lag is dawn within reach-
ing distance, thz saluting man
cdreps his salute and gathere the
Llaq in his armse to prevent its
tauching the ground. The halvard’'s
ends are clippea ar tied together
and secured te the flagstaftf cleat.
It i  wvery important to tasten the halvard
after remeoving the flag——or you may +find
ot the pole the next time the +flag is to be
L4 it iz noct & formzal retreat ceremany, the flag detail shaoucs=
"Colors" Jjust betore hauling the flag down. 511 those within 50
vards come to attenticn and salute until the flac is gathersed 1,
Cn  bEeing dstached +rom the halyard the flac must be  Folcoag
Iamadiataly!
Mote: A person Lowering the +lag alone need rot Y o bto ol d
ol ol Gathering it 1nto his arms so thet 1t coes noct touch the
grouvnd 1s sufficient, '
To Fold the Flaag:
i. Ering the striped half up over
the blue field.
2, Then fold it in half again.
A Ering the lower cstriped corner
to the upoper sdge forming a triamcle.
4, Then fold the uwupper point in to form
another triangle, continuing until
the entire lenqgth is folded.
S lihen yvou gt elmost to the end with g 72
’ - . x P i
riothing but BElue field showing, tuck ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@_
N : : ; D, g
remaining it into other folds to secure. ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁa
& The final folded flag recembles a cocked Egﬁp

nat with only white stare on blue field showinag.

&3



bibren

Dur i
hand
over

Im

et

1

ng
aw

VG

Uil o

head Cowvered

Attentian

e
11
gant

i¥
on|
+
T
=

at i el

Coroe

Thiw
Thne=

-y
5 G

in]
g1 2

0 om
it
m

4 IEF s
-
i

STl
iy iy
s

A flag-dr =l is o
bihern “To Z Councea at

Explarse Dlazar {=

Wl F o

in

thie

i e i - 2 + La)
U n@ert,
ToETUMmS, UNCOWEr woul
HEI e o L o s e

954

-

uncowered, either indoors
salute with wour richt

SO0

o

Wom
i

@

=0~

(i)

Ly
£

o m
“+ T

o

0 m

1 3

concsidersed

o
|

3
n

i
i

in

5

i
i

= of Allegiance
ade or review

neral

urmifaorm.

ttention, place your r
g & hat, remove hat. hcl
d, stand at attenticn.

o

harnd

1oht
g dth

Hold



-.-{
=
W
1eg
i
iz
irt
1p
1rr
]
e
ol
..-{
i
T
s
ha|

Ctand at attention, facing the flag. and salule at the first note
of the National Anthem. Hold the saluts unti! the very last note
rs played. '

il

4

It there is no flag or you cannot see it from where vou are, face
the music. I¥f vyou can't see the band, face straight ahead.

“hen  the National Anthem is sung without accompaniment orF is a
recording, stand at attention - wo not =aluat

= e

At pearades and reviews: Start your salute when the approaching
flag is approximately sin paces (12 feet) from vou. Drop the
salute when the flag is about the same distance past you. This

procedure is alsa followed when the Matiornal Eneign 1: carried
Fast vou by the mounted standard bearers, or when it passes vou
on & vehicle, provided the Flag is flown from & stat7t, not lying
, draped, or used only as a decoration.

A Fflag~draped coffin is the excepticn tc thz &ahove rule. It
t=e  the same honor as the flag paszing in & parade. It is
is sounded =t a militarv funeral.

custoTmary to calute when "Taps

of

H
i
j5Y

0
M

e salute is held during the recitation cf +the
llegiance as you face the Flag.

Hhen colers are raicsed: stand at attzntion +acing the flagpole.
Come to & salute as sgon as the Flag i ztarted on its way up and
nold the salute until it is at the pesak. 1+ the Flac is to he
flown at half-mast, hold the salute unti1l it is lowered to half-
mast atter being hoisted to the peak. -

At retreat: Start your csalute at the moment the Flag is on its
way down and hold the salute until the Flag i1s gathered at the

bave of the flaastaff. If the Flag is at half-mast, salute as it
i= first hoisted to the peak; hold vyour salute until it is
gatheroed al the base.

bs



Speaker

Speaker

Speaker

Speaker

Speaker

Speaker

I~

\h

HELLO, REMEMBER ME? .

Some people call me 0ld Glory, others call me the Star
Spangled Banner, but whatever they call me, | am your flag
the flag of the United States of America. Something has
been bothering me, so | thought | might talk it over with
you, because you see it is about you and me.

| remember some time ago people lined up on both sdes

o the street to watch the parade and naturally | was
leading every parade, proudly waving in the breeze. When
your Daddy saw me coming, he immediately removed his hat
and placed it against his left shoulder so that his hat
was directly over his heart....remember? ‘

Anc you, | remember you, standing there straight as a
scidier. You didn't have a hat, but you were giving the
right salute. Remember little sister? HNot to be outdone,
she was saluting the same as you with her right hand over
her heart....remember?

Wist néppeneo? it Still ithe same old flag, oh, | have a
few more stars since your dad was a boy. A lot more blood
has been shed since those parades of long ago.

But now | don't feel so proud 2z | used to. When | come
down your street and you just stand there with your hands
in your pockets and | may get a small glance and then you
look away. Then ! see the children running around and
shouting...they don't seem to know who | am....l saw one
man take his hat off then look around. He didn't see any-
body else with theirs off so he quickly put his back on.,

And what about that night at the baseball game. When they
played the Star Spangled Banner and | waved so proudly

in the breeze. Nobody bothered to sing. They stood up
alright as a sort of mild patriotic gesture then they
talked among themselves about the game, about the weather,
But they didn't sing. | felt hurt.

Is it a sin to be patriotic anymore? Have you forgotten what
| stand for and where |'ve been? Anzio, Guadalcanal,

Korea and Viet Nam. Take a look at the memorial honor rolls
sometime, of those who never came back to keep this Republic
free...One Nation Under God.,.When you salute me, you are
actually saluting them.

| may not be coming down your street for a long time. It
seems that patriotic parades are a thing of the past. But
when | do...won't you do me a favor? Stand up straight,
place your right hand over your heart...and if they play
the Star Spangled Banner, sing out loud and clear...and |
1111 salute you, by waving back...Show me that you remember.

&b



Colors are advanced in normal manner.

OPENING

Audience is standing and facing the flag.

Flag stands alone while voice comes over loud speaker.

VOICE:

ANOTHER
VOICE:

I am your flag. | have a special meaning to the Boy Scouts of America
because your Scout Promise emphasizes duty to God and Country.

i am a symbol of America. | suppose you might say | am America. | am
great corn fields in the Midwest; throbbing industries in great cities;
orchards and vineyards in the great valleys of the West. | am

mountains, rivers and lakes.

i am the citadel of democracy and the vanguard of freedom in the world
where both are being threatened with annihilation.

I am opportunity for any boy to become most anything if he has the

skill and the will to scale the heights. | am most things to every-
one and everything to most people. As a matter of fact, | guess that
is what | am most...people...free people...you! | am your Flag!

Let us all rededicate ourselves to our duty to keep America great and
free. The Pledge of Allegiance.

&7



CITIZEN
I AM AN AMERICAN (opening)
Arrangesent: TFlags are presented in the usunl - Nere
i - r-.~ 3 N i
Tvelve usniformed Cub Scouts have spea king partu. {1L ify the speaking

vrarte as ‘needed.

etatal vl il Country gives ecch one of us the oproriunity to
Vil

13t

advance dCCOFdlDb to his ambition. Educaticn is Tfor =z11. T am an
American.

dnd Scout: My cousiry means love of freedom, falth in AoEOUTECY,
Justlice ani equalitye. I am an American.

Jre Beout: My colntry believes in the moral worth of the CaTmon

mane. I am anp Americzn.

4th Scout: My country "ives us the privilage of expressisg bellefs
or opinions without *eﬂv of persecution. I am an Ameriﬁ el

5th Scout: My country nas the best form of govervnent. It i1z gup
duty to keep 1d that way. 1 2m an American.

6th. Scout: Ny country promises life, liberty znd ths pursuls
nappiness. I am an American.

of
Tth Scout: ¥y country gives us a privilege that we zhall sroiszo

ard defend even with our lives., 4 am an “perican.

Ctn Scout: My country 1s and always shall remaln the land of L
free and the home c¢f tne brave. I an an Amcrlcaw.

9th “cout: Ky country offers a livin ng Americanisnm whnich dermenis ap
Informed, intelligent ari active citizens sipe I 2m an Amcricon.
10th Sﬂo”*- Ky ccuntr ry meets ,uy need or suffering witk 14s zhidips
love and }ovalb;. I am an American.

11th Scout: Xy country is the servant--ncti the master. iz an
Americean.

12th Scout: My country po8sesses a Stetue of Liberty wicis Lok
skhall burn as lcng as we keep it alingt with our devoiics <13 tue
greedon of the individuzl. I am an Americsl.

1st Sceocut: Please join us in the Pledge of Alleglancece.

CITIZBIS Ceremcuny

Arrangenrent: One cub for each letter. The letters are ritteu,

one on each card, with the saying on the reve:se. Esch Cub resds
his saying as he holds the letter in front c¢f him. The lesder

f‘

says the last sentence.
= - is for our Yountry
- = is for being Involved
- ~ 18 for treasuring the great Traditions of our land
= = 1s for the Ideals of frecedom
= = 1s for the Zeal we put into life
- = 1s for the Example we set
- = 1s for the Needs of our nation
is for Sharing of ourselves
(Leader) It tckes more than letters and words to muke good ciltizeng,.
What do you thirik would happen if each and chryafe of us would
Just put one of these tnoughts into practive.

m*zrxjms—wa;—fo

b$



pung ueydey -ir 8yl Jo 3ieddns a3 ySnompy pajurlg

America the Beautiful Cfund

219 Shoreham Building Washington, D.C. 20005 Tel. (202)638-1649

FREE SEEDS

Dear Friends, DPERATION GREEN PLANT 1987

I write to you because as a "friend of America the Beautiful Fund," we want to
share with your local charitable group a gift of FREE SEEDS! This year, we have been
given a supply of 700,000 seed packets of commercial grade ———flowers, herbs and
vegetables, for charitable and civic projects to use.

We are offering between 30 and 5530 packets for the projects of local groups on the
basis of availability and relative need, for volunteer work in: growing food for the
needy, growing plants for charitable plant sales, to beautify neighborhoods, grow
plants for the elderly, the handicapped and the confined, start new educational
programs to show that growing plants can give people and communities new hope as they
help to beautify and nourish America. These are 1984 seeds with germination rates of
854 to 90%.

Since the early days of America, part of the democratic spirit on which this
country was built took form in the sharing of gardening skills and plants. The first
settlers brought with them Europe’s fondness for trees as part of urban civilization
and blended it with the Indian’s practical, organic recycling of nature. Just as the
Native Americans shared their plants with hungry Pilgrims, so we now advocate plants as
a means to promote charitable good works.

Now you can give a gift of seeds to your local school, church, library, senior
citizen center, civic group or hospital for only the cost of postage and handling.
Simply fill out the request form below and include $4.95 for postage and handling for
the first 50 packets; #3.00 per each additional 100 packets (or the equivalent) up to
550. (Limited flower and herb supplies requires a 10% limit on requests for over S0
packets.) Mail it to America the Beautiful Fund, 219 Shoreham Bldg., Washington, D.C.
20005. HURRY AND GET YDUR REQUEST IN THE MAIL TODAY WHILE THE SUPPLY LASTS!

Sincerely,

Paul Bruce Dowling

Executive Director

SINGLE SET OF 50 MIXED PACKETS____

NAME
MULTIPLE SETS IN AMOUNTS LISTED BELOW:
STREET ADDRESS (for UPS Delivery) (150-550) PACKETS
Vegetables__
CITY STATE 1P (Limit 10% of total) Flowers_______
" ") Herbs___
PHONE ¢ ) ToTAL_______

PROJECT NAME
Requests for more than 350 packets Ship./Hnlg AMOUNT ENCLOSED $
must attach a project description.

I/We don’'t have a specific charitable gardening project but here’s a contribution
of $ for shipping seeds to needy projects in America.

& G




SEEDS

AMERICA THE BEAUTIFUL FUND
219 Shoreham Building Washington, D.C. 20005

L
A A A R A Ve

Grow food for the needy

Increase gardening opportunities for the elderly
Teach children the joy of caring for plants

Cheer shut-ins who can w;tch plants grow

Create future jobs in the plant industry
Stimulate citizen involvement inlpark improvement
Develop new income sources from growing plants

Improve neighborhoods with year round gardening

Non Profit Org.
U.S. Postage
PAID

Permit No 8495
Washington, D.C.

7o



Aol
ToDAY

)) BSA
k YEAR. ROUND

MEM BERSHIP



YEAR AROUND MEMBERSHIP INVOLVING BOTH

CUB SCOUTS

“BOY SCOUTS



VOICE OF THE f’EOPI.E

Siskiyou Daily News (Yreka, Calif.) Thurs., June 25,1987

To be a scout
To the editor:

As a member of the Boy Scouts of America, a former
den leader for the Webelos, and now a district commit-
tee member, I have seen a lot of boys both in Scouting
and out of Scouting and have asked them why be in
Scouting and why aren’t you in Scouting?

My parents don’t have the time, what with them
working and all the other things they like to do in their
free time; this was the major reason for those that
aren’t in Scouting as to why they weren't.

As to thé boys that are in Scouting, this is what I
received from them as to what Scouting means to
them:

‘Sensitivity to the feelings and needs of others:

Courtesy to others at ali times, even when I don't feel
like it, 'cause I'm a Scout;

Outstanding helpfulness in the time of need;

Understanding the need of others, even if it means
giving up what I want to do;

Trustfulness when doing something for others or

home alone;

Ingenuity when things just don’t seem to go right and
come together; :

Never saying yes to drugs or other things that are not
right to do; ;

Giving help and encouragement in times of misfor-
tune;

That’s what Scouting means to the boys that are in
Scouts. As one boy put it, “‘these things couldn’t happen
if my parents didn’t let me join.”

These boys and many boys after them will learn
many things in Scouting and any number of these
things can serve to help their parents get over a crisis
or a near-crisis; do the readers remember Chris
(Denz)? A boy who is in Scouts, who was instrumental
in saving his little sister’s life after she had in-
advertendly swallowed a marble and got it lodged in
her throat. Where did Chris learn how to do that life-
saving meth‘f,:g‘?\i{e learned in one of his den meetings
how to save a life! (Still don’t have the time, parents?)

Now you say, he could have learned this anywhere,
anytime, any place. Sure he could have, but he didn’t!
He learned it at a Scout meeting for Webelos and he
learned it from a couple of parents who took an hour
from their time to take a group of boys and show them
what to do in the case of an emergency, as well as to
have them do things that will help prepare them for he
next step, being a Boy Scout and Scouting has been a
very important factor in a lot of people’s life. Did you
know that five of our presidents were Boy Scouts?

But it takes parents, especially dads, uncles,
brothers, granddads, moms, aunts, sisters, grand-
mothers, to make these things happen for the boy and
their families.

As the boy progresses in Scouts the male will play the
most important role in the boy’s den meetings and field
activities, but mom can still help at home and in giving
the boy and his dad (or male counterpart) encourage-
ment, advise and most important of all understanding
in what he is trying to do with his son and other sons.

It sure would be a shame to see some of the Scouting
programs bite the dust because there aren’t enough
parents interested in the youth of our town(s) to give
one hour a week of their time so that some boy can
have-a lifelong-memory of being a part of one of the
greatest organizations in America today. But the boys
need help and his help comes from you parents.

You parents that are involved with the Scouts now
know that you aren’t out there alone, that there are
some other parents with you, but there is always a need
for some good parents to say I want to help” and then
do it.

What about the boy that says I want to join the Scouts
and mom or dad says, “Don’t bother me now, I have
too many things to worry about.”’ Instead of that, what
about listening to your son and then trying to find out
how you can go about joining and/or getting your son in
Scouts. If you do, I can promise that you will get as
much out of Scouting as your son will. I have gotten
more from the boys I had then I have taken to the
meetings.

Interested? Check it out!

s/Sam Frodge
Montague




o e e

Henry Bauer

SHARING IDEAS

Last month in this column I posed the
question, “How many Scouts is ‘enough’ in
Columbia Pacific Council?” No one has
questioned my thesis that “‘more is better,”
and we are going to continue to work hard to
increase our numbers.

Our total “census” of Boy Scouts is the
product of two factors: the number that join
and, just as important, the length of time
they stay in. Simply stated, if the average
length of tenure in Scouting could be doubl-
ed then we would have twice as many boys
in Scouting at any given time.

Conscientious self-examination is re-
quired to determine what keeps boys in
Scouting and why they leave. Some boys
stay active well into high school - even to
their 18th birthday. But often we see a dozen
boys join a troop, only to find that, in less
than a year, half or more have dropped out.

In my opinion, there are two strong fac-
tors that make the difference.

One of those factors is “‘program’. The
more closely you adhere to the Scouting way
of doing things, the more likely you are to
succeed in retaining interest. Plan your
meetings around Scout skills, making sure
that boys are advancing in rank and receiv-
ing recognition. Regular camping fulfills a
need for adventure, the practical applica-
tion of skills, teamwork, self-reliance and
pride of accomplishment, which can best be
done through a full outdoor program.

Troop meeting places often lend
themselves to playing sports, and given a
choice, the boys may even vote on basket-
ball over knot fying. But the fact is that,
while catering to the popular vote may
make “planning” easy, non-Scouting ac-
tivities don’t hold the interest of boys or
their parents, and pretty soon they don’t
come around anymore. The importance of a
sound program will not be argued by many,
if at all.

Just as significant a factor in retention is
the degree to which a Scout is accepted and
made welcome by all of the other boys in the

4"; ‘?‘.

troop, particularly the leaders, Conversely,
a boy is going to quit early if he is horsed
around and pushed around.

If you really want most or all of those
dozen bright new Scouts to still be around a
year two later, here are some important
rules which must be followed:

1. Make sure that your Scouts, particular-
ly the troop leaders, greet every new boy
and tell him that they are glad he has joined
the troop. They should offer to answer ques-
tions or give assistance “at any time” the
newcomer needs seme help.

2. Never allow physical intimidation or
contact as a means of achieving com-
pliance. A boy must not be lined up with his
patrol by steering him around by his
shoulders, or his feet lined up by kicking his
heels, his uniform adjusted by tugging on
his belt or neckerchief, or his posture im-
proved by poking his tummy. In short,
hands off!

3. Misbehavior should never result in
physical discipline - send the boy hoime or to
sit in the corner, but never through the ““belt
line” or similar gauntlet.

4, Never play contact games where there
is a physical mismatch between con-
testants, or a risk of boys getting hurt, par-
ticularly little Scouts getting hurt by big
Scouts. A playground ball delivered to the
head of an 11-year-old by a 16-year-old, at a
range of 3 feet, is not a ““‘game” that the
11-year-old wants to play.

5. Snipes are not indigenous to our area,
and smoke shifters and left handed knot
pullers have never been found. Don’t send
the boys looking for them. There is nothing
in the Handbook that requires an
“initiation’” into Scouting, other than the
prescribed ceremonies. It is repugnant to
the Scout program that older boys have fun
teaching younger boys how to “take it”.

6. Never permit big Scouts to push the lit-
tle Scouts around. If Big Bill wants to shove
Little Larry around, then something needs
to be explained to Bill: “Larry came to this
meeting (or campout, or summer camp) to
have a good time. He paid his dues, bought
his equipment and uniform to have fun in
Scouting - he isn’t here for you to push
around. If Little Larry isn’t having fun in
Scouting, Bill, and it’s your fault that he
isn’t, then you will get a one-way ticket out
of this troop. Do you understand?”

In summary, every troop should be able to
retain a substantial majority of its members
for at least two or three years. Two key fac-
tors are important in acomplishing this.
First, follow the Scout program - it has
worked well for more than 75 years. Second,
concentrate on all of those things that will
make your new boys feel welcome and want
to stay in Scouting - no fears, no doubts, no
intimidation or rejecton.

That is the Scouting way.



WELCOME TO SCOUTING!
NEW MEMBER CHECKLIST

NAME COUNCIL

€uB scouTs: [0 wolf [ Bear - (J Webelas Den Number: Pack Number

BOY SCOUTS: Troop Number: Patrol Name:

Color of Neckerchief:

CUB SCOUT CHECKLIST

Troop Hat Style:
BOY SCOUT CHECKLIST

[J Shirt—Long Sleeve. No. 845

UJ Shirt—Short Sieeve, No. 847

UJ Trousers, No. 829 or 829S (slims)

[ Shorts. No. 840

(0 Cub Scout Belt & Buckle, No. 813

(] Webelos Buckle, No. 831

] Socks, No. 811

1 Socks, Knee-High, No. 859
Neckerchiefs

C wolf, No. 802

{J Bear, No. 843

(0 webelos, No. 890
Neckerchief Slides

OJ Cub Scout, No. 800

[J Webelos, No. 891
Insignia

(0 Council Shoulder Patch

7) Webelos Colors, No. 451
[J United States Flag. No. 103
(O Unit Numeral, No. 104

[ Den Numeral, No. 307

[ Webeios Den Numerals, No. 454

O Immediate Recognition Kit, No. 1804

Hat
(J Cub Scout Mesh Cap, No. 844
[J Cub Scout Visored Cap, No. 806
(J Webelos Mesh Cap. No. 855
[ Webelos Visored Cap, No. 895

Handbooks
[0 Wolf. No. 3234
] Bear, No. 3228
(J webelos, No. 3232

(] Shuirt—Long Sleeve. No. 595

[} Shirn—Short Sleeve, No 598

[J Trousers, No. 588 or 588S (slims)
(] Shorts, No 591

{7 Boy Scout Belt & Buckle, No. 529
il Socks, No. 525

"'} Socks. Knee-High, No. 561
[J Neckerchief: Style
[ Neckerchief Shide. No. 601

Insignia

(] Counc Shoulder Patch
[Z Unit Numeral. No 104
L7 United States Flag, No. 103

[} Patrol Medallion, No. 101 Specity:
[Z] Shoulder Loops. Red, No. 29A

Hat (Troop Style)

{Z1 Mesh Cap, No 596
{.J Camgagn Hat. No 501
] Field Cap. No. 515
[J Red Beret, No. 531

Handbocks

] Fieldbook. No. 3200
(] Ofticial Boy Scout Handbook, No. 3227

A SCOUT'S FIRST OUTING CHECKLIST

[J Yucca Ranger Pack, No. 1331

[J 1%-Qt. Canteen, No. 1199

(] Boy Scout Pocketknite, No. 1996
[] Trailblazer Sleeping Bag. No. 1490
[Z] Official Cook Kit, No. 1200

] Vitt-L Kit, No. 1387

{3 Trad Light. No. 1280



. Here’s how we are Relping meet the challenge

AN IMPORTANT
MESSAGE
TO PARENTS

It .is important that you attend the
Cub Scout Pack’s School Night, the
Boy Scout Troop’s Open House, or
the Explorer Post’s First Nighter with
your child to learn more about the
programs and activities, and to en-
courage his or her participation. In
today's world, Positive influences are
more essentia. than ever. For more
than 75 years, Boy Scouts of America
has helped to prepare young people

3 e S
e A s ot
Sl

db

citizenship training, and personal
fitness. Your interest and coopera-
tion will help your chtld gain the
most from the Scouting experience.
Scouting is 2specially meaningful in
the case of single parents. Activities
are planned so that every member
and every parent can take part.
Some expense is involved in
Scouting membership. Most units re-
quire small weeklv dues, and each
member supplies his or her own

day’s

'

g

equipment. In addition, each spring
all parents are given the opportunity
to make a contribution to the annual
operating budget of the local coun-
cil, if they wish to do so, through the

for a productive adulthood through

emphasis on character building, Friends of Scouting campaign.

handbook, uniform, and personal

Single parenting today has its own
challenge, and Scouting today can
support you in meeting that
challenge.

: As family structures have changed during the
; : A o 75 years since Scouting began. so has the pro-
tod'ay'* An(gwe [HUlteyow gram of the Boy Scouts of America. The BSA has
iU S L S A responded to the needs of families today, reflecting
. our commitment to serve all types of families,
especially you, the single parent.

Seh
-

to Joinz others: i

Cub Scouting has always been family supportive. In
Cub Scouting, we think of the boy's family as the
people he lives with—a single parent, a nuclear, or
extended family—the people who give him a sense
of “home,” those who provide a place where he feels
secure and knows he is loved. Activities are struc-
tured to encourage maximum family involvement.

Boy Scouting provides an active, outdoor life, with
recognition for mastering various skills, and holds
before him ideals of a true Scout and encourages
him to “"help other people at all times.”



MEMBERSHIP INVENTORY AND UNIFORM INSPECTION
(Include with Unit Charter Renewal Kit)

PURFOSE

° Provides a roll call to contact each unit member to deter-
mine quality of program received and to follow up absent
and inactive members.

¢ Provides for a contact with all members to assure proper
uniforming, general appearance, and correct placement
of badges and insignia.

® Invites each member to continue the program for another
year and thus increases tenure of members.

The membership inventory and uniform inspection is a part
of the unit’s charter renewal and will assist the unit in building
strength with a quality program. It should be conducted 30
days prior to the unit's charter review meeting.

NOTE: Explorer posts determine their uniform or their distinc-
tive dress identity and set their guidelines and standards.

Instructions:

1. Appoint membership inventory officer to conduct the
inventory and the uniform inspection and establish inspec-
tion date for your unit.

2. You will receive a computer printout of all youth and adults
registered during the past year. A supply of uniform inspec-
tion forms is secured, one for each youth and adult. (Coun-
cils with their own computer equipment will provide a
computer printout for their units),

3. Set a membership inventory and uniform inspection date
and alert all youth and adults.

4. About 3 to 4 weeks before membership inventory date,
meet with unit leaders to discuss ways to make best use
of this event. Determine how to gather the information on
membership inventory, outdoor program, advancement,
and other information to be reviewed at the charter review
meeting.

5. About 7 to 14 days before the membership inventory, the
unit leaders explain the plan and distribute to each youth

and adult, a uniform inspection form. These forms are
taken home so members can check all details of uniform
and insignia. Inform all members that the inspection forms
are to be brought back to the membership inventory and
inspection meeting. Invite your commissioner to participate
and assist in the uniform inspection. Secure one inspector
for every eight members to be nspected.

6. On Membership-Inventary and Uniform Inspection Night:

a. Brief the committee on information to look for: youth
attendance, outdoor program, and advancement.
Decide on the inspection prodecures.

b. Unit leader assembles unit and introduces inspection
team.

¢. Those individuals who pass ‘he inspection are recog-
nized by the unit inspection ‘eam.

d. Following the unit meeting. the leaders and commitee
meet. The coding information* gathered in the mem-
bership inventory is only placed on the unit copy of
the computer printouts. A review of the unit record book
will supply some information.

e All absent or inactive members are listed and assigned
to various persons to be coniacted to determine if they
are to be reregistered. Unit leaders and committee
agree on a plan to recruit new adults and youth as
required.

7. On charter review night the unit reports on its current
quality unit year and sets commitment goals for the coming
quality unit year.

*Coding for Information Gathered (Place next to each
youth's name)

Pack, Troop, Team: A-active; l-inactive; O-participants outdoor
program (Yes or No); AD-advancement past year (Yes or No):
UIS-uniform inspection score.

For Posts/Ships: A-active; I-ihactive: SA-superactivity participa-
tion (Yes or No); DDI-distinctive dress identity (Yes or No).

7



INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR VOLUNTEERS

Listed below are brief outlines of insurance coverages provided by or through
the local council:

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance

This coverage provides protection for the council, all Scouting officials,
directors, officers, professional and non-professional employees. It also
covers currently registered Scouting units, their chartered orgnaizations,
and volunteer Scouters (whether or not registered) with respect to liability
claims arising out of negligence in the performance of their duties in
Scouting.

Coverage is for $1,000,000 per occurrance for bodily injury and property
damage, plus $15,000,000 'limits of wumbrella liability insurance. Boats
over 40 horsepower or 26 feet in length must be specifically listed by the
council with Risk Management Service at the national office in order to
provide proper coverage. There is no automatic coverage for boats 50 feet
and over.

This insurance does not take the place of any volunteer's personal liability
insurance under a homeowners or automobile liability insurance peolicy, nor
does it provide medical paymenis for injuries. BSA coverage is excess over
other wvalid and collectible insurance carried by volunteers. Chartered
organizations, however, are provided primary coverage as respects liabiliity
arising out of their sponsorship of any Scouting activity (as of January
1, 1984).

Non-owned Aviation Liability Insurance

Coverage extends to the same people as shown under the "General Liability"
section above. This policy covers orientation flights in single and dual
engine aircraft as well as gliders (soaring planes) and helicopters.
Experimental, homebuilt aircraft and hot air balloons are no longer covered.
Also, as of March 1, 1985, all powered aircraft pilot training or pleasure
flying is no longer recognized as an authorized Scouting activity; therefore
coverage will not apply. Pleasure flying is defined by Aviation Exploring.

Limits of coverage under these policies are $45,000,000. This -coverage

is excess over other valid and collectible insurance carried by the aircraft
owner.

Automobile Liability Imsurance

Every person who drives a car in connection with a Scouting activity should
carry (but is not required to carry) a minimum $50,000/$100,000/$25,0000
of automobile liability limits on their vehicle. Buses and vans must carry
$100,000/$300,000/$100,000 automobile Iliability. The council's automobile
liability insurance is excess of the insurance the owner of the auto carries,
but does protect the owner above his limits for the council's $1,000,000
limit of coverage plus the $15,000,000 limits of wumbrella 1liability.

g

K



Automobile Liability Insurance (com't)

A tour permit or a council short-term camping permit is required when units
leave their immediate area. National tour permits are required for all
trips more than 500 miles. These permits should list the drivers' names
and limits of automobile liability insurance carried.

Unit Accident Insurance (Mutual of Omaha)

Unit accident insurance is available through the council. Information is
sent to units each year in their charter renewal kits, and each unit must
apply for the coverage individually. This plan provides coverage for accident
medical expenses and accidental death and dismemberment while participating
in any approved and supervised Scouting activity, including going to and
from meetings. New members are automatically covered under the plan until

the renewal date. Non-Scouts attending scheduled activities (including
group travel to and from such activities) for the purpose of being encouraged
to participate in Scouting are also automatically covered. However, the

plan does not cover parents, siblings or other guests.



- SCOUTING

N



BOY SscouT
MEMBERSHIP/RECRUITING

Do these problems look familiar???

** A high precentage of new Webelos scouts
dropout

** Trouble recruiting non program boys

** Only building troop from Cubs program
** Lack of adult participation

We invite you to join us while we discuss

these and other problems regarding membership
and recruiting.

PRESENTOR: MARTE EGGERS

v



Boy Scout

Membership / Recruiting

Introductory comments

Uideo

New Boys
Contacting schools
Uisitation
Flyers
Using a video/assembly
Troop Housewarmin
Follow up

Invitation to Troop Meeting

webelos Scouts
Housewarmin in January
One day outing
Overnight outing
webelps Leader
Webelos Ceremﬁng
Helpinglthem fitrin
Den Chief
Help in pack meeting
Day Camp
Fees: Boys
Boys Life
Adults
Recharter Fee
Adult Recruiting
Now: Suggestions from audience
Suggestions from staff
Sources: Former scouts

32

Community of interested adults



Adventure



BOY

SCOUTS
for boys in
SIXTH GRADE
and BEYOND
(Ages 11 to 18)

* An outdoor-centered program of
Patrols and Troops

* Uniforms, awards, camping, sum-
mer camp, hlklnF and more

* Boys meet weekly with adult
leadership

' LEADERSHIP IS LEARNED
THROUGH AN
ADVANCEMENT PRCGRAM

THE SCOUT LAW

A SCOUT IS:
Trustworthy
Loyal
Helpful
Friendly
Courteous
Kind
Obedient
Cheerful
Thrifty
Brave
Clean
Reverent

Hs

$

3007- Mo
I'ed,, 7}
oy O

THE SCOUT OATH
OR PROMISE

On my honor

I will do my best

To do my duty to God
and my country and

To obey the Scout Law;

To help other people
at all times;

To keep myself physically
strong, mentally
awake, and
morally straight.

gLOGAN
oa\w

tre 5OV

“pe 4

Good Y m




GENERAL DUTIES

OF

TROOP COMMITTEE:

SCOUTING
COORDINATOR:

ADVANCEMENT :

PH.
EQUIPMENT &
FACILITIES:
PH.

FINANCE &
RECORDS:

WEBELOS
RESOURCE :

Ph.
SCOUTMASTER:

PH.

|

TROOP COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION

Charged by the chartered organization to carry out the Scouting
program consistent with the policies of the partner organization
and the Boy Scouts of America; selects a Scoutmaster, and works
with him in recruiting assistant Scoutmasters; helps them get
training; provides an adequate meeting place; Prepares for annual
charter review and report to chartered orgnaization ; insures

- permanency of the troop.

The Scouting Coordinator provides coordination between the chart-
ercd organization, the troop, and the council. Is also d voting
member of the council and the district. Attends troop committee
meetings and meetings of the chartered organization.

Calls and conducts monthly committee meetings for which he and the
Scoutmaster prepare the agenda. Recruits committeemen and women
and assigns responsibilities to them. Works closely with Scout-
master and Scouting Coordinator. - '

Aids the growth of boys by seeing that regular advancement happens;
provides progress reviews, Courts of Honor on a regular schedule;
helps develop staff of merit badge counselors.

Supervises storage and maintainance of troop equipment and recom-
mends cquipment purchase; maintains inventories; checks on troop
meeting facilities,

Is the troop secretary-treasurer; keeps tinancial records, pays
all approved bills; oversees the troop budget and its adoption;
handles all money earning projects, keeps the minutes of troop
committee meetings and sends out such notices as are necessary.

Serves as troop's chairman for the annual Sustaining Membership
Enrollment; selects and recruits other members of the committee
during January, on the basis of 1 to each § families in the

troop; directs the enrollment of families to become sustaining
members during February. Sustaining Membership is the fund-raising
effort of the Columbia Pacific Council.

Supervises the annual charter renewal pProcedure and charter pre-
sentation; promotes the recruitng of new boys, particularly those
graduating from Webelos Scout dens; makes use of boy-fact survey
and other information gained from schools.

Assists in the planning of a year-round outdoor program to assure
a minimum of 10 days and nights in the out-of-doors for each boy
in the troop, including summer camp experience; keeps parents in-
formed on outdoor activities; is concerned with conservation pro-
Jects and promotes medical examination and safety activities.

A liason officer between the troop and Webelos den(s). Visits

den meetings, knows the Webelos Den leaders, helps plan joint
activities, helps Webelos Scouts feel welcome jin the troop and keep
the Webelos Scouts informed of the troop program and activities.

Plans and conducts weekly troop meetings and monthly campouts
or outdoor activities through the senior patrol leader, patrol
leaders' council and assistant Scoutmaster. Works closely with
committee chairman in planning monthly committee meetings.,

<)
55



BOY SCOUT MEMBERSHIP INVENTORY
AND UNIFORM INSPECTION

(Related to Troop Charter Renewal)

The membership inventory and uniform inspection is a part of
the troop’s charter renewal and will assist the troop in building
strength with a quality program. It should be conducted 30 days
prior to the troop's charter review meeting.

1. Appoint membership inventory officer to conduct the inventory
and the uniform inspection and establish inspection date for
your troop. ,

2. You will receive computer printouts of all youth and adults
registered during the past year. A supply of uniform inspection
forms is available from your local council service center.

3. Set a membership inventory and uniform inspection date and
alert all youth and adults.

4. About 3 to 4 weeks before membership inventory date, meet
with troop leaders to discuss ways to make best use of this
event. Determine how to gather the information on member-
ship inventory, outdoor program, advancement, and other in-
formation to be reviewed at the charter review meeting.

'

5. About 7 to 14 days before the membership inventory, the troop
leaders explain the plan and distribute to each youth and adult

a uniform inspection form. These forms are taken home so
members can check all details of uniform and insignia. Inform

all members that the inspection forms are to be brought back

to the membership inventory and inspection meeting. Invite your
troop commissioner to_pahicipale and assist in the uniform

Sé

inspection. Secure one inspactor for every eight members to
be inspected.

. On Membership Inventory Night

a. Brief the committee on information to look for: youth attend-
ance, outdoor program, and advancement. Decide on the
inspection procedures.

b. Troop leader assembles troop and introduces inspection
team.

c. Those individuals who pass the inspection are recognized
by the inspection team.

d. Following the troop meeting, the leaders and committee
-meet. The coding information® gathered in the member-

ship inventory is placed on the troop copy only of the com-
puter printouts. A review of the troop record book will supp-
ly some information.

e. All absent or inactive members are listed and assigned to
various persons to be contacted to determine if they are to
be reregistered. Troop leaders and committee agree on a
plan to recruit new adults and youth as required.

. On charter review night the troop reports on its current year

and sets goals for the coming year.

*Coding for Information Gathered (place next to each youth's

name): A—active; [—inactive; O—participates outdoor program
(Yes or No); AD—advancement past year (Yes or No); UIS—
uniform inspection score.



CONDUCTING A TROOP

An excellent way to encourage proper uniforming is by regular
uniform inspections. Formal inspections should be held at least
quarterly. It's not a bad idea to have quick, informal inspections
once a month. In these informal inspections, the senior patrol
leader or each patrol leader inspects the Scouts for general
appearance and full uniform. This should take only three to five
minutes.

For formal, quarterly inspections, use Uniform Inspection
Sheets," which are available at your council service center.

Give each Scout a copy of the sheet a week before the inspec-
tion. Ask him to use il to check on his uniform, including proper
placement of badges and insignia. On inspection night, the Scouts
return sheets with names and addresses.

The inspection should be made by the patrol leaders' council.
with the senior patrol leader in charge. Patrol leaders join the SPL
in his inspection of their patrols. Together they should agree on
the score for each Scout, using the guide on the inspection sheet.

g INSPECTION SEET
o

LE - R UNF N‘A |
FFIC':AAL E;DEACEMENT OF INSIG .
0

LEFT SLEEVE wotrh A e
Oree! rtine
an fothe!

™
o

™

oSl
"““4. g ‘

ULETS. o 177
L e ek

sHQULDER €74
PO LA

0¥ e
INIET 34 308
L—J’ Gnnetal Appearanc, 3

i } S dgear -

Bes. -,

UNIFORM INSPECTION

When all patrols have been inspected, the SPL and patrol
leaders' council add up the scores on each inspection sheet.
Finally, the individual scores are added by patrols.

The best uniformed patrol should be commended by the SPL
at the end of the meeting. In some troops, the patrol is given a
small trophy or patrol flag streamer to keep until the next quarterly
inspection. In his comments about the inspection, the SPL may
single out exceptional examples of good uniforming, but he must
refrain from embarrassing poorly uniformed Scouts.

The results of the inspection might be a topic for the next patrol
leaders’ council meeting.

It there is any uncertainty about proper placement of badges
and insignia, see the booklet, insignia Control Guide, No. 3064A.

“Uniforin Inspection Sheets
MNn. 7283—Boy Scout

No. 7284—Male leader
No. 7281—Female leader

FARLITY 50
EaTioN

UNIFORM Doy g

ok
Rk
1

INSIGNIA pOINTS,

AL POINTg

' '«mwm-mm; =

UN'FOR \ :;ﬁmrmummn

v sCouTe vt Gk A Name M lN‘SPECT!ON SCORE D P?“mwm’l ‘ 1

- —~ - s :

wo T84 O 20drecy _ i S Tr;‘::;;umn Ho Ov‘:’:f‘::‘ ) m";
Rerx __ Bt SR o - District el mu)ON :

o L Oy
.- Parrg) s,
Quad _ BRING THis FORA
WITH vou-

57

QVER




CuB scour
MEMBERSHIP/RECRUITING

We would like to discuss ways to recruit
Boys and adult leaders for your Unit.

Join us and learn more about the Expanded
Program for Cub Scouts.

PRESENTOR: MARIE EGGERS

(e
-



Cub Scout

Membership / Recruiting

Introductory comments
Slide Presentation ¢ possibly )
Rs—empain'Exﬁanded Program
Grade emphasis--not age
2 levels of Bear Cubs this year
Video ( possibly ) ;
Tiger Cubs
Expain the program
Tigers are the BACKBONE of a Pack
Using Flip chart, applicatian and packet as aids,
Cdb Scout and Tiger recruiting |
Contacting schools
Uisitation
Flyers
Using a video/assembly
School Night
Follow up
Invitation to Pack Meeting
Fees: Tigers / Cubs
Boys Life
Adults
Recharter Fee
Adult Recruiting
Now: Suggestions from audience
Suggestions from staff
Sources: Tigers
Former scouts

- Community of interested adults



Tiger Cubs BSA

(Pre-Cub Scout Program)

TIGER
CUBS

for boys
in the
FIRST GRADE

* Preparation for Scouting, oriented
to boys and their families

* Part of a Cub Pack

* Leadership rotates among the
adults

* No uniform required

WORKING ON
“BIG IDEAS” TO SEARCH,
DISCOVER, SHARE

Search
Discover

Share

It is heavily family oriented with a boy and an adult family
member working together on virtually all activities.

It has the goal of allowing the boy and the adult to build a
stronger relationship with each other, with the rest of their
family, and with other members of Tiger Cubs.

It is aimed specifically at the boy and his adult family
member, but many if not all of the activities are suitable for
participation by the rest of the family as well.

This is not, strictly speaking, a boy-parent program. Instead,
it is a one-on-one boy-adult program. It is organized so that
each boy is registered as a Tiger Cub but he must participate
with an adult. That adult can be a parent, aunt or uncle,
grandparent, older brother or sister, even a neighbor. What
is important is that the adult needs to be someone who cares
about that boy and is committed to his well-being.

The program is designed to be operated on a casual, relaxed
basis. There are no achievements, and no advancement
requirements. The thrust of this program is fun for a boy and

adult nure and cimnle



CUB
SCOUTS

for boysin
SECOND through
FIFTH GRADES

Cub Scouts are in the Second, Third,
Fourth, and Fifth grades. Cub Scout
Dens meet once aweek with an aduit
leader, learning how to make and do
interesting things. They earn badges
and awards, going up in rank as they
master new skills. And they give
demonstrations at monthly Pack
meetings, in front of parents,
friends, and Cubs from other Dens.
In the summer, Cub Scouts can at-
tend day camp.

G/

" Catch the JWW

* A family-oriented program of Dens
within Packs

* Uniforms, badges, games, songs,
fun :

* Boys meet weekly with adult
leadership

LEARNING ISACHIEVED
THROUGH AN
ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM






2

4 IBRONY & MY BADS

&®

Cub Scout Theme:

DOORWAYS TO
ADVENTURE

Puta
Friend

inthe

Cub Scout -

Picture

s,

il £
@
2
o qu
24
e
22 2

087

58 062
083
044
(1]
66
067

048

od¥

Il one of your friends missing out
on all the Cub Scout fun? He
doesn’t have to miss out any
longer. You can help him join
Cub Scouts, Carefully cut these
two pages out of the magazine. Tape
them together on the back to make
one page. The directions below teil
how you can help put your friend

in the picture. Tell him about all
the fun you have as a Cub Scout.
Invite him to your next pack meet-
ing. Ask him to bring his mom and
dad, too. Maybe he can be in
your den.

Here's how to put vour friend
into the Cub Scout picture
1. Have him connect the dota

30 Draw a line from dot 1 to dot 2,

then dot 2 to dot 3. Keep going
until all the dots are connected.
2. Color the umiform blue and
gold. (Let your friend use your
uniform as a guide.)
3. Cut out the face.
4.  Have him stand in fromt
of a mirror and hold the fin-
o ished picture up to his face.
40 "The colored side should face
the mirror, Now your f{riend
looks through the hole. He'll see

!7 08l what he will look like as a

Cub Scout. But. he has to
join to have the fun.

ow




"ABM S1Y} IN02S QN7 Jayloue 19346 UBD NOA puy
>~ "AIJUNo2 Ino o} 108dsal moys o) Bejj ayy aN{es No A ‘siapes|
“INOA 0} }9adsal moys 03 Aem ayj si siy | "des e Bunieam jou ase
noA jl mo1gaka inok yonao ] ‘des inok o) sdn ay; yono] “sayjeboy
8502 s1abuy om) jsa1} JNoA ploH ‘puey iybu inok yum enjeg

"SNV3W L1 LVHM 1131 '3LNTVS LNODS 8NJ IHL JAID

‘SuBaW opow ayi jeym s jely | "UBD NOA SE |[8M SE Op isnp
"A0Q J8YJ0 WS SE |jam SE Buiys e op jou Aew noA ‘sweb e UM Wweal inoA
djay 0}3s8q 1N0A 0p NOA "8WOoY Je pue 1004DS Ul §s3Q INOA Op NOA "saw} ||
1B 158Q 1n0A Op 0} NOA S)se ojjow IN0dg qng ay L Bulall 10} 9jnJ e S| ojjow v

‘OLLOW 1NOJS N2 3HL 3AID

“1SUM UBL sIY Jo apisul ay) Buoje puey W61 iN0A Jo siabuiy omy 1841
ayjaoe|d IN02g QN JAYIOUE YUMm SpuBY a)BYS NOA uaym

el : 'SNVIW LI LVHM 1131
L "ANVHSANVH LNOJS 8NJ 3HL MOHS

YOO| Ay |, 0B d 8y} Jo me] ay; A8qo 03, pue s|doad Jayjo diay
0},,—8SIWoid ay} o sued om} 10} puels ssabulj pasie) omy ay ]
‘dn ybBiess wie inoA PIOH "puBy 1ybu1 anoA yiim ubis ay; ayepw \

"SNVIW LI LVYHM 1131
‘NOIS LNOJS 8N 3IHL MOHS

: ‘Bunnoag gno ui pieme
1saybiy ays s1 s1y1 "premy ybiT jo MO.IIY B} UIBd 0} yiom A3y ‘uep e 0}
Buojaq Aay | ‘sinoog gng Pl0-1E3A-0| 818 SIN0DDS SOjIgap '$}N02S gny 10}
isnl*piomjaiossesiy sinoog IeA013g |1, 2M LI S18)39) yJep ay) WioJj pawsoy
S131 710U si )1 Inq "BWeU UBIpU| UB 3)i] SPUNOS (smol-ung-33m Aes) sojagem

"Bl19)Y 0} Buiuaisi| jjom ay Jo sies Emzm ayy axy vﬁ

\

- "SNV3IN SOT1383M LVHM T3l o‘n

‘00} ‘djay sBuiy lews '61q a8q 0} aaey jou saop djaH
‘siayjo djaH ‘Addey ag ‘a|1ws 0} sueaw SIYL limpooB anib ji1m noA shes yoeg
U3 jomeT 8y) Jo ped ise| ay | 'smoub jnoog qnd 8yl moy si siy | 'syeld pue
$%0143 pue saiueb usea| |1im no A sBuiy} mau Jybne; aq jjim noA ‘o6 nok uaym
"d|ay 0} UBD NOA JeyM Op |jim NOA a1ay ] 'sbunsaw noog gno inoAk o} 06 s
no A ‘06 yoed ayi diay jj1m nok Aes noA PUY ‘siapes| In02G qnY INoA jo sda)s
BYI U1 HIBM (1M NOA SUBBL SIY | "BI9YY MO||0} [|IM NOA ABS NOA yoed ay} jo
MET B} U] "Japes| Uap oA 10 Jaisewqng IN0A st 0S “JaYie} JNOA 1O Jsyjow
inoA s| ejaxy '1N0OS QnY B 0], 9pes) poob,, suesw (ej-Av)-uy Aes) ejexy

‘HimpooB sanib Jnoos qno ey
'm0ib 1noog gny ay) sdjay yoed sy
"06 xoed ay; sdjay Jnoag qng ay
‘BI9%Y SMO||0} 1n02S QN ay |

'SI ¥OBd 9y} JO MET By |

"SNVIW LI LVHM 7731 HMOVd IHL 30 MV 3HL AVS

IN02S qnD poob e ag 0} sueaw ¥oBd 8y} JO MET By}
A8qo 0 'siayjo 104 sbuiyy op o3 sueaw ajdoad Jayjo djay o) ‘uesuswy ue
aienoA pnoidaq |imnoA |ekojaq |1M NOA sueaw A1unod Aw o} Aing 'op 0
NOA SIUBM 81 JBUM OP ||IM NOA 1BY | 18414 poD Ind j11m NOA ABS NOA 'asiwoly
N02g gnY a8y} u| "esiwoud e s| jey) ‘Buiyl e op |1m noA Aes noA uaym

oBd 8y} JOo meT 8Y) Aeqo o}

pue 'sjdoad Jayjo djay oy

‘Anunos Aw pue pog o} inp Aw op o} 1seq Aw op o
asiwoud * ‘I

'S1 @s1WoId IN02S gnY B8y

"ISINOHd LNOJS END FHL JAID ANV NHVI

TIVHL 1v2804 3HL MOT104 .‘.

ainjeubis sjusied

‘Buissw yoed yxau ayj je abpeq jeagog siy EIEREY
.. '\ 84 "Iapeaj uap siy 0} J9ays siy) aye} wiy aAey usy | ‘mojaq ubis asead
‘1ey} auop sey ay uaym j1ed; jeageg ayi ybnouy) uos Jnok djaH :sjuasey

‘uiol 03 uoneoiydde ue nok anb |im pue sjusied
1noA jasw o) paseald aq ||im 131SBLIGND BU1 'S1 8J8Y) J| "BWOY INOA Jesu yoed
© Sl 218y} 41 995 0) sjuased inok ysy ‘apeib yiinoj passed aaey J0 ()| S4B NOA
$1IN0JS S0j2q8M B 3G UBD NO A "apesb puooss passed BABY PUB / 8JE NOA §I

UBI NOAIQ "P|O S1e3A £2ienoA} ueono, LiN035 Ny B 8q 0) 8%1] NOA pinopa

1NOJS N2 V 38 NVO NOA MOH

FORL YN



GENERAL DUTIES

PACK COMMITTEE:

PACK COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION

oF

SCOUTING COORD:

PH.

CHATPRMAN:

Ph.

——— i

SECRETARY/

TREASURER:

Ph.

————————e

S.M.E. CHAIRMAN:

Ph.

ADVANCEMENT :

Ph.

OUTDOORS/
ACTIVITIES:

Ph.

MEMBERSHIP:

Ph.

DEN

LEADER:

Ph.

CUBMASTER: -

Ph.

TIGER CUB
COORDINATOR:

Ph.

—— e

Charged by the chartered organization to carry out the Cub
Scouting program consistent with the policies of the partner
organization and the Boy Scouts of America; selects a Cubmaster,
assistants and den mothers; helps them get trained; prepares

for annual charter review and report to the chartered organiza-
tion, insures premanency of the pack.

Provides coordination hetween the vhartered organization, the
@ »

"Pack and the Council. [s also voting member of the Council

and the district. Attends pack committee neetings and meetings
of the chartered organization.

Calls and conducts monthly committee meetings for which he and
the Cubmaster prepare the apenda. Recruits zommitteemen and
women and assigns responsibilitios Lo them. Yorks closely with
Cubmaster and Scouting Coordinator.

Keeps notes of committee assiguments; sends notices; maintains
records; registers all new boys and adults promptly. Operates
pack on budget plan; receives all funds, pays bills on recommen-
dation of Cubmaster and approval of comnittee; maintains "Pack
Records/Finance Book". Supervises pack fund raising activities
such as Scoutcapade tickets, or..

Serves as pack's chairman for the annual Sustaining Membership
Enrollment; selects and recruits other members of the committee
during January, on the basis oi | to each 5 tamilies in the
pack; directs the enrollment of families fo berome sustaining
members during February. Sustalning Membe vship is the fund-
raising effort of the Columbia Pacific Council.

Responsible for pack advancement, including securing awards and
assisting in the presentaticn of these awirds at well planned
ceremonies at pack meetings; discusses with parents their obli-
gation of working with their boys in advancemsnt; receives
advancement lists from Den Leaders during pack leader's meetings.

Works closely with Den Leaders, Webelos Leaders and Cubmaster

to develop a list of places for field trips and other pack acti-
vities, such as: Blue & Gold Dinners, summer picniecs, pinewood
derbys, Goodwill/Goodturn, Scoutcapades, Day Camp.

Supervises the annual chart>r renewal procedure and charter presen-
tation; promotes and conducts recruiting of new boys, School Night .
and 2nd & 5th Grade Graduation plans; work with Cubmaster and
committee to ensure eligible boys and parents are moved into
Webelos dens at the appropriate time.

Plans and conducts weekly Den meetings of 4-8 boys in neighbor-
hood. Provides fun and exciting activities, coordinates parti-
cipation in monthly pack meetings.

Plans and conducts monthly pack meetings; works with pack com-
mittee chairman in planning monthly leader's meeting. Coordin-
ates activities in the dens. '

Organizes Tiger Cub groups from zvailable 7-year-olds or 2nd

grade boys; helps and encourages Tiger Cub .group function and keeos
parents informed. Helps with activities and encourages partici-~
pation at Blue & Gold dinners and other pack activities; insures
graduation in the spring of Tiwer Cub group irto the pack.

=1l









HANDY WASHER

A 2-quart bleach bottle hanging from a tree is ideal

for washing hands and face in camp. Here’s how you
use it:

1. Punch a small hole with a nail 1 inch from the
bottom,

2. Fill with water and replace the cap. Water will not
run ouf when the cap is screwed on.

3. Remove cap to allow water to run out for washing
hands and face.

4 For a quick rinse, leave cap on and squeeze the side,

You may hang a bar of soap from the handle.

N 7

g
IR
e

s
. A
Gy

.}"l k))/ !
N

)

One missing ingredient of most
overnighl camp menus is a good
dessert. We've found Ihat, using
parts of the Trail Chef kit as an oven.
we can produce excellent calkes,
pies, caramel nut rolls, and similar
tasly pastries, We've found that
coals under the pan are all that are
needed, but the pan conlaining the
ingredients lo be cooked should be
placed on an inverted individual
mess kit keltle to keep from burning
on the bottem, '

David S. Armstrong

Troop §

Gloversville, New York



" Charcoal firestarter. Cut out top of a
S5-quart or 2-gallon oilcan. Cut 2x3-
inch hole in front panel near the
bottom. Punch holes the rest of way
around with beverage can opener.
Make grid of coat-hanger wire at a
level above the 2x3-inch hole. Make
grid tight enough that charcoal won’t
pass through. A single sheet of crum-
pled newspaper placed in bottom and
lighted will ignite charcoal placed on
grill. Glowing charcoal can be poured
from container when and where
needed. This eliminates need for
flainmable charcoal starters.

John J. Rockwood, Scoutmaster,
Troop 388, AMVETS Post No. 176,
West Richfield, Ohio

Star Slides

Save those blacked-out, unexposed 35 mm. color slides that
you get back from the processor. Prick small holes in the black
slide with a needle or pin. Use a pattern so the holes make the
shape of a constellation. When these are projected on a screen,
the small holes show up like individual stars. and boys can
readily learn to identify the shapes of the common star con-
stellations.

Robert Josephsen
Scoutmaster, Troop 70
Esrell Manor, New Jersey




Pegboard Enotboard
Ordinary peghboard
available at your lumber
yard is excellent for mak-
ing knotboards. After the
knots are tied, they can
be easily fastened (o the
beoard with round plant
ties or pipe cleaners siuck
through holes in the
board and twisted in back.

A Dry Pocket
Here’s a gadget that
will keep patrol and troop
rosters, schedules, and
programs dry when catnp-
ing in wel wealher. Papers
are in sight at all times,
yet are protected from the
elements.
Wally Spears, Scout=-

master, Troop 581
Washington, D, C.

WINDSHIELD
GOOD TURN.

Build good rela-
tionships with
Scouters assem-
bled at meelings,
Small fliers can be
printed or mimeo-
graphed to put un-
der the windshield
wiper.




1. Cut both ends
{from appropriate-
size can.

2. Flatten can and fit
over bit of ax.
Make surn con lits
up against the
handle.

3. Fold side of can
over bit of ax mak-
ing sure that ade-
quate clearance is
allowed on eithe
side of bit. .

4. Bend end of com
over bit., Allow Yy
clearance from bit.

5. Punch two holes

and atlach a thong
for sgecurin ax
guard to handle.

TIN-CAN AX GUARD

Here is an easy-to-make ax guard suggested
by Al Drouillard. Your Scouts will enjoy mak-

ing them,

FAROLITO CAMPFIRE

For special occ_asions and ceremonies, you can
make a farolito campfire. Select a paper bag
6 to 8 inches in diameter. Fill the bottom with
3 inches of sand. Insert a candle in the sand.
Staple strips of cardboard around the top to

keep sack rigid.



DETRILS OF TOP BOARD—

o O !

SHEAR
LASHING

o O

LACE BOARDS
TO STAVES WITH
CLOTHESLINE.

PORTRABLE CAMP TABLE Scouts of Troop 59, Elk Grove,

Calif., pass First Class lashing requirements by assembling patrol SQUARE . M

tables. Idea was submitled by Scoutmaster Adam Feickerl, LASHING
The following equipment is needed:

6 ofticial 6-foot staves or poles

6 J-ply top boards, each 1/ x 10 x 26

2 pegs lor guy rope

1 guy rope. 25 feet long

2 12-foot lengths of regular clothesline for tabletops

2 8Y,-foot ropes for shear lashing 4

4 7-loot ropes for square lashing TAUT-LINE

HITCH

ROCKS

CAMP REFRIGERATOR

Place this camp refrigerater in a shady spot
and wrap food in foil for extra coolness. The

PLASTIC
plastic sheet will hold the moisture.

SHEET



PROGRAM IDEAS FOR

SERVICE PROJECTS, hikes, campfires, community vis-
its, or similar activities may be planned instead of
regular troop meetings. But have either an activily or
a meeting every week during July and August.

Keep the summer program flexible while preserving

the basic parts of a good nmeeting at each activily, A
preopening activity will bring Scouts out on lime and
give them something to do until the program starts.
There should be an orderly opening and closing
(usually ceremonies) and a Scoutmastgr‘s minute,

IDEA 1-—MYSTERY CAMPFIRE

Put a layer of dirt or sand in the bottom of a metal
wheelbarrow. Then move it to a city park, vacant lot,
backyard, or parking lot and build a fire in it.

The Scouts gather round the campfire and the leader
tells several good mystery stories. Troop Activities,
No. 3501, provides some pointers on storytelling and
the Boys’ Life Book of Mystery Stories (available at
$2 from Boys’ Life, New Brunswick, N. J. 08903) has
some excellent stories.

The program should include patrol stunts, good
songs, a Scoutmaster's minute, and a closing ceremony.

Grilled hot dogs and a fruit beverage will complete

the evening. Then, put out the fire and take the wheel-
barrow back to where you got it.

IDEA 2 —IMU

Here's a camp feast that everyone likes—and it's
fun to prepare.

Dig a hole in the ground 18 inches square and 18
inches deep. Put-a platform of split wood across the
bottom of the hole. Then crisscross layers of wood, On
the third layer of wood, place a layer of stones, each
about half the size of a brick. Light, and keep fire

blazing for about 1% hours, until the stones are almost
white hot and have fallen into the hole.

Now, working rapidly, shovel out burning pieces of
wood. Then level stones and coals on the boltom of the
hole. Throw in about a peck of vegetable tops or sweet
leaves (wild grapes, maple, sweet gum, sycamore)
moistened with water, Place on the leaves:

¢ 21 pounds of chicken for every three campers
@ For each camper—I1 potato, 1 sweet potalo, 1 carrot,

2 ears of corn, 1 green banana, and 1 apple.

Cover with more leaves, then close the hole with a
heavy, wetl burlap bag. Cover completely with dirt so
that no steam can escape.

Now, get the gang together and play your favorit
wide games. See Scortmaster’s Handbook, pages 458~
64.

About 2 hours later, line the troop up, open up your
imu carefully, and be prepared Lo snilf the mosl tan-
talizing aroma imaginable. Then watch the food dis-
appear.

IDEA 3 —ICE CREAM HOOTENANNY

Hold this event in a vacant lot, schoolyard, nearby
park, or wooded area. You may wish to invite parents.

There’s nothing finer than a heaping plate of home-
made ice cream. Select a patrol and a few commitlee-
men to make ice cream. A couple of gallons should
suflice for the average-sized troop, .

While the ice cream is being made, conduct a song-
fest with selections from the Boy Scout Songbook. Td



—

make it a real hootenanny, invite your Scouts to bring
their instruments (harmonicas, guitars, ete.) and give
everyone a chance to strut his stuff, A few simple
prizes add to the fun.

When the ice cream is ready, serve it up on paper
plates.

IDEA 4— CRAZY HAT AND SWAP NIGHT

Every Scoul wears a crazy hat. With a little advance
patrol planning your Scouts ought to come up with

some real doozies. Award a grand prize for the craziest
hat and simple prizes for the biggest, smallest, most
decorated, and most unique hats.

In addition to the hat contest, hold a swapping bee
with an exchange of tokens of friendship. Discuss this
in advance at your patrol leaders’ council meeting so
your Scouts can prepare. Boys are natural collectors
and will enjoy the fun and excitement of trading some
of their prize possessions. The Scoutmaster should be
prepared to give a few items to boys who are new or -
don’t usually trade.

This activity provides a good opportunity for dis-
cussing and demonstraling the proper way to wear the
uniform and badges. Select a “Scout of the day’’—the
best uniformed Scout at the meeting.

IDEA 5 — TOUR OR FIELD TRIP

There are many places where your troop can learn
more ahout the world of nature and conservation.

The following list of places to visit will help your
patrol leaders’ council plan a tour: wegther station,

LY AND AUGUST

city water supply, flood-control area, game refuge
(federal, state, and private), natural-history museum,
wood-products mill, wildlife laboratory, dairy farm,
fishing laboratory,experimental farm, hydroelectrical
plant, tree nursery, lumberyard, watershed manage-
ment area, private hunting preserve, experimental
game area, zoo with native wildlife, and aquarium
with native fish.

IDEA 6 — OUTPOST CAMP SURVIVAL

If you are in summer camp, move out of the main
area to an outpost campsite for this activity. If you are
in town, plan to hold the overnight at a remote camp-
site.

Scouts are equipped only with clothing, Scout
knives, hand axes, and raw foodstuffs for one meal
From the time of arrival until leaving, they go througt
a series of survival tests designed to check on each
Scout’s ability Lo get along in the outdoors.

Here are the things the boy must do:

e Select a good campsite.

@ Build a shelter for a patrol. )

e Prepare ground bed and covering from native ma-
terials,

e ', ild a fire without matches,

@ (Collect edible plants.

Prepare a meal from raw food stuffs and collected

edible items, cooking without utensils,

(Be sure that boys do not eat unidentified plants.)

e If near a lake or stream, make of native materials a
fishline, fish lure, and fishhook. Catch a fish using
this gear.

® Filter and purify muddy water for drinking.

Leaders move from patrol to patrol, offering sug-
gestions and checking on the ingenuity and ability of
patrol members. .

\)%NKON PETE SAYS %/
N <% GET IN ON THE

[ ==




IDEA 7 — PIONEER GOLD RUSH

This test of individual and patrol alertness will pro-
vide a whole afternoon of fun.

Various stations marked by signposts are set up at
intervals along a trail,

Each patrol starts at one of the stations. At a pre-
arranged signal, each patrol does what the sign at its

station says. After 10'minutes, a signal is given to -

rotate to the next station and do the activity called for
there.

3

Patrol leaders are in charge of their patrols. Adult
leaders observe patrols at each station but offer no
suggestions or hints until the patrol finishes the activ-
ity. They rate patrol’s performance at each station and

Going Partners, l
I fol-
this platze, -
rr:lx:n old Indlu_n lr_m:\s
lowde leit some trail s:;;““
;“:' you Follow the
o .
igns to
ilgw many

there? Yukon Pele

Hice

Material: Lay out a tredil with
about 12 trail signs marking it.
Along this trail, set up a situa
tion that calls for o Good Turn.

For example, a small boy may
be silting on the side of the Irail
with his shoe off. He has been
“cul” by a breken bottle on the

award nuggets (yellow-painted pebbles or marbles)
for each event on the following scale:

Perfect SCOre .ovvveemvvveeeero 5 nuggets teail, Thers is ne siga: 5 the
Fair score .o 3 nuggets Good Turn. Scouts musl see the
o need without being lold.

Tried hard ....coveeemveerviii, R— 1 nugget Adult obrerver will "pay" pa.
Complete failure .....ccooevvvveviviiiiii 0 nugget _ trols on busis of trail signs ob-

served and whelher or not the

Nuggets are cashed in for prizes after the event. patrol performed the Good Turn.

A oneers b
e
ighy , You siiy /
D;E I Togy *h Mmep
uly ;
Pa Use
45 eegss Noy, i.t!n Tusgy, /
£ 2 i
th; 8g 9o
h;: Spog, ugl‘ees
Yoy ; o 3
. nd
Uligy, Pege

urs: e
Juion P°

Hi Men,

Here's where I ran out
of matches and flint, but I
found the makings of «
fire mear here amd built
my campfire for the /
i night, You can do it, too. 1
Make a wood fire with
flames 12 inches high,

/  Material: Place a small sack of
five “gold pieces” 50 to 75 leet
from the sign. Sack should be in
brush, not easily seen. A com-
pass, fairly visible, can be hung
on a nearby bush. Exact de-
grees and distance in feel to the
bag of gold must ke put on
sign. Replace gold pieces alter a
patrol has visiled this station,

Yulton Pete

~ 4
.'\Jt \Uw
RULIATEN

Material: Two er three pieces of file, lots of
charred cloth, two or three pieces of hard rock
or flint, shredded bark for tinder. The observer
gives half a handful of charred cloth to each
patrol,




—

I

v
ASs 003", oxe
Material: This station must be 560“6 o 9 ar ““. 1
situated where there are edible e o nC gud a o
: . 1! .gh (Y1t o
wild planis and berries. For 1 e
animal evidence, place bits of

rabbit, squirrel, possum, and

0"
['C) gy n
fox fur about the area. Or beller é o ¢ ise O .
i P o at®” woP
still, place a stulfed rabbit, §i® g Y 50 * e ote
. squirrel, pheasant, or other ani- g€ o o

mals native to the area in the
immediale vicinily. They should
be half hidden in the brush.
Deer and fox tracks can be sim-
ulated in solt ground. Items
found and named are left un-
disturbed but are reported la
the observer.

Material: Three 15-foot poles, 3 to 4
inches at the bull; piece of Yi-inch
line, 1§ feel long and whipped for
lashing; piece of l.inch line, 24 feet
long, for raising patrel member. It

would be helpful to have g pulley to

attach to the top of the tripod. Be care-

ful when raising patrol member. For

salety, make a large knol that will not

pass through pulley.

-
Material: The sign is in cryptogram
numbers corresponding to letters in
the alphabet and reads “"Go to swim-
ming areal”

sl Material: This station is located,
il at the lake, if there is one. An
“injured  prospector”  awaits
help there. In an envelope,
there is a message which de-
scribes the prospector's injury
(something simple, such as a
cut hand or sprained ankle),
The pairol must apply first aid -
and carry the victim 1o a shelter,
There should be a first aid kit,
blanket, two 7-foot poles, and a
triangular bandage or necker-
chief on hand. Or, if desired,
participants may be asked io
improvise materials.

cARNIVAL
SEE
NEXT

PAGE




IDEA 8- WATER CARNIVAL

Games, contests, and plenty of individual and patrol
competition make the Water Carnival a popular ac-
tivity with Scouts.

Do some advance preparation with the patrol lead-
ers’ council to make sure that the needed equipment
has been secured and games and contests will procecd
without a hitch,

Hold the carnival at a beach or swimming pool. Make
it a family pienic affair with each family bringing its
own food. After the picnic hold a father-and-son
activity such as softball or volleyball to allow time
for the meal to scttie before the swimming activilies.

Award simple prizes for each contest held. This will
add to the fun. Then hold a court of honor. Present
badges and certificates to Scouts who have advanced
during the summer.

Conclude the program with songs, patrol stunts, a
Scoutmaster’s minute, and a closing ceremony from
Troop Activities. -

Here are some games for the carnival:

Sweat-Shirt Relay. Patrols or dads and sons may com-
pete. Teams line up in relay formation at the water’s
edge. On signal, the first member of each team puts on a
sweat shirt, jumps in the water, swims to a prescribed
deslination, and returns. Ie then removes the sweat shirt
and gives it to the next member of the team who puls it
..on and continues the relay. First team finished wins.

Balloon Volleyball. Divide the troop into two teams.
Erect a volleyball net or rope 3 feet above the water in
a section of the pool or lake where the water is only
waist deep. Use a balloon for the ball. Follow the regular
volleyball rules, The fun comes when a player tries to

e

w

Camy

get through the water fast enough to reach the balloon
before it touches waler. Players may run, jummp, swim,
or dive.

Wheelbarrow Race. This race may be run relay style
or, if the beach is wide and shallow, all teams can com-
pete at one Lime, One Scout is the wheelbarrow, Hoe walks
on his hands while his partner grasps him by the ankles
and directs him through shallow waler to the finish line,

Water Dodge Ball. Two even teams play this game in
shallow water. One team forms a circle. The other leam
gets inside the cirele. The outside team throws rubber
ball at the inside tcam. Score 1 point for cach inside
player hit during a 5-minute period. Then change sides.
Team with the largest score wins. )

Red Light. This game is played in knee-deep water. One
person is designaled as “it” and stands near the shore
or at the end of the pool. Others stand at an cqual dis-
tance from him and from the finish line, which is some
distance away. With his back to the other plavers, “it”
counts to 10 and then lurns and shouts “red light.” Any
player caught in motion by “it” must start over again by
coming back to the starting point. Player who reaches
finish line first is the winner. Continue game to see who
is the last to reach ti{le goal, )



Cork Scramble. Players stand at the water’s edge, half
on one side of the pool and half on the other. Leader
throws a number of corks into the pool. On signal, play-
crs seramble {o see who can get the grealest nuinber of
corks. If desired, winner may be eliminated and game
continued uniil only one boy is left.

Over and Under Relay. Line up by patrols in water
that reaches midway between hips and knees. The last
Scout in line leapfrogs over Scout just ahead of him,
dives between legs of next Scout, leapfrogs the third,
and so on until he comes to the front of the line, As soon
13 he finishes, the Scout who is now last in line does the
same thing. Scouts repeat until the boy who was orig-
inally last in line is lasl again. First patrol finished wins.

Water Tug-of-War. Pit patrol against patrol in this
event. You'll need a '%2-inch line about 50 feet long. Play
in shallow water. Object is to pull opponcnts across a
designated line.

Poison Ring, All players join hands in a circle. A large
ball is put in the center of the ring to serve as “poison.”
On signul from the leader, all players try to pull other
players into the poison. Anyone touching it must either

drop out or stay in to serve as “additional poison.” Play-
ers who break the circle when the poison is about to
touch are automatically poisoned. Each time a player
is poisoned, the ring is re-formed and the play is con-
tinued until there are a designated few (usually six) left
in the circle. They are the winners. No ducking is allowed.

o, Y

r?;é: >

S

A

RS
&eza

Balloon Ball. Divide the troop into two equal tcams.
One team, the defenders, is massed around an inflated
balloon in the water. The other, the attackers, is lined up
on the sides of the pool. At a given command or signal,
the altacking team tries to reach the balloon and break
it. The defenders try lo protect it. Each {eam is given a
3-minute period to break the enemy’s balloon. The team
taking the least time wins.

Balloon-Blowing Contest. Issue each patrol member a
small balloon. Patrols line up in waist-deep water. On
signal, Scouts duck and attempt to inflate balloon under-
water. The patrol inflating balloons first is the winner.



CROSSCUT

t Be sure tube
is of good quality,

Note:

S
|

STOOPER

Stand erect, On count of one,
raise arms: on count of two, bend
down and touch toes. Do not bend
knees. On count of three, return
to original position and rest for a
few seconds. Repeat len limes.
Build to. goal of twenty times,

INNER TUBE 1" TO 1%4" WIDE

/ > G==

SHOULDER HEIGHT TO BOLT ’(1

Here are suggestions for gadgets and exercises called for in pairol deme-

onsirations. These are designed for easy consfruction and will add an ele«

ment of novelty to exercising. Following patrol demonsirafions, have each

Scout try the gadgeis and exercises and encourage them fo use one or more

of these regularly at home fo build physical fiftness,

MAKE K TIRE-TUBE GYM

SEVERAL SECTIONS OF

ONE BOLT ABOUT 4" LONG

iv.o.'.-.«.:::.'.-.'.'om'.'!mm'r.;.

AN

BOLTS AND WASHERS
2" x 4"

TIRE-TUBE EXERCISES

PUMPER

Stand erect. just far enough back
fo put tension on the tubing. Use
a one-two count and pump arms
back and forth in piston motion.
Repeat exercise fifteen times and
build to a goal of thirty times,

NECK BUILDER

Stand erect wilh feet apart, hands
on hips, back to wall, with sec-
tion of tube around forehead.
Move out until tension is marked.
Move head forward and back-
ward. Increase tension by mov-
ing farther from wall. Set own
goals,

BICEP BUILDER

Stand erect with tension on inner
tube. Upper arm next to body,
forearm out. Slowly, in upward
motion pull until hand touches
shoulder. Hold for count of three
and slowly return to starl. Repeat
five times each arm, Goal of ten,

WING FLAPPER

Stand erect. Swing arms out
horizontally and hold for long
iwo count. Relurn to posilion at
start. Swing arms down by sides
and hold. Return to start, Repeat
fotal exercise five times. Build
fo a goal of ten fimes.

¥

JOIN SEVERAL SECTIONS
OF TUBING TOGETHER

&
~ iy,

SIDE SWING

Stand erect with feet slightly
apart. Hold rubber band and
swing in circular direclion—first
right, and then left. Swing should
be from hips up. Rest a moment
on compleiion of each cycle. Re-
peat ten times. Build to goal of
twenly,




NG
N\ €O N

vy !, :'-

D

\ J\\(\S\ g
)

Si .t

The population explosion

[ oand resulting increase in
land taken over by hous-
ing has reduced our for-
ests to the point that
wildlife finds it difficult
to survive. The nail keg
in a tree takes the place
of a hollow log no longer
' available to the raccoon
family. Why not check
wildlife needs in your

i
f)

The setup above will show what hap-
pens when it rains, The sleam from
the kettle is directed at the bollom
of the firay filled with ice. As it
sirikes the cool surface, condensalion
occurs, and droplets fall fo the ground
underneath. The same thing happens
when it rains. Warm air, full of mois-
ture, is cooled forcing out some of the
water in the form of rain,

\
2" x 2" PIECE
OF CARDBOARD e

Your local lumber
dealer can help you
develop « wood
display. The main
conservation aspect
of the display is in-
volved in determin-
ing the securce of
supply of each type
wood and the
means of iranspor-
{ation used fo de-
liver it to your fown,
An understanding of
these faclors is im-
portant in appreciat-
ing the need for
wise use of the ex-
isting forests in and
around your ared.

PITLL LA
e
o
w-

2" % 2 BLOCKS

- OF WOOp MOUNTED ON

PLYWOOD PANEL




SCREW AND

SECURE UNDER
DASH

Titlering from an automobile Is offen caused by a desire to be O

neat and clean—neat and clean inside the car, Your Scouls can |

help eut this type of lillering by making and distsibuting lilter

containers for automobkiles. %

A wildlife map of an aree consisls of two additions
lo a normal sketch map—the location of relatively
permanent signs of wildlife, such as animal deng
and bird nests, and a census count of wildlife
spolted in the area at different times of the year,




20 N

CONSERVAY

;

ACTIVITIES)

By Walter Wenzel, Assistant National Director, Conservation Service, Boy Scou!s\;i

PROJECTS

STREAM-BANK EROSION CONTROL—Riprap eroding stream
banks by piling rocks against the bank from the stream
bed upward wherever the bank is washing.

Cut tinger-thick willow canes and push them into moist
bank arcas that are eroding. Willows also supply shade
fo trout streams,

WATER FOR WILDLIFE—Dig out springs and wet spots to
store water. Sometimes this water can be run into a trough
«r other container.

WILDLIFE SIGNS EXHIBIT--Find as many evidences of ani-
mals that you can find; identify, label, and mount them on
a panel. Examples: animal-track plaster casts, bird feath-
ers, partially eaten acorns or nuts, skulls and bones,
birds’ nests, animal hair, shed snakeskin, shed deer antler,
ete. Sce Nature merit badge pamphlet.

PRUNE AND/OR THIN PINE PLANTATION—Under supervision,
prune (cut off limbs for better timber) or thin (cut down
certain trees for better growth of those remaining) in a
pine plantation where such projects are necessary, See
Forestry meril badge pamphlet, pages 28-29.

HuNTERs sarETy—Talke the National Rifle Association’s
Hunter Safety Course. Take a supervised field trip in gun
handling in the outdoors.

Jow o rFisu—Learn how to use the fishing equipment
sou have—fly rod, spinning rod, or bait-casting rod. On a
ake, a stream, or an ocean, learn how to catch fish—
vhere to fish for what kind and baits or lures to use. See
“ishing merit badge paniphlet.

FULLY CONTROL—Stop active erosion in a gully or eroding
ath by placing the proper structure in it. This might
nean a log diversion above it and/or log-rock-brush step
lowns or dams in it. Sce Soil and Water Conservation
nerit badge pamphlet, pages 64-65.

'QUIRREL OR RACCOON BOxES—Build squirrel or raccoon
wxes according to measurements from the wood duck
ox in Wildlife Management merit badge pamphlet, page
i Malke the opening for raccoons larger.,

N -

N

N \\\:\: T -
NI

i
e
=

—IT
s
~.

America

Roapsipe creaNnur—Pick a section of roadside for this
Good Turn project along a park wooded area or picnic
area.

FOREST-FIRE-PREVENTION CAMPAIGN—Post fire-prevention
signs in wooded or grassland areas where people will see
them, Get permission from landowners. Put a forest-fire-
prevention display in a prominent place such as a store
window to remind people of the dangers of fire. Dis-
tribute fire-prevention literature around your neighbor-
hood. See Forestry merit badge pamphlet, pages 43-51,
and material available from state or U.S. Forest Service
oftices.

TRIPS
Take a trip to a—

Nature center or outdoor trail museum. Contact a bi-
ology teacher or conservation agency for information.

Wildlife management area under state, county, federal,
or other agency such as habitat restoration areas, water-
fowl or other refugees. Contact the local fish and game
office or agent for information.

Watershed-demonstration area. This could include the
local water-reservoir area or special areas under munic-
ipal, state, federal, or even university jurisdiction. Con-
tact the local Soil Conservation Service office for infor-
mation,

Tree farm or managed forest. This trip could be to a
state or federal forest-management area or a tree farm
operated by an industry or an individual. Contact the
local forestry office for information.

A conservation farm. This trip can be arranged through
the local Soil Conservation Service office where informa-
tion is available.

A managed trout stream where various bank-erosion
projects, dams, and other devices are illustrated. Contact
local fish and game office for information.

3

ot

Sip




LY

C ONSERVATIORHN

vancement program because it deals with our na-
tural resources—the material basis of our nation’s
strength.

Boys should know that their standard of living in
our free society is supported by the resources of the
earth. We may live in a space age—but our food, cloth-
ing, shelter, and fuel come from the earth.

CONSERVATION IS A VERY IMPORTANT PART of the ad-

In this article, guidelines are offered to help you
choose a conservation project for your troop or to help
a Scout develop his own project.

It is, of course, impossible to describe specific con-
servation activities that are suitable everywhere. What
might be a topnotch project in Bangor, Me., might be
very harmful in Wichita, Kans. Plans must be tailored
to the locality.

Ordinarily, the Scout working on his Star require-
ment will take part in a conservation project or field
trip that has been planned by his troop leaders. When

working on Life requirement for conservation, the .

Scout himself must plan, develop, and carry out a
Scoutmaster-approved project.

Sources of information

The Scout leader or Scout should check on conser-
vation problems in the community. Among the sources
of information are:

Parle authorities—See what projects may be done
in public parks. For example, a search for diseased and
dying trees will enable authorities to remove them
before the disease spreads.

Museums—Often cities and large towns have na-
tural-history museums that feature conservation ex-
hibits. A few hours in the museum will give you many
ideas.

Conservation agencies — Many federal, state, and
private agencies or organizations have facilities in or
near cities or large suburban areas, At international
airports, the U.S. Department of Agriculture maintains
offices to help prevent the importation of insect, plant,
or animal diseases.

In all cases the Scout leader or Scout should check
with conservation authorities to find out what may be
done. State forestry and fish and game personnel, U.S.
Forest Service officials, U.S. Soil Conservation Service
personnel, science teachers, and conservation chairmen
of sportsmen’s clubs can be helpful.




Conservation opportunities

Close to cities, suburban areas, or large towns there
is often open land used for agriculture or as a water-
shed. Field trips may be made to see how conservation
is applied on these lands,

Many Scout camps have programs in forestry, wild-
life management, and soil conservation.

Moreover, parks, schoolyards, church property, and
backyards present opportunities for eliminating soil-
erosion problems, for planting shrubs or vines that are
attractive to wildlife, and for beautifying the area to
make il more attiractive,

Some troops or individual Scouts have helped in
litter control. They have also placed birdhouses, feed-
ing stations, and hirdbaths in open areas.

Other opportunities may be found in these areas:

Water conservation—Every community must have
clean water. A trip to the agency that furnishes water

to the area can be a very worthwhile experience. Scouts
can check where the water comes from, how much is
used, and what must be done to make it it for drinking.

ROJECTGS

‘in local newspapers can also be helpful,

BY THEODORE S. PETTIT

Director of Conservation

They may also make a survey of water needs and re-
port this to troop, class, or club. Industries that are
helping prevent pollution of rivers and streams should
also be checked.

Air-pollution control — Air pollution is a national
problem. Many localities have commissions or agen-
cies to deal with it.

Conservation of space—Another national problem is
the need for ensuring living and recreational space for
an expanding population. Check with the park depart-
ment or similar agency to see what your locality is
doing,.

Conservation education — Making people aware of
the need for conservation is an essential activity. Post-
ers will alert the public to the danger of forest or brush

_fires and of the need for eliminating litter. Scouts may
‘make displays or exhibits on water conservation, air

pollution, need for recreational lands, importance of
preserving historic shrines, and unwise use of pesti-
cides. Articles in school, Scout or church bulletins, or




N

B 0YS WILL MEASURE THE SUCCESS of your sum-
mer camp by the program of the camp—the memo-
rable activities that brought fun and excitement.
In Troop Activities you will find hundreds of ideas
that can be used in your camp program. Add these
to that fine collection.

100-mile patrol

Make an award to any patrol that hikes 100 miles
while in camp. These must be regular hilkes—not
just walking around within the camp. To figure
the 100 miles, each patrol keeps track of its out-
of-camp hikes, the distance traveled, and the num-
ber of Scouts involved. For example: three Scouts

- Y
¥s

””ﬂCTIVITIES

hike 5 miles; total credit to the patrol is 15 miles.
Patrols keep adding to their hiking total until they
reach the 100-mile mark.

Sign up .

Build several cairns at varying distances around
the camp. Place a small notebook wrapped in wa-
terproof plastic into each cairn. Spot the exact
location of each cairn on a topographic map of the
camp area. Challenge Scouts to find the cairns
using map and compass. When a Scout finds one,
he signs his name in the notebook left in the cairn.
Each Scout’s objective should be to sign his name
in every one of the books.

Perpetual fire of citizenship

In the vicinity of the camp flagpole, build a small,
rock fire altar. At retreat ceremony the first night
of camp, light a small fire on top of the rock altar.
Tell the campers that this fire represents the spirit
of citizenship that must prevail in a camp and in
the lives of Scouts. Select an honor Scout to keep
the fire burning for the next 24 hours. This Scout
doesn’t have to live with the fire, but must see that
it doesn’t go out. At retreat ceremony the next
night, change the keeper of the fire. The changing
of the guard gives an excellent chance to speak to
the boys about the responsibilities of citizenship.
Throughout the camp week, Scouts will be re-
minded of good citizenship as they pass the per-
petual fire. Provide a tin hood to protect fire in
case of rain.

Interpatrol smorgasbord

Each patrol is assigned a different part of the
evening meal to prepare for the whole troop.
When the dinner hour arrives, patrols bring their
food to a central point for serving and dining. Try
more difficult and unique recipes for this event so
that the resulting interpatrol smorgasbord will be a
high light of the summer camp.

Carving rail

Provide a smooth log or plank for initial carvers.
Put it in a convenient camp location and invile,
Scouts to carve to their hearts’ content. This will
save wear and tear on other areas where initials

SUMMER



might be carved. Incidentally, a good way to dis-
courage carving in unauthorized areas is to advise
milial carvers that they will be expected to remove
all initials with sandpaper.

Three's not a crowd

Encourage Scouts to make many out-of-camp
hikes during the camp weelk, but require that there
always be at least three Scouts together on every
hike. This is a safety precaution. In case of accident
to one Scout, a buddy can stay with him while the
third goes for help. A hike check-out and check-in
system should be set up so you know the names
of Scouts out hiking, where they are, and when
they expeel to return.

Patrol campfires

Instead of holding a troop campfire every night
in camp, let your patrols hold their own private
camptfires every so often. Tt will build patrol spirit
and give patrols a chance to practice a stunt or
demonstration for the troop campfire. Help your
patrol leaders in the development of their camp-
fire programs if they haven’t had much experience
along this line.

Fish derby

Announce a starting and finishing time. Scouts
may fish, using any legal methods, between the
hours set. Give awards for the Scout with the most
tish, the heaviest fish, the longest fish, the largest
variely of species, the lightest legal fish, and the
shortest legal fish. TIold a troop fish fry following
the event.

A

N\

A
KNI

~, (}

Oy

g

\ Y

4 £

N
i \\‘}:z:% \s&“é%
e 3 gt ¢

(\'_’LA/ L DI N

O . -

£ ps e
%

b
X l{;_«{;&\ )

FE R i

=
ot

»

Lot

Floating campfire

Anchor a small log raft out in the lake. Cover
raft with proteclive layer of earth, Build campfire
on the raft. Scouts row out to the raft in boats or
canoes that they tie together in a circle around the
floating campfire.

Up in the air

For this event you need a heavily wooded area
and some simple pioneering equipment. One mem-
ber of the patrol gets up into a tree. Using ropes,
staves, etc., he must get as far as possible from the
original tree in a given amount of time, but with-
out touching the ground. The other patrol members
can help from the ground or up in trees as long as
they don’t uctually touch the competitor. Equip-
ment to assist the man in the air can be built on the
ground as needed. The representative who travels
the longest distance without touching the ground
wins for his patrol.

Straight-line walk

To find out whether you would circle to the right
or left if lost in the woods, set up a straight-line
field. In a level, open area, set a starting line at one
end and a single post or stave upright at the other
end. Blindfold one Scout at a time. Face him di-
recily toward the post and tell him to walk straight
toward it. All other Scouts should keep quiet as
sounds might help orient the Scout being tested.
Almost every walker will veer to ihe right or left
after 20 or 30 steps. This test will show each Scout
which way he would tend to circle if lost in the
woods. ’

o

R




and teamwork. Scouts are happiest when they're
testing their skills—man for man—in a series of
exciting competitive events in the outdoors,

THE LOGGERS’ HOEDOWN will bring out patrol spirit

Plan an overnight campout or day hike and make
the main feature the Loggers’ Hoedown. (See page 22
for campfire stories.) Run the events in the same man-
ner as a Scout rally. You’ll need a judge for each patrol
in each event. Have the patrol leaders’ council set up
the area in advance of your contest. The success of the
events will depend on having adequate equipment for
each patrol.

Bow Saw Relay
Material for each patrol:
1 log, 6 feet long with 4-inch butt
1 30-inch bow saw
1log, 3 feet long with 6-inch butt (for sawhorse)

Action: Patrols line up in relay formation, facing log
at a distance of 20 feet. Bow saw is placed at side of
log. On signal, two Scouts run up to the log. One Scout
supports the log to keep it steady, as the other Scout
saws off a disk about 2 inches thick. As soon as the disk
drops to the ground, the two Scouts change places—
the first Scout saws, and the second Scout supports the
log. When the second disk falls to the ground, both
Scouts race back to the starting line and touch off the
next two Scouts, who Tepeat the process. This is con-
tinued until all patrols have had a chance to saw off a
total of eight disks and all members of each patrol
have returned to the starting line. The first patrol to
finish is the winner.,

4:_:5 o C?}/

G H L I

Tripod Lashing, Fire Building,_
Water Boiling

- Material for each patrol:

3 Scout staves or saplings, 6 feet long
1 12-foot length of sash cord or V4 -inch rope
1 6-foot length of stovepipe wire

1 No. 10 can with wire handle, containing 1 quart of
water with 1 tablespoon of powdered soap

Wood and tinder for building a fire
2 stick matches
1 12-inch stick for measuring height of can

Action: Each patrol is assigned an area for the event
and proceeds to lay a fire with the materials provided.
They do not light the fire. When all patrols have laid
their fires they stand beside them. On signal from
judge, each patrol, using the staves or saplings and the
sash cord, builds a tripod with lashings, They place the
tripod over the firebed. Then, using the stovepipe wire,
they suspend the No. 10 can (filled with water and
soap powder) from the center of the tripod. They then
light the fire with the two matches provided,

Scoring: The first patrol to bring the soapy water to a
boil so it runs over the can is the winner,

Rules: The No. 10 can must be suspended 12 inches
from the ground. Once the fire is lighted, more fuel
may be added to it to hasten the boiling process.
Patrol that is unable to light fire with two matches is
disqualified.



_‘Nood-Chopping Relay

Material for each patrol:
1 log, 3 feet long, 6 inches in diameter
4 stalees to hold log in place
1 long-handled ax

Action: The object of this relay is to cut the log in half
in the fewest number of strokes. Patrols line up in
relay formation about 10 feet from where log lies on
ground, Log is kept firmly in place with four stakes.
On signal the first Scout walks to the log, removes ax
stuck in log, takes six strokes, and sticks the ax back in
the log. He walks back to touch off the second Scout,
who walks, takes six strokes with ax, replaces ax,
walks back, and so on. Patrol cutting through log in
fewest number of strokes wins. This is not a speed con-
test. Instruct your Scouts to use all safety precautions.

L=
=

GRUE

Ladder Making
Material for each patrol:
8 pieces of sash cord or Y4-inch rope, 4 feet long
2 poles, 10 feet long
4 poles, 3 feet long and 2 inches thick

Action: At starting signal, patrols lash short poles on
long poles, spacing them so there are four ladder rungs.
They use square lashings. When the lashings are fin-
ished, all patrol members but one hold the ladder up-
right while the single Scout climbs to the top of the
ladder.

Scoring: The first patrol to finish wins.

Pole Lashing Contest

Material for each patrol:
2 poles 6 to 10 feet long, 2-inch diameter
3'poles 2 to 3 feet long, 2-inch diameter
6 lengths of sash cord or ¥-inch rope

Action: Fach patrol, with all members working to-

. gether as a team, lashes 5 Scout staves or saplings to

form one long pole. When lashings are finished, Scouts
hold the pole at a 45-degree angle to the ground. They
may touch only the bottom stave of the pole. The first
patrol to place its pole in position and hold it there for
30 seconds is the winner, No part of the pole except the
bottom may touch the ground.

{
¥

A A,




CROSS-COUNTRY ORIENTEERING COURSE

This course covers only a few hundred yards but
will give excellent training in walking cross-country
using a pathfinder or Explorer III compass.

Working together, two men can quickly set up the
course, They will need a marking pencil, thumbtacks,
compass, and a series of numbered cardboard markers.
See illustration. )

1. The men tack the No. 1 marker on a free and de-
cide on a certain compass bearing. They then write
the compass bearing on the marker.

2. While one man stays at the first marker, the other
walks in the direction indicated by the compass
bearing until he reaches a suitable place for station
2. While walking he estimates the distance by
counting his footsteps.

3. The second man calls out the distance he has

!""U v -
At T :;‘3

walked from station 1 to stalion 2. The man at the
first station writes the distance on the No. 1 marker
and then joins the other man at station 2.

4. They put marker No. 2 on the second tree (prefer-
ably on a side of the tree not visible when ap-
proached from station 1)}. They choose a compass
bearing and one man walks in the proper direction
until he decides on a tree for station 3. They then
follow the same procedure already described until
they have set up 12 stations.

When the course is set, the leader issues each patrol

a compass. The first patrol starts the course at station

1, where they take the first compass bearing. They then

try and follow the course. Other patrols start the

course at 3-minute intervals.

Patrol around the course in the least time wins the
game.



HERE HRE TWO HACTIVITIES that
will help you set up an exciting
Mappers’ Field Day for your iroop.

You may think of other ideas, .——
—— _ ~l._\__‘____4__’_,4"

e

e

TOPO TEASERS

This is a map and compass game that will teach
your Scouts how to recognize topographical map sym-
bols quickly. It will also give them practice in taking
compass bearings. The game is played by patrol teams.

You will need 8 to 10 stakes, 5 feet long; 8 to 10
pointers (nails are used as sights); 8 to 10 compasses;
1 master topographical map with a copy for each pa-
trol; pencil and paper.

Set up a circle of 8 to 10 numbered pointers on the
highest ground available. See illustration. Be sure
there is a good view.

Place each pointer so that it is sighted on' a place
(e.g., church, schoal, cemetery, crossroad) shown on
the topographical map of {he area.

At each pointer, the leader takes a compass bearing
on the place sighted by the pointer. He records the cor-

~
=gt ahs i e
Sl oy e T R
.n"@;,gi}jﬁnﬁm A el
= Rzl ) Qi Y
P I-b-'_" _; }
(FAAESME b (0 ] -z.&@
Gl A wp Lo o
eI e IO S £
VL Wz a s ol )
™ ﬁ"&.l: AR .7
o < o ;

rect bearing on a sheet of paper.

Each patrol is given a copy of the topographical map
of the area. At the “go” signal, one patrol mans all the
pointers, Scout at each pointer tries to sight the place
selected, identify it on the map, and take a compass
bearing on it. He then circles the feature on his patrol’s
map and writes down the compass bearing on a piece
of paper. The patrol has 5 minutes to complete the
game,

The next patrol then does the same thing. When all
patrols are finished, the patrol maps are compared
with a master map and the compass bearings checked
against the leader’s list. The patrol with the most cor-
rect answers wins.

The game can be prolonged by holding eliminations
or “best out of three'” competitions that require Scouts
to take a different pointer each time.



COLD-WEATHER

FIRE BUILDING BY
TORCH

Why try to start « fire by helding BUNCH OF
a litlle match under the fire? Use DRY WEEDS
a lorch of dry weeds, shavings, FOR TORCH

Light the torch and, when burn-
ing well, shove into the tinder
under your fire,

]
or similar flammable material ()
)\

TINDER BRG

When you wake up on a cold morning in
winter camp, the first thing You want is ¢
fire. If you keep « supply of tinder in @
walerproof linder bag and some dry wood
under the shelter of your tent, it'll be easy
to get started on those cold mornings,
Somelimes, in fact, there'll be coals from
last pight's fire lo start your linder,

SLICE AND
DRY ON
TRAY IN

;k—‘

LIGHT BRANCHES

{2 . 0y
VR

CAMP

SNOW ron WHATER
To melt snow for drinking water thers
are two caulions. Stir the snow or it will

actually scorch in the pan and boil it
to purily before using,

ICE-FISHING TIP-UP

A favorite winter sport is ice fishing. In
most slates it is permissible {0 use more
than one line and hole. {Check your state
laws.) The simple fip-up shown will help
keep track of each line. If the flag is «
distinctive color (different for each Scout)
there won't be argumenis about who's got
a lish,

WITH HOOK

HIGH ENERGY FOODS

Pemmican
This is an old reliable trail food that is easy
to carry, keeps well, and is high in energy. It was
a staple of the early pioneer and scout. .
To make 10 pounds use:
5 pounds of lean beef
4 pounds of fat (suet)
1% pound of raisins
1% pound granulated sugar

Dry the mea! thoroughly by cutting in str.ips
and heating in an open oven. Pulveri;'je the dried
meat by grinding (in the old days this was done
between two stones).

Melt the suet and add the ground dried meat,
the raisins, and the sugar. Stir well-tg mix the
ingredients. Allow to cool. Cut the sohdxfied pem-
mican into meal-size squares and wrap in alumi-
num foil.

Pemmican can be eaten raw, boiled, or fried.



Fooed cache—off the ground and
away from insects and animals

A spot for your dishes
to dry in the sun

Arrange as illustrated several rocks 4 to
6 inches in diameter. Place plastic over
rocks for washing and rinsing dishes.

Cover for your

Scoop out a shallow hole in the sand
and place plastic sheet in hole.

4-FOOT SQUARE OF
& PLASTIC sheeting is a

1 handy item for camp-
ers. It's light in weight,
easy to clean, takes up
about as much space in
your pack as a man-size
handkerchief, and costs lit-
tle.

Here are a few ideas on
how to use one in camp.
You can think of many
more,

Spread out near the fire for the cooks. It keeps
your food ¢lean and within easy reach.



CAMP

PROGRAM
SPARKLERS

0NE OF THE MOST IMPORTANT INGREDIENTS in the
building of a camp program is imagination. It makes
the routine the exception and provides activities that
will live in the hearts and minds of boys for years
after the camp is over. Here are a few more imagina-
tive ideas to add to those that can be found in the
Scoutmaster’s Handbook and Troop Activities.

Buried records

Each year the troop conducts an early-morning
breakfast hike to a selected spot oulside the general
camp territory. Before the hike the Scouts prepare a
record of the past year, a list of names of Scouts in
camp, plans for the year ahead, and other interesting
troop information. This is placed in a can, box, or cask
that is carried on the hike. When the destination is
reached, the records of the previous year are dug up
and read to the troop. Then the records for the current
year are buried. These will be dug up the following
year.

Memory leaf

Collect a supply of small leaves directly from the
branches of a tree so they are still green. Place them
between the pages of a book to press. At the final camp-
fire program put the leaves in a cooking kettle or
Dutch oven that has been used during the camp. As
part of the closing ceremony have each Scout come
forward in silence, take a memory leaf, and leave the
campfire area. This leaf when carried in the Scout’s
billfold is a constant reminder of the days he spent
in summer camp.

Doughnut bake

One patrol takes on the assignment of making
doughnuts for the rest of the troop. Use a Dutch oven
in which a gallon of cooking oil is heated. It's simple
to turn out a supply of doughnuts using doughnut mix.
About three pounds of mix should serve the troop.
The ingredients are mixed with water, rolled out, and
cut with a doughnut cutter. The dough can be dropped
into the heated grease four or five at a time. Each
doughnut will have to be turned over once in the
grease. When done, place on paper to absorb excess
grease then roll in a pan of sugar and cinnamon,

Sundial

Make your own camp sundial by fastening a stick
in the ground so it points directly toward the North
Star. The stick can be of any size desired from pencil
size up to a 20-foot pole. Throughout the first day after
setting up, mark the tip of the shadow each hour. Once
done, your sundial will keep time throughout the camp
—if the sun shines,

Calf roping

Provide three or four lariats for free-time activity.
A lariat is a piece of 34-inch manila rope ahout 35 feet
long. A honda (small loop) is tied inlo cne end and
the free end passed through the honda to make the
lasso loop. Draw a circle with a radius of about 20 feet,
Stand a short log on end in the center of the circle.
The cowboys with their lariats stand outside the circle
and try to lasso the log and pull it out of the circle.

Nature bring me

The leader of this activity gives the name of an item
of nature. As soon as named, patrols try to locate this
item. Each member of the patrol must bring back a
representative sample of the item. The first patrol with
all members turning in correct items Lo the leader
wins a point. The leader then names another item and
the game continues. Patrol members may stay together
or scatter as desired. There are advantages to both
methods of searching.



N

PRGBS kY

N
AR RN
S NN

A&

JAMBOREE-STYLE PATROL chuck hox would look
A prelty ludicrous sticking up above the gun-

wales of a canoe on a wilderness trip. So, too,
a tent and sleeping bag might be classed as excess
bageage on a day hike. The outdoor experiences in
Boy Scouting are many and varied, and like the
expericnces themsclves, the gear required on each
varies in size, complexity, and need.

One of the tragic sights in Scouting is the en-
thusiastic but untrained Scouts struggling to earry
poorly roped cardboard cartons containing their
camping equipment or, at the other extreme, a
heavily loaded truck that drives directly to an
overnight camp and disgorges everything but the
kitchen sink.

" Many troops and patrols take pride in the de-
velopment of their camping gear. Chuck boxes
have been built and equipped, the refrigerator
chests are ready to go, and the knockdown latrine
boxes are designed for real comfort. This gear is
wonderful for use during a week in summer camp
or even for the troop to use at a precamp training
weekend. It is designed for this purpose.

However, this same equipment is completely out
of place at the district pack-in camporee. Sure, the
chuck boxes and the like would add to the comfort
and convenience of one and all, but they're pretty
hard to pack in. They are really out of place at a
pack-in camporee—just as out of place as the
chuck box on a canoe lrip or the sleeping bag on a
day hike.

The pack-in camporee is designed to test a
troop’s ability to move into an area and camp,
Telying only on shank’s mare for transportation.
This is a real test of any troop. The only way a
troop knows whether or not its Scouts are able to
do this, is to do it; and you can’t do it by having
the boys hike followed by a truck or car carrying
all the heavy gear. Your troop either is able to do
pack-in camping or it isn’t. You can’t excuse in-
ability by saying, “We could do it, but we just
don’t want to.” When the pack-in camporee is held,
the qualified troops pack in—the unqualified cry
about the rules and either don’t attend or break the
rules by driving to the site.

Most {roop equipment needs to be adaptable
enough to fit the variety of experiences that make
up the program. A large eight-boy tent might con-
ceivably be used at summer camp, but it would be
useless in any situation where equipment had to
be carried any distance by hand. The chuck box is
an example of adaptability in cooking. It is excel-
lent for summer camp. It keeps all of the patrol’s
cooking equipment in one place in camp, and dur-

ing the rest of the year, toco. But it’s just too big
and heavy for back-packing. So where’s the adapt-
ability? Why, you just take some of the cooking
gear out of the chuck box, leave the box at home,
and tote the gear needed.' When the trip is over,
put the gear back in the chuck box where it can
be stored until needed again.

Enjoyment of hiking and camping can be spoiled
by poor or inappropriate equipment or by not
knowing how to properly use adequate equipment.
Camping gear doesn’t have to be elaborate in
Scouting, but it does need to be right for the type
experience in which it will be used, and Scouts
need to be trained in how to use it. The boy strug-
gling with the cardboard box tied with rope is
proof of just one thing-—somebody failed to show
him the right way to pack his gear for an overnight
camp. Boys want to do things right, and they will
if they know how. It’s up to us—you and me—io
show them that right way. Here are a few ways of
doing this:

1. Assign a Scout or Scouter to train each new
Scout in correct packing methods as soon as
he joins.

-2. Before each camping trip, review packing
techniques at a patrol meeting.

3. Require a personal pack inspection for all
boys going on their first camping trip with
the troop.

4. Give equipment lists to each Scout before
each trip. Lists will vary according to the
needs of the trip.

/’Cj e, ‘;— ’ -
fon_e £



NATURAL WET-WEATHER
FIRE STARTERS

BIRCH LoG (@) ).

T
%
}/{ : BUNDLE OF MATCHES
/ {{\\o, ROTTED TREE
—2I=_ N TRUNKS

Fire niﬂildiﬁ’ﬁ!]'nString Burning Contest
This is a patrol contest which will test how well
each patrol can build a fire under adverse conditions,

Equipment: 30-inch stalkes, string, wood, and tinder
Action: For each patrol, drive two 30-inch stakes at
least 2 feet apart into the ground. Tie two strings
tautly between them, one string 12 inches and the
other 18 inches above the ground. Each patrol should
oe given ample time {o prepare firewood and tinder
and to lay a fire between the two stakes. Now, here’s

MAN-MADE FIRE STARTERS !
FOR WET WEATHER

PARAFFIN-SOAKED
NEWSPAPER

SOAKED IN PARAFFIN

the catch—all of the wood and tinder provided will
have been doused with water in order to test each pa-
trol's ability to build a fire with wet wood. No part of
the fire lay should touch the string stretched at the 12
inch level. When all fire lays are prepared, each patrol
is issued two matches and the signal given to start the
fires. No additional fuel may be added after the fires
have started. The first patrol to burn through the 18-
inch-high string wins the contest, P
Nore: To get their fires started, patrols may use fire
starters made this month at troop and patrol meetings.

CANDLE




THE MYSTERY HIKE
HIGH LIGHT FOR DECEMBER

EACH PATROL IS GIVEN A SERIES of sealed enve-
lopes numbered in sequence. Patrols are instructed
to open envelope No. 1 and follow instructions. Each
envelope will contain information about when to
open the next envelope in the sequence.

The orders in these envelopes will direct Scouts
from omne location to another until the patrol
finally arrives at a central meeting spot where all
patrols come together.

In addition to directions for moving from one lo-
cation to the next, the sealed orders will contain
instructions related to a skill of Scouting that musl
be performed by the patrol before it can move on
to the next location.

The directions and the skill assignments will
have to be made up in advance by members of the
troop’s junior leadership not including the patrol
leaders. These directions will vary according to
the possibilities of each location; for example, at
one spot the orders might ask the patrol to collect
one twig from each of six trees named. Obviously,
it would be ascertained in advance that these six
species are available at the site.

Other possibilities for skill problems in the sealed
orders might be:

Take compass bearings by degrees on several
stated landmarks. :

Follow trail signs to a specified spot where the
next envelope will be opened.

Build a fire and bring at least one cup of water
to a boil. .

Make an accurate sketch-map covering all the
territory in a radius of 100 feet.

Send by flag a message contained in the next
numbered envelope. (Two members move forward
a specified distance and send message.)

Solve and treat an emergency first aid problen.

Without using compass for reference, draw a
true north-south line on the ground.

Each patrol will be accompanicd by a judge. This
judge could be a troop junior leader or a member
of the troop commitiee. The judge will rate or time
each palrol at each station. The judging will be
based on commoen standards to assure fair judging
for all patrols. For example, in the north-soulh
line problem shown earlier, the line would be
checked with a compass and a score given on a
basis of 5 points to the patrol if the line is within
five degrees of true north, and with one point less
for each {ive degrees of error.

When all patrols arrive at the common meeting
place, hold a coolkout and campfire program includ-
ing announcement of pairol winners in the hike
events.







Neckerchief First Aid

e
A FEW S5IMPLE

FOLDS TURN THE
NECKERCHIEF INTO
" A CRAVAT,

LAY NECKERCHIEF WITH
POINT TOWARD YOU., FOLD ’\
L{\UP PGINT TO LONG EDGE.

S UG UP ON OQUR
a‘ ,. /!—</-Cl IZING SOME

FOLD BOTTOM EDGE
TOWARD TOP TWICE MORE
TO MAKE CRAVAT,

T BLR A ARM WOUND, PLACE
{ THE Sk ES5ING OVER CUT, HOLD wITH
\;, w0 AND PUT CRAVAT (N PLACE WRAP CRAVAT

D SECURE DRESSING. UNTIL ENDS ARE JUST
‘ -- ~ONG ENOUGH TO TIE A

SGUARE KNCT,

T2 ANKLE DON'T
- LT BRING BANDAGE
FROM "t S RGUND HEEL.

ARM SLING FOR HAND  SLiNG IR SHOULDER OR
FRA C*UR COL_ i B INE FRACTURE,

THE NECKERCHIEF 15 ONLY
EANDAuE USE IT TG HOLD
A STERILE DRESSING OVER
A WOUND,

~ CHECK YOUR
HANDBOOK
FOR MORE
NECKERCHIEF
USES,

AS A KNEE
BANDAGE,

2ULL ENDS THROUGH
AND TIE IN A SQUARE
£NO0T -- CAREFUL -
SOT TOO TIGHT.

BOYS' LIFE € JANUARY 1981 ,3.,,/5;2:



ANTISEPTIC
AMMONIA (. AMPUL

AMPUL ;
A METAL OR
PLASTIC BOX

RAZOR
BLADES

-
A N
) / S, Ve

-
THREAD AND

NEEDLE

&

N

N

u

%

—

%-) ASFIRIN

O
STERILE

GAUZE PADS (2" x 2*)

HALACONE
TABLETS

]

ADHESIVE TAPE
' w2

PATROL
PROJECTS

ELASTIC BAND

Here's a one~-man first aid kit that will be mighty handy
in an emergency. It can be carried in a boy’s pockel. Each
Scout will have fun making his own.

BOTTLE CAP
PLASTIC BAG
HSTRRSHS: ) .
TTL
3 K — 2 " ?{fﬁéﬁ:s PUSHPINS
| — T < 1
i - / <of - &
C
. RUBBER BAND » i \ :/ A
PAINT FACE j—
ON BOTTLE E T
WHEN RAISED 21,7 Ce < \BfIOET\;{'OM g
CUT SLIT {  TUBE ALLOWS < 1<
FOR MOUTH 7 k| -
— ) USE %" PINE BOARD,
Z *
: . 3 [+
FINGER L 3- or 4-LB. BOOK
GUARD— % T ON PLASTIC BAG %
CUT HOLE ; ,
AND INSERT . {J <
C
16" - iy

To simulate mouth-to-mouth resuscitation of an adult,

Exhaled Air Resuscitation Gadget ]
place the large book over the plastic bag.

This gadget will prove very useful for demonstrating
mouth-to-mouth resuscitation.

The following materials are needed: one plastic bleach
bottle approximately % -gallon size; 18" length of 14"
blastic tubing; rubber band: 2 strap hinges: T-hinge:
cork; plastic bag, 8” square; large 3-1b. book; rubber finger
guard.

To make the gadget:

1. Cutaslit 1%” x %" in the bottle to represent the open
mouth.

2. Punch a hole above mouth and insert a rubber
finger guard (glue in) to represent the nose.

3. Cut handle of bottle and plug bottom hole with a cork.
Push %" rubber hose over top part of handle and tie
other end of hose to plastic bag (lung).

Pinch the “nose.” Take a full breath and place mouth
over the “mouth” slit of the bottle.

Blow into the bottle until book rises. Then remove
mouth from bottle and allow the boolk to fall (represent-
ing air emptying from the lungs). Repeat blowing at the
rate of 12 breaths per minute,

To simulate the resuscitation of a small child, fold the
plastic bag in half and place the book on it. Place mouth
over slit in can (mouth) and rubber finger guard (nose).
Take relatively shallow breaths at the rate of about 20
per minute,

Adapted from an article by Captain Stanley Miles written
for the Scouter, publication of The Boy Scouts Association
of Great Britain.

y i A



v o =
i ¥J P 5 I E&[‘( l
_ o 2,000 )
aN e ———
- h Y g b
; it i RELAX, PUMMY/

T '.
¢ k TS ONLY

; Ny
i o 7 Ry | R x
“ T G T N TR T I
5 - §
— e cay \ SREASE PAINT !
— T f s o

— .
r

- .t

. o N "
bl SR e DR GOOUTMASTER, - TEST ) s S0 N
W R ARRANGED FOR LS TS Lo P TOWN'S [/ REAL TS [ sFan] THE
TOWN'S POLICE, SRE ANLD EAUINESS TO \\ SR :’/{ PEGFLE ACTING
AE BQUATS 1IN A e e T S VICTIMS
;i R v LCGR VERY
'*—.‘E Al ;

g B
BT R -
N4
f
it

MEET SNy KINE

L OF eASTER]

Ao 2

ST D WECANS A
LK ‘-./’

NOUNDS
BACK! DoN'

HE PECRO
TOL DISCUSSED THEIR
TS AND SUGGESTEDR |

-
Coreet
L IMPROVE L ENTS.

B -

BOYE LIFE $ NGVEMBER 1976 8 —0 :',.{'



TIPS FOR
PATROL LEADERS

ynu and the Scouts in your patrol
may be perfect whizzes at first-aid
demaristrations. But how will you stack
up in o real emergency? Will the looks
of the injured persons shake you? There
Is nu way to know until 1t happens.
But you'il be better prepared if your
first-aid training has included handling
cases that look as much as possible like
the real thing,

So bring up in the troop leader’s
council the idea of having a "real-thing”
first-aid event for the whole troop.
Velunteer your patrol to stage one or
more {irst-aid problems for the other
patrols to solve.

When the event day arrives, make up
the victims to lock real. For a complete
job of making up the victims shown
on these pages, you'll need:

Grease-paint  sticks—carmine to
suggest abrasions and burns; palest
flesh tint to show shock. Grease-paint
liners-~light blue for the lips of a per-
son in shock; black for third-degree
burns. 8mall bottle of “plastic skin”
~for making blisters. Putty—for
making up wounds and indicating
swellings. Carmine tempera paint
(poster  color)—diluted to simulate
bleod. You can get the first three items
in the cosmetics and general sections
of your drug store. A paint store will
Lave the putty and paiat.

After you have prepared the victims,
put each one in a realistic accident
setting  Flace the victim of a fall at
the hottom of a cliff. Have an ax and
civpped wood nearby if the case is
arterial biceding from an ax cut. And
have the victim wear an old shoe with
a pre-split toe. Each victim must act
to fit the symptoms of his supposed
injury—silent if he is supposed to he
unconscious. appropriate moaning if he
1 conseious. 4

e pee

A-78218

AS YOUR PATRGL Sagnss
A BABYSITT
AND SORE s
YOU RUSH WTC e HOUSE.
A CRYING THiD 30a oo THE FLOGH
MEXT TO A PLEACH GOTTLE,
WHAT Do Vit PO 2

o~
(e

e

From A UISTAUCE, A MAN IS CALLING FOR MHELR YOU
RUSH 16000 ASGISTANCE. YOU SEE HIM SITTiNG
ON THE CRCUND WITH BLOOD WELLING onT FROM,
AN AN SR N THE TOE OF HIS SHOE
WHAT DO you 0o ?

A BOY COMES RUNNING UP T& 70U HE TELLS
YOU THAY HIS BUDDY Has AL W TO THE FOOT

ARL LOCATE THE
unconsaous; VICTIM . CAN HE HAVE A
BROKEN HEOKZ
WHKAT DO you 202

F A CLIFF




“PREPARED” FOR FMERGENCIES

A PLAN FOR CERTIFYING troops as “Prepared” has
recently been announced by the Boy Scouts of
America. Troops thal conduct preseribed prepared-
ness training will be eligible for a “Prepared?
certificate valid for a one-year period. TL may be
renewed at charter renewal time.

Preparedness training required to become eli-
gible for the certificate is as follows:

1. FITNESS—The troop must use the four-part
plan outlined on page 5 of Fit for Tomorrow,
No. 3188. These four parts include:

Medical checkup for every boy

Physical testing based on five lests

Exercise and activities

Periodie (quarterly) retesting to deter-

mine improvement

2o e

2. TRAINING—The troop must use a prepared-
ness training itheme for at least one entire
month in the troop program. Such a theme
will be printed once each year in your quar-
terly.

3. PRACTICE—The troop must conduct a troop
practice mobilization for action in at least
one of these three arcas of emergency service:
a. Communications, collection or distribution

services (this includes messenger service)
b. Public safety—search, first aid, crowd
control
¢. Emergency living—assistance in housing,
feeding, and other services appropriate
for boys

When a troop has completed the three steps re-
quired for cerlification, application for a “Pre-
pared” certificale should be made to the local

FITNESS

TRAINING

council. The certificate will apply for the troop’s
next charter year. To be cligible for renewal, the
three steps indicuted must be repeated during the
year.

Troop participation in an emergency

All participation by Boy Scouts in emergency
preparedness training and actual disaster work 1s
to be under the supervision of their own adult
troop leaders. The leadership structure of the troop
is 1o be maintained with regular troop junior
leaders functioning under the direction of the
Scoutmaster and his assistants. Patrol leaders will
supervise the members of their patrols. This is not
to imply that the Scouts will work independently
of other community services, hutl rather that orders
and directions will be received by troop leaders
from any central conirol group and carried out by
the Scouts within the framework of their own troop
leadership.

In training for emergency preparedness, leaders
must keep in mind the age of Scouts and the effeet
of this age on parental consent Lo serve. Let’s fuce
it—in some serious emergencies most parents would
insist that their Scout-age sons remain at home. The
training given to Scouts mustl be realistic in light of
this. Study the possible emergencies that could
happen in your area. Determine in which of these
your Scouls could be of service and then concen-
trate your emergency preparedness training in
these areas.

Our motto is “Be Prepared.” Is yours a “Pre-
pared” troop? -

PRACTICE




!

‘% New Front Sight
|

i
%Fronl Sight

i
P

staggered method of search, Boy
Scouts advance on straight front in
lwo parallel but staggered lines. Odd
numbers advance first, looking for-
ward, right and left.

A
i
I

S

b4

t
]

i
dedeodoodond it g
Abreast line method of search is
shown above,,, Instruct Boy Scouts
to guide on leader in center. Leader
sets course by sighting on landmarks
such as trees, First tree is rear sight
and second is front sight,

|

4 4
| f
i |
%,

MOBILIZATION PLANS
)
LA

@y
\\\\\‘\\\ I'?i”""”-’.’m

o ¥

SCOUTMASTER

Plan A is used by Bey Scout lroops when normal means of
communicalion are unavailable. It involves planning and
making contacts based on “proximity.” Leaders and boys
muake personal contacts with members living near them. The
first fime a Scouimaster may learn of the need for his troop’s
services may be when a police or other emergency vehicle
drives up to his door with an authorized and approved request
for its services. Under this plan the Scoutmaster personally
goes to the home of a member in one direction, then to the
home of a« member in another direction from his own home.
Operaling in a similar manner. each of the boys fans out and
personally contacls two members of the troop until all have
been notified of the mobilization call, and the group is en
route to the assembly point.

5M
a..\
SPL ™. ASM
.@ <
PR [l
ﬂ——’ -' “ ‘-_‘.\
PL.»" PL. ‘PL ‘-.pL
£ A & 9 e o o o
e ® 0 o ¢ o ¢ & 6 ¢ @ o bo @

MOBILIZATION PLANS

Plan B should be used by Boy Scout troops when normal tele-
phone communications are available. In this case. troops
mobilize by patrols. Members are contacted by telephone.
Sequence is shown in the illustration.

To begin mobilization, the Scoutmaster calls his assistant
and one other person——usually the senior patrol leader. They.
in turn, each phone two patrel leaders. Patrol leaders phone
two patrol members, and this procedure continues in an order-
ly manner through the entire troop roster. The word is passed
from person to person. If a person calling cannot reach some-
one on his list, he calls those for whom the unreached person
is responsible.

! Hlustrations above and below show
é; Rear Sight

THE
REAL THING

emergencies. Tell Scouts they will be mobilized on

a particular weekend for the highlight activity—
The Real Thing. Don’t tell them exactly when. At the
appropriate time during the weekend, set into opera-
tion your troop mobilization plan by making two
phone calls,

Tms ACTIVITY will help prepare your troop for

As part of the mobifization, leaders and patrols as-
semble with emergency packs (equipment, clothing,
(continued on'next page)

L2 po



food, etc.). Perhaps you will have to provide transpor-
tation from your central mobilization point to the area
where you will hold your campout. You may arrange
for the boys to be dropped ofl short of the camp des-
tination so they will have to hike the rest of the way.
If so, troop leaders may go ahead of the rest of the
gang and set up for each patrol a series of trail signs
to be followed to a designated spot.

At the campsite, hold a lost person search, Fire
Building-String Burning Contest, and Emergency
First Aid Contest.

Lost Person Search

This activity will teach Scouts how to go about
searching for a lost person.

Equipment: Several topographic maps, compasses,
dummy, whistles

Action:

* The lost person is a Martian spaceship pilot. Make up
a dummy (trousers and shirt stuffed with straw or
paper) and conceal it well. Be sure to leave evidence
of the missing Martian. Often clues such as footprints

Emergency First Rid
This contest combines signaling and first aid.

Equipment: Signal flags-and first aid equipment’ for
each patrol

Action: Two members of each patrol are given signal
flags and sent to a prominent spot a long distance from
camp. The rest of the patrol members, who have first
.aid equipment, remain in camp at a spot designated by
the leader.

At their destination, the signalers are given a mes-

3
:—E) o //03

or bits of torn clothing have been helpful in finding a
lost person.

¢ Secure several topographic maps and mark the area
in which the search is to be made.

° Istablish a field headquarters with one person in
general charge of the search. He divides the patrols
into searching teams, assigns the areas to be searched,
and briefs the searchers.

° Assemble patrels and announce that a Martian
spaceship was abandoned in flight. The Martian pilot

' is missing and it is the troop’s job to find him, Describe

the pilot’s age, physical appearance, clothing, ete. Issue
each patrol leader a compass and a topographic map
with the area marked off that they are to search. Point
out the destination on the map.

° Establish a signal (three short blasts on a whistle)
so all will be notified when the lost person has been
found. Give each patrol leader a whistle,

® Use the search method illustrated on page 7. You
can make it mbre realistic by asking the local police,
sheriff’s office, or a nearby military police unit (with
radio communications equipment) to help out,

sage describing symptoms of an accident or disaster
vietim. They send the message to their fellow patrol
members in camp. Upon receipt of the message, patrol
members in camp assemble the first aid equipment
they will need and carry it to the signalers. One of the
signaling team is the “vietim” and is treated by the

rescuers.

Scoring: Score on speed and excellence of treatment.
Deduct points for first aid supplies carried but not
used and for first aid equipment needed but left be-
hind. i



HIGH LIGHT

RESCUE
REVUE

PREPAREDNESS is a basic ele-

ment of Boy Scouting. Our na-
tion has learned to rely on the
preparedness of its Boy Scouts.
In the Rescue Revue, your Scouts
show parents their readiness to
serve in emergencies,

The catchy song “Be Pre-
pared,” shown on this page, can
be learned by the troop and
sung as an introduction to the
Rescue Revue program.

Most of the skills of the Ten-
derfoot through First Class tests
can be used in one way or an-
other to demonstrate emergency
preparedness. The most dramat-
ic way of proving Scout pre-
paredness is to set up imaginary
emergency situations. In this
way, members of a patrol can
show their ability by solving the
problems involved.

The emergencies portrayed
can range from simple to com-
plex problems. Too often, the
emergencies set up to show
Scouting relate to the major dis-
aster type, when in reality the
Scout is much .more likely to
face simple emergencies in his
daily routine.

In preparing for the Rescue
Revue, give your Scouts a
chance to think up their own
emergencies. Give them a few
ideas to stimulate their imagina-
tion and then turn them loose
in their patrols. Ask them to
think about the kinds of emer-
gencies they might face and the
skills they might demonstrate

BE PREPARED

{tbL:'Lai!:;:i;&: HE '\—1—.&‘”13_—&5

Boy Scout; 0Oh

’“\tl

Ch Be Pre pared Pre pared Pre pared the mot to of a

! P 3 St i i—% =k _d P~—§H+
— S es e
Be Pre pared Pre pared Pre pared the mot to of a Scout. Pre-
= rgx =S —«;4*—{— = _f_é_j‘_“ T
S 4___#:]
pared Pre pared the  mat to of a good Scout,  Pre-
—mﬂ = R §m ===
pared Pre pared the  mot to of a Scout.

to cope with these emergencies.

Here's an example. You are
trapped in your room on the
third floor of a house. Fire has
cut off normal escape. The only
exit is a window, but it is 20
Teet from the window ledge to
the ground. Demonstrate what
you would do to save your life
without injuring yourself in the
process.

This problem would involve
some demonstration and some
explanation.

Here’s another situation to

stimulate thinking. You and
your buddy are walking along a
lake. A small boy breaks through
thin ice about 30 feet from
shore. Demonstrate what you
would do.

For a problem of this type,
place a Scout on a square of
cardboard representing the hole
in the ice. Mark the shoreline
on the floor with chalk. The two
Scouts would actually demon-
strate correct ice-rescue meth-
ods, including treatment of the
victim after removal from the
water, .

* Other true-to-life emergency
situations might include:

Electrical accident in the

home.

Burn and scald situations.

Lost-child search and care for

victim after location.

Auto accident,

Flood and aftermath (includ-

ing signaling to get neces-
sary supplies when normal

B-/09

communication is knocked
out).

Rope rescue of child trapped
on rock ledge,

Treatment for poisoning by
mouth.

Victims of sunstroke and heat
exhaustion,

In all demonstrations, carry
through the action from start to
finish. Include rescue methods,
correct first aid, and obtaining
competent help. Where possible,
add to the dramatic effect by
using realistic methods such as
fake culs and burns, face pow-
der to dramatize shock and heat
exhaustion, and rouge to redden
face to show sunstroke and
burns.

Watch timing when putting
on the Rescue Revue. This is a
show for parents, and like any
good show musi avoid long dull
spots. Plan all presentations so
they are dramatic and fast mov-
ing. For example, it would he
quite boring for people to sit
and watch a signaler send a
one - hundred word message,
They won’t understand what is
being said. After the first two or
three wdrds have been sent, the
rest become boring and repeti-
tious. The words “bandages,
food, water” can tell of need as
well as a message of several
lines.

Give parents a chance to ask
questions of the Scouts putting
on the demonstrations.



FROSTBITE TO FRACTURES Presented by: Lyle McAlexander

I. First Steps in First Aid Parkdale, OR, 97041
A. BBC's (503) 352-6554
B. Bleeding

C. Ewvery Second Counts!

D. To Move or Not to Move?

E. Steps to follow on patient lying down.
F. The Phone Call

G. Examine Gently

H. Reassure

I. Fluids?

J. Check for cards or emblems.,

II. Things to remember for First Aid Preparedness

A, First Aid Kits

B. Blankets

C. Warning Devices

. D. When and How to Giwve First Aid

1 Breathing-Pulse 4 First Aid Measures
2 Hemorrhage 5 Medical Help
3 Injuries

ITI. Advanced Helps
- A. Snake Bites

B. Severe Bleeding

C. Breathing Stopped

D. Breathing Stopped-No Pulse

E. Broken Neck or Back

F. Major Burns & Scalds

G. Choking-Obstructed Airway

H. Diabetic Coma - Insulin Reaction

I. Drowning

J. Electric Shock

K. Head Injury - Fracture - Concussion

L. Heart Attack

M. Poisoning, by Mouth

N. Unconsciousness - Cause Unknown

0. Cold - Overexposure, Frostbite

P. Heat Stroke - Heat exhaustion
Iv. Addititional Helps

A. Emergency Phone Numbers

B. Care of Drugs, 0ld and New

C. First Aid Kit

D. Checklist of Supplies

Bibliography: : '

Reader's Digest Handbook of First Aid -Ed. Lois Mattox Miller, Susan W. Thompson
The Official Scoutmaster's Handbook pages 76-95

First Aid Meritbadge Pamphlet No. 3276

The Official Boy Scout Handbook

Emergency Preparedness - BSA

Emergency Preparedness Today — R.C. Stoffel

Introduction to Family Camping - BSA

g /10

6670 Trout Creek Road






STAND

A PHYSICAL EDUCATION INSTRUCTOR who sets the bar
on the high-jump standard at 2 feet doesn’t place
much of a challenge in front of his class nor is he
apt to stimulate much enthusiasm as the students
repeatedly jump over this low barrier.

If you like to do jigsaw puzzles, how inierested
would you be in doing a fifteen-piece puzzle? Would
you enjoy a hunting trip if the game stood about like
cattle in a field? Or fishing, if you caught a fish every
time you threw your hook into the water?

The point, of course, -is that activities must be
challenging to attract and hold one’s interest for any
length of time. Scouters are concerned about boys who
join Scoulting, stick around for a brief period of time,
and then drop out before there has been a chance
really to influence their development. It is possible
that through dilution of standards the program such
boys are being offered resembles the 2-foot high
jump or the fifteen-piece jigsaw puzzle.

Occasionally, word is received that some troop is
waiving or relaxing the requirements for ranks or
merit badges because “it will help hold boys in the
program.” These boys, in the opinion of these ‘“re-
quirement relaxers,” will drop out if they are forced
to face up to the challenge of the advancement tests
as outlined in the Boy Scout Handbook. Will we lose
more boys from Scouting because standards as estab-
lished are maintained or because they are relaxed
so they can be passed with little effort or challenge?
Let’s take a lesson from the 2-foot bar on the high-
jump standard.

Some merit badge counselors have a reputation for
being “cinches.” A few Scouts, looking for easy pick-
ings, do move in on these men, but what happens to
the challenge of the program in the eyes of hundreds
of other Scouts who have been led to believe that
advancement in Scouting comes about through effort
and knowledge? These boys surely know that badges

g
fo) =

rip

are meaningful enly when skills have been mastered
in earning them. The Eaglé Scout who is a poor
swimmer isn't really an Eagle, in spite of the badge
he wears or the card he carries. And, furthermore, his
example destroys the challenge and importance of
Scouting in the eyes of every Scoul who knows him.

If Seouting is to be an effective character-building
program, it is essential that all boys who join know
that to advance they must meet the standards for
each rank exactly as outlined in their handbooks.
No one has the right to waive or relax any require-~
ment, except as provided in the substitution plan for
the physically handicapped boy. If the book says,
“Locale a tent site and pitch a tent, fastening the guy
lines with taut-line hitches” (Fiist Class Scoutcraft
test No. 3a), then that's exactly what a Scout must
do to meet this requirement. He must locate a tent
site, not just describe it; he must pitch a tent, not just
tell how to do it; and he must tie the guy lines with a
taul-line hitch, not with one of the Tenderfoot knots,

When standards in a troop are below the minimums
established in the handbook, the troop may be pour-
ing oul a lot of advancement and al the same time
destroying the very ideals of truth, honor, and doing
one's best that the Scouting program is designed to
foster. .

Our job is to strengthen the moral fiber of the fu-
ture leaders of America. We defeat our purpose if
boys are permitted to sneer at the standards in a
program aimed at developing character and teaching
good citizenship. I{’s up to each leader 1o do his share
in seeing that Scouting continues as a challenging
program for boys—a program in which even the
newest Tenderfoot Scout can take pride in the fact
that he “knew his stuff” and proved it when he joined
the troop, and who knows that throughout his Scout-
ing career he will be expected to maich up to the
established standards for every award he will earn.



AREL
QUAL
I.
[l

“HE MAIN EVENT

1968
BOY SCOUT ADVANCEMENT

Presentor: Ker Mattson

5 TG BE COVERED:  PUPBOSE OF ADVANCEMENT . PROCEDURES.
I

TY CONTROL. TiMING- EHRICHING. MERIT BADGE COUNSELORS.

PURPUSE OF ADVANCEMENT

"The Bav Scout advancement plan is designed to
encourage Scouts to acconplish a progressive
Series of I€3arning experiences In the areas ot
Citizenship, ¢haracter. and personal fitness
onjectives ot the Boy Scout program. It provides
tor measuring ang recodnlzing these experilences. '

- Scoutmaster Handbook

A. BUILDS SELF CONFIDENCE

B. SETS 3TANDARDS

[4)]

]
o
1
jen
e
)
=
T
i
oy
o

T4
il
Uy
3
h%
-
ot
o

L. GFFER3 AWARDS

¥
=21
£

PROCEDURE FOF ADVANCEMENT
#. THE SCOUT LEARNS

B. THE SCOUT IS TESTED

C. THE SCOUT 1Is REVIEWED

(]
P

UT RECEIVES HIS BADGE

D. THE 3¢

K-//3



AHEN AND HCW DO YOU ENCOURAGE ADVANCEMENT?

d. SCOUTMASTER’S CONFERENCE

B. PEER PRESSUEE

C. BUILD ADVANCEMENT INTO THE TEAR'S PROGRAM

D. COURTS OF HONOF

E. GIVE RESPONSIBILITIES APPROPRIATE TO TALENTS AND
MATURITTY,

ADVANCEMENT:  QUALITY

A.  SCOUTING 3 QUALITY CONTOL SYSTEM
B. SCOUTING S STANDARDS AND OUR OWN

TIMING : TOO SOON OR NOT SOON ENOUGH

O

D. ENRICHMENT ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS

E. SCOUT SPIRIT

MERIT BADGE COUNSELORS

A.  WHO ARE THEY AND WHAT DO THEY REALLY HAVE TO
FHOW 2

X

- WHERE DD YOU FIND THEH »

£, HOW MANY MERIT BADGES CAN ONE PERSON COUNSEL ?

/Ig . fl/’?[



?]SCOUT’S

A PANELIST on a television show has a
hard time selling his associates on the
truth of a statement. What is his solution
to the problem? He holds up his hand in the
Scout sign and says, “Scout's honor.” The
studio audience and the other panelists chuckle at
this quaint carry-over from the performer’s past,
but they no longer doubt the truth of what he said,
The simple gesture and the words “Scout’s honor”
have convinced them that this man was absolutely
sincere in the statement he made.

The tradition of the reliability of a Scout's
honor comes to us from the days of the founding
of the Boy Scouts of America. The earliest mention
in literature is found in the first printing of the
official handbook printed in 1910—“If a Scout
says ‘On my honor it is so,” that means that it is 50,
just as if he had taken a most solemn oath.”

For over fifty years Scouts have been repeat-
ing the words “A Scout is trustworthy. . . . If he
were to violate his honor by telling a lie or by
cheating or by not doing exactly a given task,
when trusted on his honor, he may be directed to
hand over his Scout badge.” Unless a boy really
understands the meaning of honor, the phrases in
this first point of the Scout Law hold little meaning
to him. In Aids to Scoutmastership, Baden-Powell
states, “The first Law is one on which the whole
of a Scout’s future behavior and discipline hangs
... s0 it should be carefully explained, as a first
step, by the Scoutmaster to his boys before taking
the Scout Promise.”

The idea of honor is a difficult thing to interpret
to boys. Webster defines honor as “that which
rightly attracts esteem . . . a nice sense of what is
right, just, and true . . . excellence of character.”
A Scout once described honor as “doing the same

HONOR

things when no one is watching that you would
do if you knew someone was watching you.”

What can you do to get across this traditional
idea of a Scout's honor? Well, first of all, emphasize
this fundamental of honor with boys before they
become Scouts. As they prepare to pass their Ten-
derfoot tests, make sure they know thal honor is
expected of all Scouts, and that if they want to
join the gang they will, in giving the Scout Oath
or Promise, be pledging themselves on their honor.

Next, use a Scout’s honor whenever possible to
make a point of your belief in it. If you ever have
cause to doubt a boy, ask him to make the Scout
sign and give his Scout's honor to back up what he
has said. If he does, then you should accept his
statement. To do less would destroy the meaning of
Scout's honor in the eyes of all the Scouts in your
troop. When your troop takes on a service project,
let boys know they are on their honor to “do ex-
actly a given task”—that a sloppy job is a violation
of their Scout’s honor.

When a Scout says, “Scout’s honor,” ask him
right then to tell you in his own words what he
really meant by Scout’s honor.

Use Scout's honor as a subject for Scoutmaster's
minutes—not just once in a while, but with regu-
larity. Point out cases involving honor, and show
boys its value.

And finally, be honorable yoursell. Your personal
honor is at stake when vou lead boys. They have
a right to expect you to back up your words with
action. In dealing with boys, you can't just mouth
promises of things to come. Your honor makes
things happen because you know that if vou fail
a group of boys you can’t very well expect them to
live up to, or even understand, the great broad idea
of Scout’s honor.

e —
=




ATURE LORE AND CONSERVATION
N ﬂ T U R E == N ACTIVITIES in the outdoors have
held an important place in our
@ @ M S E n V A T I 0 N program since the early days of
Scouting. For these activities are
IN

ideally suited to teaching certain
skills and attitudes (with their prac-

m m w A N c E M E N T tical application) and also certain

citizenship traits.

O U TD O OR C O D E

Hs an American, I will do my best to —

Ay Be Clean in My Outdoor Manners

4 o« f N
R T Y KN\ I will treat the outdoors as a heritage to be improved for

R o .
: y .; Vo f . our greater enjoyment, I will keep my trash and garbage
% N ::' out of America’s waters, fields, woods, and roadways.

NS
o, £ ¥, Be Careful With Fire
AL g '
F : A g ey i : I will prevent wildfire. I will build my fire in a scxfe place
ng.;..;?“m-*‘%i /‘ 5 ‘ﬁlm% ' and be sure it is out before I leave.
b e ERH b S
\ 5 4 i - " o
.,r'_:[: iR Be Considerate in the Qutdoors
PN

I will treat public and private property with respect. I
will remember that use of the outdoors is « privilege I
can lose by abuse.

Be Conservatien-Minded

I will learn how to practice good conservation of soil,
watlers, forests, minerals, grasslands, and wildlife; and

I will urge others to do the same. I will use sportsmen-

like methods in all my outdoor activities,




Objectives

An understanding of nature and how it works is
basic to understanding conservation problems and
their solution. Keeping this in mind, there are 10 ob-
jectives of the nature-conservation requirements for
Tenderfoot to Eagle Scout.

1. To teach the skill of observation by training boys to
use their five senses to discover more about the natural
environment in which they hike or camp, and thus be
more at home and at ease in the outdoors.

2. To teach boys to recognize the principal plants and
animals in the environment where they hike or camp
so that they may use these plants or animals for their
own good and become more eflficient campers and out-
doorsmen.

3. To show boys that the world of nature—whether in
a city park or mountain wilderness—operates accord-
ing to an intricate plan, and that man must fit his ideas
to that plan,

4. To teach boys about some of the interrelationships
that exist in the world of nature among plants, ani-
mals, and their environment.

5. To arouse in boys a sincere appreciation for the
aesthetic values of nature and to help them develop
certain spiritual concepts through living with and see-
ing firsthand the wonders of God's creation.

6. To help boys develop a scientific method of thought,
showing them how careful observation and spund in-
terpretation of several observations is necessary before
coming to a conclusion. Also, to teach them to analyze
their observations without sentimentality.

7. To make boys aware of the importance of our nat-
ural resources to them personally and to the future
welfare of our country.

8. To point out some of the existing conservation prob-
lems in the community (or camp), their causes, effects,
and methods of prevention and solution.

L

SECOND CLASS
REQUIREMENTS

9. To teach boys a few basic conservation techniques
so they may learn by doing.

10. To instill in boys the conviction that conservation
is an essential part of good citizenship and that, as
active citizens, they have an obligation to protect and
preserve our natural resources.

Scouling method

The Scouting method of teaching skills, techniques,
attitudes, and ideals is through a program of activities
in which boys learn by doing. There is danger, though,
that there may be more doing than learning. Unless
a boy learns the why of what he sees or does—unless
he is taught why and how certain things in nature hap-
pen as they do-—the program will not achieve its
objective, and more harm than good may result. Re-
member, skills are secondary to atlitudes and under-
standing.

Tenderfoot test 7

“Read the Outdoor Code. Tell how you will try to
use it in the hiking and camping you will do as a Scout,

“The intent of this test is to introduce the boy to the
principles of conservation and the importance of every
Scout respecting all of Nature. Emphasis should be
placed on care with fire, proper use of knife and ax,
problems caused by disturbing sod and topsoil, and
general outdoor courtesy.”

Second Class test 7

“Identify local plants that may cause skin poisoning.
Find in the field 10 different kinds of wildlife (mam-
mals, birds, reptiles, amphibians, {ish, insects) or evi-
dence of them. Tell what they are, describe the nat-
ural surroundings where each was found, and explain
how this wildlife depends on plants.

“Ten distinctly different kinds of evidence must be
identified. For example, a crow can be counted only
once even though a nest is seen, a feather found, its




call heard, and the bird actually seen, Furthermore,
exact identification must be made from observation or
evidence. For example, the nest mentioned earlier
must be identified as a crow’s nest, and not just a bird’s
nest.”

The last part of this requirement, “describe the nat-
ural surroundings where each was found, and explain
how this wildlife depends on plants,” is important. It
was written to make a boy look a little closer, a little
longer—above and beyond a mere identification.

We want a boy to know that certain kinds of wild-
life live in the woods (tree squirrel, raccoon, wood-
pecker); others in fields (meadow lark, ground squir-
rel, field mouse); marshes (heron, muskrat, red-
winged blackbird); streams and ponds (beaver, duck,
fish, turtle) ; ete. ‘

We want Scouts to know that all animals depend on
plants, either directly or indirectly, Most marnmals use
plants for cover and shelter—lining their nests or hid-
ing their young. An opossum might make her den
under a rotting tree stump; a raccoon in a tree cavily;
a squirrel high in treetop branches. A rabbit makes her
nest in a grassy field while a doe hides her fawn in a
grassy, brushy glade close to a wooded area.

Some maminals eat plants. A few examples are deer,
antelope, muskrat, beaver, rabbit, squirrel, and mouse.
Other mammals eat smaller animals that feed on
plants and store the “plant energy” in their body tis-
sues, e.g., weasel, coyole, badger, fox, and bobceat.

Most birds build nests from plant materials and seek
shelter in vegetation. Shore birds do not use plants in
building their nests. Some eat seeds, fruit, nuts, buds
and other plant parts—for example, sparrows, juncos,
quail, pheasant, catbird, and mockingbird. Some eat
insects or other small animals that feed upon plants—
orioles, swallows, kingbirds, hawks, and owls,

We can find the same relationship to plants for rep-
tiles (snakes, turtles, lizards, alligators); amphibians
([rogs, toads, salamanders) ; fish; and insects,

1Ll

FIRST CLASS
REQUIREMENTS

The important aspect of this requirement is that
boys understand that all animals depend upon plants,
either directly or indirectly, for existence. If certain
plants are there, the animals will be there. If the
habitat is lacking in plants . . . the animals will be
lacking.

First Class test 6

“Identify in the field 10 different kinds of trees or
shrubs. Describe the area where each was found and
the usefulness of each to its surroundings or to animals
or to man,”

Identifying 10 trees or shrubs is simple. Everyone
(well practically) knows an oak, maple, pine, willow,
ete. But really, so what? What good is it to know a
tree or shrub unless you know it can be of use to man,
animals, or its surroundings? Why do we find tree
squirrels where there are acorns, nuts, or pine seed?
Where does all the lumber come from to build all our
new homes? Why is it important to have vegetation in
a watershed?

The important part of this requirement then is de-
seribing where the woody plants were found and their
usefulness. For example, we find willows, cottonwoods,
and alders near streams or moist areas; white oak,
hickory, and sugar maple in upland woods; beech in
shade; sumac and blackberries and red cedar in sunlit
areas; aspen and hirch in young woods. The usefulness
of trees and shrubs varies with the kinds, Some sup-
ply shade or an overstory for younger trees (e.g.,
aspen for Douglas fir); all help build up the soil when
they die. Some supply food and homes for wildlife
while others give us a long list of products: plywood,
siding, fuel, food, excelsior, pulp for paper, baskets,
poles, posts, furniture . . . and on and on.

Where can a boy see this? Anywhere. The city park,
a corner lot, the outskirts of town, woods, desert,
mountains, seashore, and certainly at summer camp.

Who can teach him? You.




BOARDS OF REVIEW
Presentor: Jack Mills
BOARDS OF REVIEW DISCUSSION

A 20-20 hindsight review of "boards”, starting with the Eagle and worki‘ng
back to Tenderfool. The audience should be prepared to ask questions like
they were a participani on the board.

EAGLE BOARD
A look at the responsibilities of thoss who accept the opportunity to
participate. Some guidelines and suggestions on questions.

GUIDELINES FOR ALL BOARDS
Suggestions and questions for Eagle, Star /L ife and Tender foot, second and
first class ranks

EAGLE SERVICE PROJECTS
The requirements, the how -to-do and some on how 10 review

MISCELLANEQUS i
The spirit of Scouting. Leadership, the overlooked reguirement. Scouting
sk.ilis build character.

Resources: Advancement Guidelines. Boy Scouts of America, No. 3087.

Advancement Policy and Procedures, Columbia Pacific Council
Advancement Ceremonies. Columbia Pacific Council
Eagle Board Guilde Book. Columbia Pacific Council,

B-1/9



COLUMBIA PACIFTC ORUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

et

A
.

SN

4 s U - DBR I OR REVIEWS

STAR AND LIFE PROGRESS AWARDS

ADVARCEMENT T4 SOCITING .

tive txoop will participate in activities that will
wards. The Progress Review should determine
¢ qualify the Scout for the Award that

he trocp committee will comprise the Reviewing

ot less than three members o~f + &
Group. 4 member of the District Advancement Committee may be invited to
participate and assist in tte review.

Reviews can time that a Scout believes that he is qualified
for advancement, 21t 1s advisable to schedule reviews at several
specified tim : ' - The review can be held at any convenient time.
It is important t god AN o locatzon that is free from d:stractions.

interview -nly one Sccut at a time., Inaist on uniforms, if possible, and a
Proper ennwry at the =edisw, the conversation with subjects that will
put the Sceut af 4

28 Zanpie §iziii oas
Bu  DEATYICL g N OLEETTS
i P lew. Discussicn is then
el ard. Recall the Scout
R ed, specify the required
SiMPLE STUESTIONS
SCOUT PARTTIOTPATIN

How many troop deEsTings hace you missed since ?
Have you teen pacticlpaticg in your troop camp-outs?




SCOUT LEADERSHIP AND TEAMWORK

What peosition do you hold in your =rno3?
What are the duties of a junior leadar®

What are the qualities of a good laadex?

SCOUT SPIRIT AND IDEALS

What does the Scout Oath mean to yoil?

How have various parts of the Scout Law helusd you?
Explain the meaning of the Scout Mossn.

What are you doing to fulfill the Scout Sicgan’

What does "A Scout is . " meanf

What have you done concerning the religious emblem of your church?

SERVICE PROJECT

What did you do for a service pgoject?
Fow long did it take?
What did you do in planning the pro ject?

Why do Scouts do service projects?

MERTT BADGES

Which of the merit badges did you especially enjoy? Wh;?

*
=

Which was most useful to you?
Wnat useful informaticn did you leacm in the merit badge?”
What are your plans to earn the mexit badge?

At the STAR level, direct guestiocans that emphasize helping others, especially
younger Scouts; the need for a more invelved service project fuor the Life Award;
continuation ¢f religious participation and urge the earuing of the Life Award.

At the LIFE level, emphasize servics and the Bagle service project requirements;
stress leadership and, of course, znceurage furthev Scouting activities and merit
badges to achieve the Eagle Award.

. DC/wbpw B2/

S/ 72.1000



H

FIRST CLASS C1TATION

ot ST g Scopy

20 '
e,
g &falrd
f % » £0Usa,,
i
LERE A du haer 1A \‘i\\*g‘? nd g
[ o 2k e S i Yo

{

&
f

o DA !&v-

FIRST CLASS scoUT

v ‘l .'f
BE PREPAREDY
IFs your motta, bt It's mace that thed, s s “trod sign"
that yeo with ba revdy to mevt ibe psdi of barh doy
fn foes, # foos bovand doy anflay preparalion end o
brcames o gt of your prdgeidion for e hury.

Yau have leorned the impodance bf fenaiend hy doing
your share 11 thp pairs! divd Bosp, hmlping yaunger mem.
brit and avoepling sespanibilities, -

By daing Scoutciaft kil yau hova become @ goad
camper and are sali-reliont bod trushw orthy

You know the maaning sf Scoul spirll and the mpare
e of living tha Seawt Qathond Law in your daily life
WE SALUTE YOt

This attractive certificate adds dignily {o the presentation of
First Class rank. With the pocket card, it serves as a reminder
of ¢ memorable occasion for the Scoul.

TIHEE BOARD
OF REVIEW

MISUNDERSTANDINGS on the funetion of the board
of review have been caused by the phrase “Review,
but don’t re-examine.” These words, which appear
in our literature and are used in lraining courses,
have led boards of review to avoid asking any
questions about the skills required of a Scout as
he advances in rank. The problem is not in the
words themselves, but in the interpretation of the
exact meaning of “review” and “re-examine.”

Bill has just been reviewed for a rank advance-
ment by his troop board of review. He swaggers
out of the room to report to his fellow Scouts,
“Gee, that was a snap. Those jokers didn’t ask
anything about what I did.”

In another troop, John is a nervous wreck when

the board of review finally releases him to rejoin
the troop. “You guys better know your stufl,” he
reports to the gang. “I had to signal and tie band-
ages and make'a map, and I bet if they'd had a pool
handy, I'd have had to do my swimming over
again.”

Which board of review is properly carrying out
its function? Actually, both of them are guilly of
extremes-—one of ignoring its responsibility. to see
that standards of the program are maintained; the
other of carrying on a true re-examination. .

A good board of review falls someplace belween
these two extremes. The members of the board do
spot-check skill accomplishment by asking ques-
tions at random. If it is obvious from the boy's
answers 'that he knows his stuff and has met the
tests as oullined in his handboolk, they then move
on to talk with him about the ideals of Scouting,
his understanding of them, and his activity in troop
and patrol affairs.

If the preliminary questions on skills reveal a
lack of knowledge on the part of the boy, then the
board of review has a perfect right and, in fact, is
expected to explore the area of weakness more
decply by asking additional questions on the re-
lated subject.

For example, if a simple question about treat-
ment for shock hbrings a wrong or 'an “I don't
know” answer, there is certainly an implication
that the boy is weak in his knowledge in the whole
arca of first aid, and so the board of review gets
down to cases to find out whether this was just a
slipup on the part of the boy, or whether, in fact,
he really doesn’t know the subject,

Let’s assume that he completely flubs on his
answers to first aid questions. What should the
board of review do about it? Remember, one of ihe
purposes of the board of review is to sce that
standards are maintained, and it’s pretiy clear
that this can'l be done if boys receive badges for
which they are unqualified.

It is probably best to have the boy himself admit
that he really doesn’t know his stufl, and that he
wouldn’t want to wear a badge he hadn't really
earned. Encourage him to set a target date for an-
other appearance before the board of review when

“he will be ready to completle the review 1o his own

salisfaction.

The Scoutmaster should welcome such action by
the board of review, since it strenglhens his hand
as he works with his junior leaders in encouraging
them to sece that boys really do know their stufl
before they sign-score cards.

The maintenance of standards is important to the
success of the advancement program in the troop.
If boys in one patrol can get by because their patrol
leader doesn’t ask them to do what it says in the
book, then the importance of advancement loses
much of its attractiveness to all other Scouts in the
troop.



THE BOARD
REVIEW

ﬁ. GROUP O¥ SCOUTMASTERS was shooling the
brecze about Scout hiking and camping. Several
said they just couldn’t go on all the hikes and
camps they knew should be happening. The impli-
cation, obviously, was that these men don’i permit
boys to hike or camp under boy leaders who are
gualified,

These may be the same Scoutmasters who object
to the board of review because they believe il is
checking up on them, In a very real sense, in their
case, it is a check on them because Lhey have been
unwilling to permit boys to help with the advance-
ment plan.,

The literature and training courses of ilhe Boy
Scouts of America all stress the principle that boys
can pass boys on the advancement tests of Scout-
ing for Second and First Class ranks. Preferably,
the examiner should be the patrol leader of the
Scoul being tested, but even this isn’l a require-
" ment. It could be a troop instructor, senior patrol
leader, or junior assistani Scoutmaster.

Where the correct procedure is followed, the
board of review is a source of support to the Scout-
master. The board of review becomes a checker-
upper of troop boy leaders—it is the quality-control
group that makes sure the end product of the troop
is something to be proud of.

The board of review has an obligation to see ithat
standards are maintained—that boys are passing
the tests of Scouting as they were intended to be
passed. The board also has a responsibility to de-
termine where slipshod practices are being fol-
lowed and to nolify the Scoutmaster of any evi-
dence it may come up with that might indicate
that standards are being ignored. .

It is then the job of the Scoutmaster to take steps
to correct the situation. He does this by personal
conference with the junior leader or leaders re-
sponsible for permitting their associates to meet
the tesls with less than minimum standards.

The Scoutmaster who wuses his boy Ileaders
doesn’t resent the action of a board of review in
deferring a boy. He knows that this action by the
board is in the best interest of the boy, the troop,
and troop leadership. )

Let's look at the recommended method for ac-
complishing Second Class and First Class ranks.
The individual tests are passed to qualified per-
sonnel. This includes boy leaders who hold the
rank for which the applicant is aspiring. For ex-
ample, a patrol leader who is First Class can pass
any boy in hig patrol on Second or First Class
tests. Similarly, the patrol leader can endorse the

—

.’i g e
T R

g

A.

approval of another patrol member who is also
First Class.

The Scoutmaster is responsible for certifying as

to the applicant’s attendance and activity in his

troop and patrol, and for his efforts to live accord-
ing to the spirit of the Scout Oath and Law.

The boy then appears before the troop board of
review for final approval, after which the applica-
tion is sent to the council office for processing.

The badge and certificate are presented to the
Scout at a troop court of honor.

-

-










OUTDOOR COOKING & THE GOURMET SCOUT

- THE WELL-FED HIKER

a. Ready mades § freeze dried

b. Plan your own light-weights

c. Packing

d. Fires, stoves, saftey
II. DUTCHOVEN, FOIL & NON-UTTENSIL FUN
ITI. TAILGATE COOKING--BASE CAMP

a. Drive in base camp

B. Winter lodge

c. Troop Work Shop (Leadership Training)

DISPLAYS § SAMPLES
*%  Special dishes
*% Sanitation
*%  Fires
*%  Stoves, lanterns § saftey
*%  Gadgets
%% New Ideas

#%  Fish (U-KATCHUM)

PRESENTOR: STEVE ESH




}.‘-;‘1"‘?_% Y ‘I'g
oy ;’j KUY
v

¥ R

OOKING WITHOUT UTEN-
c SILS is one of the re-

quirements for Second
Class Scout. This mo1ith's
highlight event, Look Mom
—No Pans, provides an op-
portunity for practicing
primitive methods of cook-
ing. At an outdoor feast,
each patrol cooks without
utensils a complete meal
using items described in
this article.

It is suggested that each
patrol select the menu at
their first April patrol
meeting, prepare their food
list, and make assignments
so they’ll be all set in ad-
vance of the cookout. See
page 11,

While the cooking is un-
derway, everyone should
have the opportunity of
making the rounds and ob-
serving what is being pre-
pared by others. Alert pa-
trol members to be ready
to describe their cooking
techniques.

Proper disposal of gar-
bage, putting out of fires,
and cleanup of the cooking
area must be checked.

HIGHLIGHT FOR NBEFRIL

OK MO

Hamburger on a stick

Form hamburger around a stick 1% inches thick.
Wrap string around hamburger to hold it on the stick,
season with salt and pepper, and bake over hot coals.

Tennis-racket broiler

Select a forked branch and a few thin sticks, Twist
prongs as illustrated. Place meat belween sticks and
broil over coals.

Fish on a board

Clean fish, open it along
back, remove bones, Fasten
it, skin down, to wooden
slab with wooden pegs. Peg
slices of bacon to fish. Bake
in front of fire till sliver of
wood goes readily into
thickest part of fish.

Eggs on a spit

With a knife point, pick
a tiny hole in each end of
egg. Push a thin green
wood sliver through holes.
Cook over coals for 10 min-
utes.




Hot rock cooking

Select a clean, flat
rock, tilt toward the
fire, and bake biscuits
on it, (Water-filled
rocks can explode.
Use dry stones only.)

' \ . Chicken in a packsack ;

: E 1. Build a crisscross fire lay, place half a'~ciozen small
f stones in with the fuel, and light the fire.

e

AR S TR ALY 7 2. When stones are red hot, pick them up with two
sticks and drop them into the cavity of a cleaned
chicken. Add seasoning,

Roast potatoes and carrots

Scoop out a shallow 6-inch hole and build a fire in
it. After the fire has burned down, quickly scrape out
the coals. Place potatoes in the hole along with carrots
that have been washed and wrapped in leaves. Cover
potatoes and carrots with a layer of leaves (wild grape,
maple, sweet gum, sycamore), cover with a layer of
earth about 2 inches deep, and build a roaring fire.
Keep it going for an hour or more.

3, Working fast, add seasoning to the outside of the
chicken, tie string around bird, wrap in brown
| ) paper, and place in plastic bag.

4. Place package in packsack filled with dry ieaves,
pack leaves firmly around it, and seal the packsack.

Let chicken cook for 3 or 4 hours.

Trail biscuits

Select 10 large leaves;
e.g., maple, sweet gum,
sycamore, or wild grape.
Stack five leaves and place
ball of dough on them. Set
directly on the hot coals
and let hake. When half
baked, turn the biscuit over -
and place it on second stack
of leaves, Bake until done.



Columbia Pacific Council Boy Scouts of America
Dishwashing on Scout Outings
Reference - Boy Scout Handbook - pg.132-33
- Fieldbook - pg. 186-89

WATER  SAMITIZING

ijz_w ?, o T ()

r YYASH - RINSE _i

_ -
e s Vo2 DISHWASHING PLATFORM. Lash
‘. ) poles and cross pleces as shown. |
Step 1 Step 2 __Step 3 Step 4
Wash Water Rinse Water Sanitizing Water Air Dry
Hot water with Boiling hot Hot to very warm Do not dry
detergent. clear water, clear water. dishes with
Use tongs or Add sanitab or towels.
pliers or one tablespoon
dunk bag to bleach per 2 gal.
dip dishes of water.
& cooking gear. Immerse dishes

for 2 minutes.
Understand the four steps - they apply in all situations and

maintain healthy Scouts.

Additional hints:

1. Wipe/scrape dishes as clean as possible prior to washing, but

not into dishwashing water.

Wash in an "assembly line." It speeds up the process.

Wash the least dirty items first and the dirtiest last.

Sanitabs (cat.#001923) can be ordered from the Council Service Center
or from your local Scout distributor, It is easier and safer than
carrying bleach. Nylon mesh dunk bag - Cat.#001950.

£ W

Dish Water Disposal:

1. In areas that won't see other campers “or 2 or more weeks-spread on
ground. :

2. Shallow pits - 8" deep maximum - one per troop - fill in pit after
use - check local regulations. :

Garbage Disposal:

1. Burn paper and scraps of food or carry out.

2. Do not burn plastics, styrofoam, aluminum foil and other metal containers.
Carry out - do not bury. :

3. Grease from fried foods should be poured into a container, allowed to
congeal and be carried out.

B- 23

CHR:kp:5:84



Tiw for PR a Vg DwTos @ EN .5 THE
PoI ars i

WA 4 LOURS FRIBND FOR
i RAESE T l#

"‘\"J;.QGE..

“Sumpﬁe or Fancy-
Try Them AN!”

amp activities and fresh air give
c VOUT SCOUTE ravenous appetites, So
be prepared with dishes theyvli like.

What do vou cosk for a simple patrol
meal? One ot Green Bar Bill's “quick
stews,” that's what. A list of ingradients,
designed tor 2 patrol ot eight. is on the
opposite page These ingredients can he
combined 11ito more than 200 ditferent
dishes. Here ave a few:

Want 4 quick frsh Stere? Then use
ground lamb, peas. and carrors, with the
potatoes and ondons that go into all the
recipes. Prefer Chile Con Carne? Then
use ground beef. tomatoes, kidney
beans. with chill powder added. How
about Frankjurier Stew Creole? That
takes frankfurter chunks, tomatoes, and
stringbeans. Indian-stvle Salmon
Chowder calls tor salmon, corn, lima
beans.

Start the preparation by boiling
peeled and diced potatoes in enough salt
water to cover. In another pot, melt the
butter and brown the chopped-up on-
ions. Add the gronnd meat or fish all
broken up, o1 the trankiurters in ¢ ,-inch
chunks. or nam or luncheon meat in
s-ineh cubess When the potatoes are
done, dramn otf the water, Drain off the
hgwd of the canned vegetables into a
cup. Mix potarocos, vesetables, mear, and
onons together, %(i(i Just enough vege-
table liguid o give the ~tew the right
consistency Heat overa =low fire. Serve,
and watch the guny go o !

After vou hiave ried a couple ot rhw—e
Uquick stews” rrv the recipes in vour
Official Bov Sceout Hodbook. And atrer
those. tackie the tricks cooking methods
w the Boy Scout Fividbuok. The pie-
tures and captions on these pages give
vou an idea of what's invoived in such
advanced camp cookery. Follow the
steps n the Freldbook for complete
SUC(e=s

Bonappétit! 40

ALL OUT FOR
SCOUTING

BN
AN “:“.a FAKING -
Pan sty COOKIES .
S8 O B L =tw T ﬁiN@ KING

gL “TEQ F‘QOM’-
:r‘ 5‘%..'( ﬂﬁgmM :
OOEE Wi TRICK




A Cardboard Dehydrator

The low-energy oven
witl furn out great-
tasting trall snacks.

BY BOB JOHNSON

B

When you want to make dehydrat-
ed trail food like beef jerky, you
may have one major problem: Mom and
Dad won’t want the oven on all day—
the length of time usually needed to
properly dehydrate food. Here’s an in-
expensive way to make your own low-
energy dehydrator.

You'll need these materials:

*an ordinary cardboard box approxi-

mately 14" x 14" x 20"

*aluminum foil to line the inside of

the box

» porcelain light socket

*60-watt lamp cord with plug

«four wire coat hangers

*5-inch square piece of plywood,

Mascnite, or cardboard -
*cookie pan approximately 10" x
12"x 1"

1. Line the cardboard box (including
inside the flaps) with aluminum foil (a
staple gun with short staples works
great). Cut two small vents on top.

2. Cut apart and straighten three coat
hangers with pliers. Punch three holes
three inches apart in both sides of the
box, at least halfway up. Insert the
wires to form a rack. Bend the wire
ends down on the outside to hold the

5B Y

wires in place.

3. Connect the cord to the light
socket. Cut a small hole or flap in the
box side to pass the plug through. For
safety, you can put a plastic insulation
nut (hardware store) in the hole before
inserting the cord. Cover the socket
bottom with wood, Masonite, or other
insulating material. Insert a 60-watt
bulb.

4. Straighten the remaining coat
hanger. Cut it about three inches wider
thian the box. Bend its ends inte tight
hooks. When the doors are closed, hook i
the h: 7er into two side holes to keep
the uvea hut.

5. Place th. lamp in the oven bottom.
Pass its cord through the opening. Place
a pan with an oven thermometer in it on
the rack, close and secure the box doors,
and turn on the light. Let the tempera-
ture stabilize for % to % hour. Use the
vents for temperature observation as
well as for slight adjustments. If the
temperature is too low, try a 75-watt
lamp. A 60-watt bulb should bring the
temperature to about 120°F, Once
you've got the right temperature, you're
ready to go. (For the recipe for beef
Jerky, see the August '77 Boys' Life.) %

BOYS' LIFE 4 NOVEMBER 1978




A Portable
Camp
Kitchen

You can move this
patrol kitchen like a
stretcher or divide it

fo carry on backpacks.

BY GLENN WAGNER

Eta - .

—

wWOuD BUTTON

Ya's Va3’ sorats et S,
c& L
: e —
e
-

[1=3
LEG BOLT mOLE DETAIL

18

2CUND £HODS OF LEGS
OBOUT Sva’ FROM ENDS
TO MAKE HANDLES

ORILL 3 ¢ Wis" HOLES
FOR BOLTS AS REQUIRED

TOP § B0TTOM

- 12 e s T
!_I : :—E‘_‘B‘ng\‘m T e
23 ; ‘[i i sMELvEs | A-'“’J e
l _i_ LR - ; I I ,,’J'ﬂ ' sTOVE
: i ! MemDing ) | Qﬂ \ BouT
' R o
3 - T‘- LATe i
u i . Vi e i
= ; ! / W 2 stove
- “a i {l %! BOLTS 4
] PIANO HINGE [ {0l oilir
! ! /14" LoNG i o
i ! / :
o] - L . . . |
| 12 e 16 —
; ‘lﬁT\T"\/’
! =

i
R —— s i
i == v
1 : i i
[ : ot
/ S
; velni 2R (| i
i STOVE BOLT I i )
I I
) fﬁ [ :
& LENGTH OF (i j
FLAT 3451 CHAIN " i :
~ [ h J
g i
i |
'
i tol ."
i i
| e | o L
i
(]
: < 3 i
i iy
! . N
~n .
-~ LEGS
Y 347 1 %q m 52"
= T POMOERSSA PINE
H T OASH 0Q van
i ; ot -
" — Yy .
i e (- o a - 1z
i - |t
S I S

T
SOLT HOLE DETAIL
FOR 210E5

VARER G

BMMEI 1 tee 4 ssseam s

® two ¥g”

cout patrols at the National Scout
Jamboree and at other long-term
camps this summer will be using
camp kitchens like the one shown
here.
Designed by Roe Varcoe, unit com-
missioner of Troop 159, Succasunna,
N.J.,, this model has a neat two-unit
feature that makes it practical for
packing into out-of-the-way camp-
sites. The two 13” x 16” x 20” units
can be carried, stretcher-fashion, or
on a backpack, to camp and then are
bolted together. The stretcher han-
dles become legs and the box becomes
a kitchen.
To make one, you’ll need:
® one 4” x 8 sheet of %"
for box parts and shelves
® four pieces 33” x 131" x 527 pon-
derosa pine, ash. or oak for the
legs

® eight pieces 34" x
for cleats

® two 18" lengthy flat sash chain

@ one 30” continuous hinge (piano
hinge) cut into two 14”7 or 15~
lengths

@ four pieces 33" x 34” x 27 hard-
wood for buttons

For fastenings:

e eight 14" x 1%” R.H. stove bolts
and wing nuts (legs tc boxes)

e four 14” x 1”7 R.H. stove bolts and
wing nuts (bhox to box)

® two %8” x 1”7 F.H.

(chains to box sides)
x 1”7 R.H.

(chains to lids)
® four 34” No. 8 F.H. wood acrews

(buttons)
¢ one 73” x 4” mending plate and

two %1¢” x 1”7 I.H. stove bolts with

wing nuts
® 4d (13%”) rosin-coated box nails
and white glue (box assembly)

Where bolts with wing nuts are
used. you can substitute T-nuts and
wing bolts.

If weight is important for back-
packing, use 1i” plywood for the
back panels and shelves, Cut the ply-
wood panel lengthwise into three
pieces—one 167 wide and two 127
wide. All plywood parts can be cut
from these three strips. Use a circu-
lar saw equipped with a hollow-
ground plywood blade, if you have
access to one.

Then, following the photos and di-
mensions, drill all bolt holes in the
sides before assembling the boxes
(use a drill press, if available, for
accuracy). Drill 'is” pilot holes in
the panels for all nails.

After a final sanding, apply a coat
of plywood sanding sealer. Then
paint it any color you choose. <>

plywood

34" x 12” pine

stove bolts

stove belts






TRAINING JUNIOR LEADERS
I. Scoutmaster's responsibilities

II. Training Vechiles
a. Orientation to Junior Leader

b. Training conference

c. Troop Operation Workshop
III. Advanced Junior Training

a. Brownsea

b. Polaris

PRESENTOR:  GARY SANFORD

B-/3¢



INTRODUCTION TO LEADERSHIP

(Designed for Patrol Leaders)

Method
- Personal Coaching
- At Scoutmaster's home or one of the boy's

Welcome to Scouting's Toughest Job

Duties to the Patrol (The Patrol Leader's Code)
The Promises of Scouting

Building Patrol Spirit

Problem solving

Getting along with others

The Patrol Leaders' Council

Successful Patrol Meetings (The 3 C's & 3 P's)

Closing

[3-/38



JUNIOR LEADER ORIENTATION WORKSHOP

One day event

Put on by the District Training Committee
Conducted by Key Boy Leaders

Scoutmaster and troop junior leaders attend
Explore some functions of leadership
Meetlin small similar groups to discuss
duties of their position and how to carry

them out effectively.

Boy leaders meet with their Scoutmaster and

plan their Troop Junior Leader Training program.

B-/3¢



TROGP OPERATIONS WORKSHOP

THE JUNIOR LEADER ORIENTATION WORKSHOP WILL GIVE YOUR BOY
LEADERS A GOOD OVERVIEW OF THEIR JOBS. NOw IT’S TIME TO
GET INTO THE DETAILS OF YOUR OWN TROOP AND HOW TO MAKE IT
SUCCEED, THE TROOP OPERATIONS WORKSHOP 1S DESIGNED TO
GUIDE YOU THROUGH THE TRAINING OF YOUR OWN PATROL LEADERS
AND OTHER SELECTED JUNIOR LEADERS,

As SCOUTMASTER, YOU WILL WANT TO GIVE YOUR PERSONAL LEADER-
SHIP TO THIS TRAINING, YOUR ASSISTANT SCOUTMASTER, MEMBERS
OF THE TROOP COMMITTEE, AND OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS CAN HELP,
THIS GIVES THE SCOUTS A CHANCE TO WORK WITH SEVERAL ADULTS
AND MAKES THE TRAINING MORE LIVELY AND INTERESTING, BE
CAREFUL, HOWEVER, NOT TO OVERPOWER THE JUNIOR LEADERS WITH
TOO MANY ADULTS,

Lri37



PLANNING THE TRAINING

SELECT A 0 MAKE IT A NEW EXPERIENCE FOR JUNIOR
LocaTION LEADERS.,
0 AwAY FROM THE TROOP'S NORMAL AREA OF
ACTIVITY ‘
0 VACATION CABIN
0 HUNTING LODGE
0 YoutH Camp
o CaBINs AT Scout Camp
0 CHURCH caAmP
- SELECT A 0 RECOMMEND FRIDAY NIGHT AND SATURDAY
DaTE
ADVANCE 0 SENIOR PATROL LEADER HAS-A VITAL ROLE
PLANNING 0 AsST, SCOUTMASTERS AND OTHER ‘ADULTS

SHOULD BE ASSIGNED TO BACK-UP YOUTH
AND TAKE CARE OF MEALS |

0 CHECK AND DOUBLE-CHECK TO MAKE SURE
ALL SUPPLIES ARE READY

o CounciL SERVICE CENTER CAN HELP WITH
SOME OF THE SUPPLIES

"NOTE: OuTDOOR COOKING AND TENT LIVING MAY DETRACT FROM
THE REAL PURPOSE OF THE PROGRAM.

&3 ~/5F



FRIDAY EVENING
SESSITON 1

THE LEADERSHIP TEAM JOB
(SCOUTMASTER PRESIDES)

NoTE: IF THE GROUP HAS PARTICIPATED IN THE JUNIOR

" LEADER TRAINING WORKSHOP, THIS WILL BE A BRIEF REVIEW,
IF NOT, A MORE DETAILED COVERAGE WILL BE NEEDED BUT
LIMIT IT To ABouT 20 MINUTES,

OPENING 0 SENIOR PATROL LEADER CONDUCTS -
CEREMONY Use PatroL LEADER HANDBOOK

WHAT's 0 ASK EACH JUNIOR LEADER TO

My JoB DESCRIBE HIS JOB IN HIS OWN WORDS.

CONFIRM THEIR 0 REVIEW THEIR DUTIES IN THE
OPINION PATROL LEADER HANDBOOK

THE LEADERSHIP 0 LIKEN TO A FOOTBALL TEAM:

TEAM SCOUTMASTER 1S THE COACH
SENIOR PATROL LEADDER - QUARTERBACK
PaTroL LeaDers’' CounciL - TEAM

/B-/39



SESSION 2

BRAINSTORM TIME

(SENIOR PATROL LEADER PRESIDES)

“IF YOU WERE A MEMBER OF THE GREATEST ScOUT TROOP
IN THE WHOLE WORLD, WHAT DO YOU THINK SHOULD BE IN
THE TROOP'S PROGRAM?”

BRAINSTORM

SUMMARY

EVERYONE'S IDEA COUNTS AND IS
IMPORTANT, DON'T EVALUATE IDEAS,

TRIGGER NEW SUBJECTS WITH QUESTIONS,
- "How ABOUT SOME SKILL AWARD THINGS"
- "WHAT KIND OF HIKE"

- "WHERE couLD WE Go"

- "ANY IDEAS ON TROOP GOOD TURN"

WHEN IT LOOKS LIKE YOU HAVE A GOOD
LIST, CALL THE BRAINSTORMING TO A HALT,

PoST EASEL PAD SHEETS ON THE WALL

IN THE MORNING YOU WILL GO OVER
IDEAS AND PICK SOME FOR TROOP PROGRAM.

/‘g “//é‘/d:'



CLOSING PERIOD
(SCOUTMASTER PRESIDES)

QUIET THE 0 ASK BEST SONG LEADER TO LEAD

GRrRoup SOME QUIET SoNGS, (THIS wiILL
ASSIST IN QUIETING THINGS DOWN
FROM THE BRAINSTORMING SESSION,)

REVIEW 0 THANK THE SENIOR PATROL LEADER FOR
HIS EFFORTS AND THE JUNIOR LEADERS
FOR THEIR GOOD IDEAS,

SCOUTMASTER’S

MINUTE

CLOSING 0 Ask THE SENIOR PATROL LEADER TO

CEREMONY LEAD THE GROUP USING A CEREMONY
FROM THE PATRoOL LEADER HANDBOOK,

FELLOWSHIP 0 FEVENING SNACK - MAKE IT SPECIAL

@'— /f?/‘/"



SATURDAY MORNING
SESSTON 5

Your TroOP PROGRAM
(SCOUTMASTER AND SENIOR PATROL LEADER)

CREATE TroOP 0 TROOP ACTIVITIES THAT WORKED
PROGRAM FROM WELL LAST YEAR

IDEAS FROM BRAINSTORMING

3oy ScouT ProGRAM HELPS

CHECK OTHER 0 CounciL aND DisTRICT CALENDAR
RESOURCES 0 CHURCH CALENDAR

0 SCHOOL CALENDAR

0o HoLIbpays
Put 17 ALL 0 PUT EVERYTHING DOWN ON THE
DOWN ON TROOP TROOP PLANNING WORKSHEET
CALENDAR

ACTION BREAK

OUTDOOR GAME OUT OF THE PATROL LEADER HANDBOOK CONDUCTED
BY THE ASST. SENIOR PATROL LEADER OR PROGRAM PATROL

S~ YL



SESSITON 4§

TRAINING TO GROW

WHERE ARE 0 (GO OVER WHERE EACH OF THE JUNIOR
You? LEADERS ARE IN ADVANCEMENT
PATROL | 0 LEADERS NEED TO SET THE EXAMPLE
ADVANCEMENT IN ADVANCEMENT
WHERE DO WE o Troor MEETING
TRAIN? o PaTroL MEETING

o HIkKES

o CaMp ouTs

0 PERSONAL COACHING
EFFECTIVE 0 OBJECTIVE
TEACHING o Discovery

0 TEACHING - LEARNING

0 APPLICATION

0 EVALUATION

0 REcYcLE

LUNCH BREAK
PREPARE LUNCH, CLEAN UP, HAVE A REST PERIOD

SATURDAY AFTERNOON ACTIVITY
HAVE AN OUTDOOR ACTIVITY USING THE PATROL LEADER HANDBOOK

LZ-/#3



ProGrRAMS NEED
PLANS

PLANNING
STEPS

PRACTICAL
PLANNING
PROJECT

REPORTS

SESSTON 5

MAKING IT HAPPEN

0 AsSK THE SCOUTS TO IMAGINE HOW THEY

WOULD CARRY A BUCKET FULL OF WATER
IF IT DIDN'T HAVE A HANDLE, IT’s
AWKWARD, TAKES BOTH HANDS, AND YOU'RE
LIKELY TO SPILL SOME OF THE WATER,
WITH A HANDLE, IT'S EASY |

EXPLAIN THAT GOOD PLANS ARE THE
"HANDLE"” ON A PROGRAM, WITHOUT
GOOD PLANS, A PROGRAM IS AWKWARD
AND HARD TO MANAGE, AND LIKE THE
WATER IN THE BUCKET, YOU COULD' LOSE
SOME OF 1IT, ‘

TEACH 6 STEPS TO PLANNING

FORM GROUPS OF THE PATROL LEADERSHIP
TEAM, GIVE THEM A PROJECT TO PLAN,

HAVE EACH GROUP REPORT ITS PLANS

B-rstsf



Dismiss THE LEADERSHIP TEAM FOR FREE TIME ACTIVITY

SCOUTMASTER CONFERENCES - GETTING TO KNOW EACH LEADER
BETTER,

SPECIAL DINNER - Bareecue, Steak Fry, CHILI FEED OR
ONE OF THE ADULTS FAMous DutcH Oven

SPECIALS

SUMMARY

CLEAN-UP AND DEPORT FOR HOME

-/



SUMMARY

SCOUTMASTER'S MOST IMPORTANT JOB:

** LEADERSHIP TRAINING **

INTRODUCTION TO LEADERSHIP

JUNITOR LEADER ORIENTATION WORKSHOP @ - -

TROOP OPERATIONS WORKSHOP
TRAINED
BROWNSEA DOUBLE-TWO

POLARIS

B-,Ae



GCHEEN BAR BILL SAYS:

TRAIN 'EM, TRUST-EN

“The patrol method is not one way of running &

troop—it is the right way!” it says here in my
Scoutmaster’s Handbook. Well, as far as I am con-
cerned, it is not only the right way, it’s the only

way!
Baden-Powell himself pointed out that the
patrol method is “the one single feature in which Scout
training differs from that of all other organizations.”

We are not running a school or recreational club or
military establishment where some other type of organ-
ization and some other form of training may be more
effective—we are trying to achieve the specific purpose
of Scouting: “to promote . . . the ability of boys to do
things for themselves and others, to train them in Scout-
craft, and to teach them patriotism, courage, self-reliance,
and kindred virtues . . ' We know positively that that
purpose can best be achieved through the patrol method
with small, permanent groups of boys working together
under the responsible leadership of one of their number
—the patrol leader.

The most important responsibility that you have as a
Scoutmaster is to make this leadership successful. Other
people—experts in various phases of Scouteraft—may be
able to help your patrol leaders become good at axman-
ship or pioneering or signaling. But only one person—
you, their Scoutmaster—can train them for the specific
‘eadership they nced to be successful in their specific
patrols in their specific troop.

How do you do it? By placing increased emphasis on
one of the two functions of the patrol leaders’ council.

Patrol leaders’ council

As made clear in the Scoutmaster’s Handbook, the
patrol lcaders’ council has two funciions: (1) It is the
managing body of the troop and (2) the training ground
of the patrol leaders.

To take care of the first function, the patrol leaders
meet with the senior patrol leader and other leaders of
the troop to plan the program of the troop and to assign
leadership responsibilities for carrying it out.

To take care of the second function, the council turns
itself into a leaders’ patrol—popularly known as the
Green Bar Patrol from the fact that the members carry
the green bars of patrol léadership on their sleeves.”

You, the Scoutmaster, are the patrol leader of this
patrol. The senior patrol leader functions as assistant
patrol leader, while assistant and junior assistant Scout-
masters take turns as special helpers, getting equipment
together and judging games and contests.

Training for leadership -

The very first meeting of the patrol leaders’ council
sets the tone for all subsequent sessions. To establish an
effective leaders’ patrol, you run this first meeting exactly
the way a new patrol leader would want to run his first
‘meeting. You settle on a name; you try out the kind of

tricks and stunts that help create patrol spirit such as
sketching the design of a flag, rehearsing a patrol call or
a yell or a song; and you organize the gang for patrol
efficiency and individual training.

In all of this, go about things with a light touch. Enjoy
yourself and get your leaders to enjoy themselves as well.
Wind up the session by pointing out how many things.
have becn covered that can be applied directly in each
of the patrols.

Where do you go from here? That depends on your
patrols and your immediate troop program. If a major

-project is coming up shortly such as a first aid event,

orienteering race, or camporee, you arrange for a leaders’
patrol meeting or a hike or a camp that will, as closely
as possible, suggest the real thing. With that kind of pre-

‘liminary training and guidance your patrol leaders will

be able to prepare their boys for the big event and make
certain that their patrols will make a good showing.

If you want to train your patrol leaders thoroughly in
all phases of patrol leadership, you can do it in half a
dozen meetings of the Green Bar Patrol plus a hike and
an overnight camp. You simply base your training on the
Handbook for Patrol Leaders.

First meeting: Patrol Spirit and Patrol Organization—

Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4
Second meeting: Patrol Meetings—Chapter 5
Third meeting: Patrol Hikes—Chapter 6 .
Hike of the leaders’ patrol—using activities planned at

third meeting
Fourth meeting: Patrol Advancement—Chapter 8
Fifth meeting: Patrol Features—Chapters 9 and 10
Sixth meeting: Patrol Camps \

Overnight camp of the leaders’ patrol—using activities

planned at sixth meeting. Cover Chapters 11 and 12

around campfire,

Keep in mind that the reason for having these training
sessions is to provide each boy leader with material he
can take home and apply in his own patrol. Introduce
nhew games and stunts, new Scoutcraft tricks, new ways of
learning the advancement skills; but, more important
than anything else, make the boys realize that the kind
of spirit that builds up in a leaders’ patrol when every-
one pitches in can be built up in each patrol if the leader
puts into practice the things he has learned.

Eventually, by turning the leaders’ patrol into a model
for all the patrolg of the troop, you should have a bunch
of patrol leaders who really know their job and who are
able to say, “my own Scoutmaster trained me!”

And if you don't think that’s important . . . well, then
you have another think coming!

oV






@
/R
Ff&esa\‘m&*
Teuo7 L.(we,

B4



INDIAN LORE

I. Capote Making

a. History of garment

b. Construction techniques
II  Leather Stuff

a. Tanning

b. Where to find

& What to make
III. Clothing § beadwork

a. How to make

b. When--Where--Why its Worn

PRESENTOR: Trudy Lane

LS-/50



HUDSON'S BAY CAPOTE

INSTRUCTIONS

The Hudson's Bay Capote or Blanket” ¢ oat was used extensively
fﬂ” mountainmen ard Indian alike. Its case ff constructron and

ly practical wearng 5«4//?9?5 made & a Highly desirable
possession on the early ﬁmtz&n

MATERIALS: One 72490 Blankel (preforably 10} wool ):
HUDSON 5 BAY 4 poief. or PENOLETON FARK tore

SIhTiey Saliér Blanket m.ga ce 1522,

¥ ydnﬂ" ’ 47-’ /:y/w;jm/h ribbon (includes hem)
SIZE: This pattern can be used for Sizes 40-52

Back length of paflern allsizes  46°
Sleeye lzrym 51Z¢ 4042 : 34" lng
5I2e 44-52° 36 long
This blanket Capote (5 made from 1 blamket and has sdf fringe
aroyd  armhle, /:mk ard cefm hood as nofed on paﬁa&.fn 7

FORE cuttmng , check back | (mmm'fmn base of neck to hemling
ge M;/ J (%450!? o Y Comer 4{ 12 frvished skew

hished” sleeve lengrh 4 ,
length). Make necessary” adfustméen DEFORE cotilng. This 1s important
correct position & STrpEs.

DIRECTIONS: A supsested lagout size 44-48 follows. Nete:fringe s
caf 7 C‘W’ﬂyf-" ﬁmlsl/!d or asnoted T i J

|

B R | ittt o
H

B

T e i et Uy

A TR -—— g S ANy

_’J__f___,..&-——- z -#-.——---{:—#—"
- S iy |

-

— ma

e

LLALR TER L AT

ahiie o | heod
decorative ﬁ;myf ﬁ i f:‘l,b.r

A ¥

ASTUEL

(5-r57



BODY- 1R ij}ff sides fD?efmf, watzh notdhes, sew shovider seanms

SLEEVE: 2 Bind coff with ribhon ";"” fo r’ ’;’ﬁ;;
siee
: / / WVa:("ﬂ
: WRONG

s1d¢

iW‘ﬁ\ mﬁrf 5/4(5 fher sew
am, ,,mfcmy Y

4 flace sleeve marm- _

e, f‘;””" 5/4(5 8
‘ e pin - Right
' fonds Z_ 7‘5 u)rmpfl( 5?2

arim 6; Cut -frm7c

HOW 5. Matth nofzhes on conler back and S€W.

b. rid fringe back, rfjlrt sides fogether, on
fold' line.. Stitch Yo" from fold line 0 hold
in place . c'arfr/ye ,

¢ 7o jorn hood fo bo!z ‘ﬁ’,«z rzﬁ #t sldeof heood <o
’f’ &k thien aa"ﬁ«,?

Way side of capott a /feab and heod
Sam b m&crlm( Cafﬁvqe fold back 1o cover
5h:‘dm1j Hem seam qlowance to wmside of
afpfe

2. 0n right side bind shoolder and armehale seam with ribbon.
Then pind ::/Zf of hoad and capde. Bind hem if blanket
15 pol” ab nisHeA. '

5 - r”/gré



9. tut haod >tvipsamd decorative frin ¢ on
hood %{

GREEN RIVER. FORGE. 1TD.

/3 '—//‘ -'3 .

some capoles ave
beaded Svips on
shovlder seam - Place
o jmymm.

—~
-

! f(t@oﬁubmw
a

e -
ity N0 i e

3
p

2 /":-
kL 4
A

g
3



STAMP FIVE, TOE STEP — One
foot is brought down with a
stamp and the other foot malkes
light taps, the number depending
on the beat. On the loud beat,
the tapping fool stamps down,
and the other foot becomes the
tapper.

€OSTUME

HOP HOP
/':k,";

RIGHT
HOP STEP — This is a skipping
step with a double hop on each
foot. All dancing is done on the
balls of the feet. The heels do
not touch the ground at any time
during this dance slep. The knees
are lifted high, :

TOE-HEEL STEP—Each foot is ad-
vanced 50 the toe just touches the
ground. The heel is then brought
down with force. The loe touches
on the loud drumbeat, and the
heel is brought down on the soft
beat. Exaggerated body motions
may accompany this siep.

BREECHCLOTH — This is a piece
of cloth as long as the height of
the wearer and about a foot wide.
The ends are looped over the
bell, front and back.

WOODLAND ONE-PIECE MOCCASIN

MEASURE
QUND

USE SOFT
INSTEP BUCKSKIN

MAKE 3/4" CUT

3/4" FROM
FOLDED BOTTOM

ROUGH SIDE

FLATTEN HEEL
AND CUT OFF
FLAP STRAIGHT
ACROSS

WITH STRIP OF
BEADWORK

OJIBWAY MOCCASINS (People of the Puckered Moccasins)
A —

[a]
c
=1
=\

M- 27—

T
a ~
DRAW A STRAIGHT "‘. i

OUTLINE

OF YOUR ;llgg g;l ,EH',':HE" s,
FOCT oM BROADEST PART |
BUCKSKIN g ART

OF YOUR FOOT,
k THEN MEASURE

2", FOLD,
DRAW A CURVE,
THEN CUT.

A

TURN HEEL INSIDE-OUT; IN-
SERT A WELT STRIP AND
SEW UP THE BUTTED HEEL
SEAM; CUT OFF SURPLUS

THERE ARE NO

WILL SHAPE
THEMSELYES

5 ‘“//f; ‘%

L

TONGUE

LEFTS OR RIGHTS;

BACK

TRIM HEEL TO LENGTH
AND CUT NOTCH

EXTRA PIECE
FOR CUFF

Wy

Cin, poa T -






ADULT PARTICIPATION

Scouting is a program for boys and run by boys. Adult leadership and adult involvement
are delicate and complex issues. Understanding the Boy Scouts of America methodology is
best undertaken by attending training sessions. Councils provide excellent training for adult
leaders in Scouting.

Selection of adults to participate in the leadership role with the Scoutmaster can be a
very natural process. As a new Scout becomes exicited with the program, the parents will
also he interested with it and how it affects their son. At this point some adults may actively
seck fo assist the troop. More often, an adult must be invited to take on certain tasks.

New parents must understand that the program cannot tolerate a “don’t have time”
attitude. All adults must “make time” for their son’s Scouting activities.

The Assistant Scoutmasters must be selected for their ability to deal with both young
and old Scouts. Generally, a large number of Assistant Scoutmasters is discouraged. Some
Scoutmasters feel that three is about right for most troops of 20 to 30 Scouts. Too many
adult overseers can leave the Scouts feeling that the program is like the direct supervision
program in Club Scouting. '

The committee members are less visible, but important management resources. Commit-
tee assistance is very important in setting troop policies, especially for finances and trans-
portation. Maintaining parents that have older Scouts as committee members s important
to keeping a broad base of experience in the committee. Wood Badge training is advisable
for comnittee members, especially new ones. Knowing the Scouting philosophy and how the
principles are translated into application assures that all adults are approaching troop issues
from the same perspective. The committee members and adult leaders must always be on
guard not to make the troop an adult run program.

Adult enthusiasm is an important factor which must be considered in developing and
maintaining a quality Scout program. There are no instantaneous rewards for Scout leaders.
The most satisfying long-term reward is seeing immature boys develop into mature and
responsible young men. Special ways of saying thank you on a short-term basis are necessary.

Conrts of Honor are good times to show appreciation. )

Providing regular sharing experiences between Scouts and parents also helps in developing
adult enthusiasm. An annual family camp-out, with organized recreation, can reinforce the
support of the Scout program at home. Achieving adult fellowship is just as important as
achieving Scout fellowship.

Good communication with parents will also help. Casual communication can often occur
if parents bring their son to weekly troop meetings. A more formal method of communication
is through the use of monthly newsletters for both Scouts and parents.

When a Scout troop has good adult enthusiasm, it is easier to get volunteers. More
volunteers lead to less “burn-out”, which in turn leads to better programs. Good programs

holster Scout enthusiasm and the cycle motivates itself and improves.

As a final thought, remember “Scouts will teach Scout leaders how to work with them.
Scout leaders must learn to work with adults on their own.”

{2



iR

SUPPORT YOUR LOCAL SCOUTMASTER
Presentor: Yernaun D. Chipman -

WHY SUPPORT YOUR LOCAL SCOUTMASTER?

A. Theboys

B.  The program

WHQ SUPPORTS YOUR LOCAL SCOUTMASTER?

A.  National, council, district

B.  Charteringorganization - scout coordinator

C.  Troop committee

I

e
<
T
]

Parents of Scouts
Members of chartered organization
Persons interested in youth

HOW DO YOU SUPPORT YOUR LOCAL SCOUTMASTER?
A Committee organization

P

@ NN W N

B.
WHAT DO YOU DO TO SUPPORT YOUR LOCAL SCOUTMASTER?
Commyittee functions

>

I

N RN VNN

Chairman

Program planning and support
Advancement

Outdoor program support
Leadership

Finance and recoreds
Equipment and supplie_s
Membership

Chairman

Program planning « nd support
Advancement

Outdoor program support
Leadership

Finance and records
Equipment and supplies
Membership

B -7



y.

WHEN DO YOU SUPPORT YOUR LOCAL SCOUTMASTER?
A, Monthly

B.  When requested

C.  When needed

/3 - 3’/ -SFJ;_



B-159



CEREMINIES

Le Reasons/Purposes

II. Courts of honor

III. Others--Why-~-When—-Props
IV. Indoor/outdoor

V. Joint Crossover

PRESENTOR: STU WILSON

B-/éo0



-"’" N
., \ SN
‘ '- . Y
i & o '-',
4 7 )
A ! 4 W
: 4 ; 0
7 ; ; g i)
q ‘ % %
)- A :’
St ¥ 5 -2 0
= n \\ N 4 ~‘_‘ 5 '_5
.. &3 Y |9 o WA
' £ 7
: B alt
PSSR i h e
Lo S 2 -~
B P )
&7 ‘TL‘" i ‘? hl
f’ \'\ ¥ W)
g -\\ N IO
i/ { By
7 N . MASTHEAD
4 b KNOT
7] s
' ©,
. R

'EM RIGHT
By WALTER MacPEEK

Associate Edilor of ScouTing Magazine

A ceremony to welcome a pros-
pective Scouf, assign him fo a
pairel, and start him to work.

NOT BY INTENTION but through oversight, the new
boy is often ignored, his enthusiasm neglected, and his
eagerness overlooked. Sometimes he may be merely
curious—not really determined to be a Scout—yet he
is usually open to conviction. Sometimes his genuine
interest turns to a feeling of hurt disappointment and
he is lost to Scouting—before he has ever made a start,

The following ceremony—without candles, darkened
room, or blindfold—takes only a few moments and has
a practical content which helps in getting the candidate
assigned to a patrol and started right. The piece of
rope has a symbolism that ties him to his patrol from
the start.

SENIOR PATROL LEADER, JUNIOR ASSISTANT SCOUTMAS-
TER, OR OTHER TRoOP LEADER: We are glad to have you
visit us. Are you serious in wanting to join one of the
patrols of our troop?

PROSPECTIVE ScouT: (Answers in his own words.)

SENIOR PATROL LEADER OrR OTHER: Why do you want
to be a Scout?

ProspecTIVE ScouT: (Tells in his own words.)

SENIOR PATROL LEADER OR OTHER: There sre many
steps up the Scout ladder. They sometimes call for hard
work, but they lead the way to real fun and satisfac~
tion. Do you plan to climb-—to advance in Scouting-—
with energy and enthusiasin?

PROSPECTIVE ScouT: (Answers.)

SeENIOR PAaTrROL LEADER OR OTtiier: flave you made a
choice of which palrol in our troop you'd like to join?

PROSPECTIVE ScouT: (Expresses his choice.)

SENIOR PATROL LEADER OR OTHER (turns to patrol
leader of chosen patrol and addresses him by name):

Scout ........, patrol leader of the ........ Patrol,
(name) wanis Lo join your patrol. Have you room for
him with the Beavers (Bears, Coyotes, or whatever)?

PaTroOL LEADER: We have, but we want to be sure that
he will be a good Beaver (name of patrol).

SENIOR PATROL LEADER OR OTHER: We place this rope
over your shoulders to be worn there during this troop
meeting except when you are actually using it in knot
tying—and until you become a full-fledged Tenderfoot
Scout. This rope is a symbol of close friendship—{ricnds
who are tied firmly together through cormmmon interests
and objectives.

We don’t think you should wear this rope too long—
a couple of wecks at the most. Your patrol leader will
take it from you on the night you are invesied as a
Tenderfoot Scoul. It will then be tied in a knot similar
to a clover, and presented to you to display in your
room at home as your first trophy won in Scouting.

FIRST MEMBER OF THE PATROL: Fvery Scout knows
the history and forms of respect due to the American
flag (Scout elaborates on this requirement).

SECcOND MEMBER OF THE PATROL: All Scouls know how
to make rope work for them. A Scout knows how to
tie a knot to fit any need. (Scout elaborates on this
requirement.)

THIRD MEMBER OF THE PATroL: Every Scout knows
what Scouting is and what it stands for. He knows its
history, badges, and so on. (Scout elaborates on the
suggestion that while any boy may adopt the Scout
ideals as the pattern for his living, the public taking of
the Scout Oath and the added dedication of himself to
live by the Scout Law is an honor that is especially
reserved for Scouts.) ‘

ScouTMASTER: You will, therefore, stand in silence
while the troop repeats together the Scout Law by
which we live. (Troop repeats the Scout Law.)—Now
we will repeat the Oath which helps us to keep on the
Scouting trail. (Scoitt Qath renewed.)



AMERICAN
HERITAGE
CAMPFIRES/

By DAVID M. DUNBAR
Assistant National Director,
Camping Se;vice, B.S.A.

0 N SATURDAY EVENING, July 18, a surge of Scouting
friendship and Scouting spirit will sweep across Amer-
ica for this is the night for American heritage camip-
fires, coast to coast. At historic Valley Forge, twelve
hundred troops at the Sixth National Jamboree will
set the pattern with their campfires.

Throughout America, troop campfires will be held
on the sandy beaches of the Atlantic; in vacant lots in
cities; in nearly a thousand Boy Scout camps in moun-

tains, on the plains, on the rims of canyons, and along

the peaceful Pacific coastline.

Each troop and its friends will gather in the firelight

to sing, to laugh, to think about the unlimited blessings
of our America, and to give sincere thanks to those
great Americans who have gone up the trail ahead of
us—who have given us the heritage that we must strive
to pass on untarnished to those who will come after us.

Every troop leader should make specific plans for
these American heritage troop campfires on July 18.

/2

s
fon /”C;.;:’ ‘2,

..

No Boy Scout should be denied this nationwide experi-
ence in Scouting brotherhood. g §

The following suggestions can help make your camp-
fire an enjoyable, profitable, and deeply inspiring
occasion: :

1. Select now the adult and junior leaders who will

develop the campfire program.

2. Choose a suitable campfire site, Be sure that per-
mission to use it is obtained and that the area is
safe from all fire hazards.

Select a patrol to build and tend the fire.

4. Arrange the exact time of arrival at the fire site.
It is good to arrive in silence.

&

Camplfire suggestions

As the group assembles, sing some well-known
Scouting songs (fire may be unlit at this time), Hava
an impressive opening ceremorny and fire lighting,



opening ceremony might feature American Indians, a
colonial soldier in uniform, an American pioneer, a
colonial drummer boy, a frontier woodsman, or the
13-starred flag. Your fire could be lighted by flint and
steel, bow and drill, matches, or by dramatic means
as shown on pages 168-71 of Troop Activities.

The opening statement, by one of the above, should
be most dramatic and compelling. This depends on
your theme. For example: :

“Our forefathers at Concord, Massachusetts, laid
down the beginning of American freedom when Cap-
tain Parker said, ‘Stand your ground. Don’t fire unless
fired upon, but if they mean to have a war, let it begin
here’

“And they were fired upon. They did stand their
ground, and the Revolutionary War did begin there.”

Or quote from Patrick Henry: “The war has actually
begun, Why stand we here idle? Is life so dear or peace
so sweet as to be purchased at the price of chains and
slavery? Forbid it, Almighty God. I care not what
course others may take but as for me, give me liberty
or give me death.”

Or use other quotations from the Strengthen Amer-
ica's Heritage packet.

Songs can do much to determine the tenor of your
campfire. Here are some songs that should be effective.
“Yankee Doodle,” “America,” “Dixie,” “Battle Hymn
of the Republic,” “Home on the Range,” “America,
the Beautiful,” “God Bless America,” “Make America
Proud of You,” “The Marines’ Hymn,” “Anchors
Aweigh,” Caisson Song, and “The Air Force Song.”
For quiet songs, try “Wagon Wheels,” “Tell Me Why,"
“Rock-a My Soul,” and “He’s Got the Whole World
in His Hands.” ;

Campfire features (pairol participation)

Tell the story of a great moment in history. Bovys’
L1rE magazine will feature stories and articles that will
be appropriate. Dramatize these stories if desired.

Have selected Scouts read their statements written
for the Nathan Hale Award competition.

Remind Scouts of the commitments they made when
they signed the Strengthen America’s Heritage scroll
in the spring. Invite Scouts who have met all commit-
ments to come forward for recognition and to lead the
troop in repeating the Scout Oath.

L=/ 3

American heritage ceremony

NARRATOR, near fire. Troop members around closed
circle,

NARRATOR (reads slowly): We are America today!
As we stand here and look back down the road Amer-
icans have traveled, we see that many of their dreams
have come true. We see the towns they built, the
bridges they crossed, the mountains they climbed. We
feel the dramatic hardships they endured, we see places
where they hammered off the rough edges of their
dreams so we would have a better life today.

Early Americans worked out a way of life, a life of
personal freedom that embodies the chief hope of the
despairing world of tomorrow.

(Invite Scouts to come forward, present each boy
with a replica of Continental currency* as a billfold
reminder of this American heritage campfire, and have
them stand behind the campfire while the NARRATOR
continues.) They made history yesterday. We must
make it today. This is our land. Here men and women
of the past lived and worked and died serving great
ideals. These were freedom and democracy and justice.

None of us standing about this heritage campfire
can fail to carry his part of this great dream to his
children and to his children’s children.

Our land is rich—-not only in material goods, but in
history, in great stories, in living legends of the people
who Jeft their mark on America. Our own past now
speaks to us and as we listen to the voice of the past,
it says to us loud and clear, “Hear me now! America
was built by courage, endurance, and faith, and what
was built was good. If you build the same way, the
future will also be good. I have spoken.”

Close with “Taps” and a reading of The American’s
Creed, Boy Scout Handbood, page 398.

*Replicas of Continental currency to be presented to

- Scouts are available through your council. They are

to be issued only at the America heritage campfire to
Scouts in attendance at the program.

I
R L

TR N N s . - Ty
PRI N B

ey
=g

St

i

g



TROOP MEETING
CEREMONIES

It is impcrtant that Scouts receive
quick recognition for their achieve-
ments. For example, no Scout should
have to wait for a quarterly court of
honor to receive a progress award
earned weeks or months before.

Brief but dignified ceremonies
should be helid at each troop meet-
ing following the earning of an award
or the achievement of new office or
new status by a Scout. You will note
in the program feature outlines that
a spot is reserved in the closing
ceremony of the second meeting
each month for advancement awards.
But with new boys constantly joining
the troop, others moving into the
leadership corps, and others assum-
ing troop offices, it is possible that
a short ceremony to recognize them
might be held in every meeting.

Suggested ceremonies for troop
meeting recognitions are given on
these pages. At your periodic courts
of honor, more elaborate ceremonies
should be held to honor all Scouts
who have =arned progress awards or
joined the troop since the previous
court.

Investiture of New Scout. EQUIP-
MENT. Candle, Scout pin or Scout
badge, pocket registration card,
troop neckerchief (if troop has one).
Patrol leader of the new Scout
escorts him.to the front of the room.
If the boy’'s parents are present, the
Scoutmaster invites them forward to
stand with their son.
SCOUTMASTER (lights candle):
Y (name of new Scout), this
flame represents the spirit of Scout-

“ing. It is a warm brotherly spirit and

it is shared by millions of boys and
men all over the world. You will find
it in this troop apd wherever you go
in Scouting. N

"“You learned something about
what this spirit means when you and
| talked about the meaning of the
Scout Oath and Law, the motto,
salute, sign and handciasp, what the
Scout badge means and what the
Outdoor Code means.

“I now ask you to show your desire
to share in the Scout spirit by join-
ing me in the Scout Qath. (Scout-
master and boy repeat Scout Oath.)

“As symbols of your membership
in this troop—and in the brotherhood
of Scouting—I| give you your Scout
pin {or badge), your registration
card and the troop’s neckerchief (if
the troop has one). (Scoutmaster
pins on pin or badge, iies necker-
chiet. If the boy’s parents are pres-
ent, have one of them pin on badge
or tie neckerchief.)

“Congratulations, Scout! Now will
the —____ Patrol give their patrol
yell for their newest member.”



Presenting Skill Award. EQUIPMENT.

Skill award belt loop.

Scoutmaster calls forward Scout or .

Scouts who have earned skill award
recently. ;

SCOQUTMASTER: “Troop, —
(name of Scout) has earned the —
skill award. it's a big
step on the road to his next progress
award.

(Here comment briefly about the
significance of the skill award or any
special projects completed to earn it,
as in the following examples.

(For Citizenship): “To earn this
Citizenship skili award,

{name) learned quite a lot about this
country’'s history and traditions. He
also spent more than an hour with
Deputy Mayor Vecchio and told his
patrol what he learned. Patrol Leader

— {(name) said the whole
patrcl was surprised to find out all
the things the Mayor's office is re-
sponsible for.”

(For Cooking): “To earn this Cook-

ing skill award, (name)
learned his lessons so well that he
became the best fire-builder® and
flapjack flipper in the — . Patrol.
I'm told that on the campout last
week, he produced the best stew the
patrol ever had. | know it was all
gone by the time [ visited the :
Patrol.” = :

(For Conservation): “To earn this
Conservation skill award,
(name) did a tremendous job of
cleaning up that vacant lot next to
Samuelson’s grocery store. Of
course, he also learned a lot about
the importance of our natural re-
sources. But most important, he
made our community a better place
~ in working for this skill award.”

“So it's a real pleasure to present
this skill award belt loop to
———— (name).” (Affix belt loop.)

Prasenting Tenderfoot Progress
Award. EQUIPMENT. Tenderfoot
badge, Scout Handbook.
Scoutmaster calls forward Scout
who has earned the progress award.

SCOUTMASTER (holds up Hand-
book): * €
been getting acquainted with this
familiar book during the last few
months while he was on the trail to
the Tenderfoot progress award he is
receiving tonight. | hopé all of you
are using it as much as he has.

“To earn this award, ————
{name) passed the Citizenship and
skill awards and the

merit badge. You fellows

_who have already made Tenderfoot

know that it takes work, and so he
has reason to be proud tonight.

“I'm glad to be able to present his

(name) has-

Tenderfoot badge.” (Pin on badge.)

Presenting Second Ciass Progress

Award. EQUIPMENT. Second Ciass

- progress award badge, candelabra

with thres eandles, one extra candle.

Scoutmaster cails forward Scout. .

who. has earned the progress award.
SCOUTMASTER: “Tonight,
(name), is taking a big step
up the advancement ladder of Scout-
ing. He has earned the Second Class
progress award, To do I,
(name), got the — .,
: . and skill
awards and the and
merit badges. He's also been a valu-
able member of tha Patrol
for several months. That'’s a fins rec-
ord for a Scoul. (Light spare candle
and hand fo Scout.)
“Now as a reminder to
(name) that he's only part way
along the advancement trail, I'll ask
him to light two candles. {Scout doss
so with extra candle.) i hope,
(name) that you'll be
back up here’in 3 months or so to
light that third candie. Good luck to
you!" (Pin on progress award badge
and ask Scout’'s patrol to give him
patrol yell.).

Presenting First Class Progress
Award. EQUIPMENT. First Class
progress award badge, candelabra
with three candles, one extra candle,
Eagie progress award badge.

Scoutmaster calls forward Scout
who has earned the progress award.

SCOUTMASTER (lights spare can-
dle and with it lights two candles on
the candelabra): “Scouts, a few
months ago, . (name)
was up here to receive his Second
Class progress award. Tonight he
takes another step. He gets the First
Class award. To earn it, he passed
the : L and
—————skilhawards ‘and the -
and —— . merit badges. He
also showed that he shares fully in
the Scout spirit that makes this troop
what it is. I'm going to ask him to
light the third candle, symbolizing
his thirdgbig step in “cout advance-
ment. (Scout does co.,

“But this Is not'the end. Hold up
Eagle progress award badge.) “Now
i hope that {(name)
will set his sights on this badge—the
Eagle. He'll have to earn Star and
Life first, of course, but the road
ahead Is clear for him to get this
greatest award of all in Scouting.
With that in mind, I'd like to give
—— (name) the badge he
has earned. (Pin on First Class
badge.) Now, as his first act as a
First Class Scout, I'm going to ask
-  (name) to lead us in
the Scout Qath.”

B-/Es

* patrol

investiture In Leasership Cerps.
EQUIPMENT. Leadership corps em--
blem.

Scoutmaster calls forward the
Scout to be invested.

SCOUTMASTER:
(name) ie moving from the
Patrol into our leadership corps to-
night. We expect him to make a blg
contribution to the whole iroop as a
mamber of the leadership corps, and
we hope he'll have a lot of fun in
this gang of our more experienced
Scouta. Of course, he'll always have
a soft spot in his heart for the
{patrol name), but now the
whole troop will benefit from his
skills and leadership. Here,
——— (name), Is the emblem of
the leadership corps. (Pin insignfa
over patrol insignia.) Now I'm going
to ask the leadership corps to greet
thelr new member.” (Ask leadership
corps members fo cheer new mem-
ber or shake hands with him.)

instaliation of Senlor Patrol Leader.
EQUIPMENT. Senior patrol leader’s
insignia, one candle.
.. Scoutmaster calls forward new
senior patrol leader, all patrol leaders.
SCOUTMASTER: “The troop has
elected (name) to be
senior patrol leader in a free and
open election like the ones by which
we -chooss presidents, mayors and
other leaders In this country. As the
top elected officer in this troop, Sen-
lor Patrol Leader deserves
—and needs—the support of each
patrol leader and each Scout.

“New I will ask the patrol leaders
to join hands while
{name) lights the candle symbolizing
the unity of this troop. (Patrol leaders
join hands while SPL lights candle.)
Senior Patrol Leader ———H—, the
leaders have pledged their
best efforts to help you lead this
troop. Now | charge you to do your
best to give them the kind of overall
leadership that is necessary for a
great Scout program. Do you accept
this charge? (SPL indicates that he
does. Scoutmaster pins on insignia.)
As your first act as senior patrol
leader, | will ask you to lead us in the
Scout Oath and then dismiss the
troop.” J

installation of Patrol Leader. EQUIP-
MENT. Patrol leader's insignia, pa-
trol’s flag.

Scoutmaster calls forward the new
patrol leader and all members of his
patrol. :

SCOUTMASTER: “ e .
{name) -has been elected patrol
ieader by the Patrol in a
fres and open elaction. :

{name), 1 ask you now to repeat




after me the patroi leader's pledge:
I promise/ to do my best/ to be
worthy of my office as patrol leader/
for the sake of my fellow Scouts/ my
patrol/ and my troop. (Pin patrol
leader's insignia on left sleeve.) Now
will each patroi member piease place
his left hand on the patrol's flag staif,
with Patrol Leader —____ 's hand
on top. | ask all patrol members, will
you do everything you can to help
Patroi Leader —.._______ make the
~———— Patrol the bast in this troop?
(Scouts indicate assent.) Good. Let's
hear your patrol yeil for your new
patrol leader.”

Installation of Den Chiel. EQUIP-
MENT. Den chief's cord, Den Chief's
Denbook.

Scoutmaster callis forward the new
den chief and the Cubmaster or
Webelos den leader, if present.

SCOUTMASTER; “e . . .
(name) has been appointed by Senior
Patrol lLeader —_ to be den
chief of Den _—___ {or Webelos Den
) in Cub Scout Pack . This
is a position of great responsibility
because as den chief,
(name) will be giving leadership to
a number of Cub (or Webelos) Scouts
who will one day be members of this
troop. His example will show them
what real Scouts are like and what
fun and adventure .awaits them in
Scouting.

“Although his duty wiii take him to
meetings of these younger boys, as
den chief he hoids an important
troop oftice. (name),
as a symbol of your new ofiice, here
is your den chisf's cord.” (Fasten
Cub Scout or Webelos den chlef's
cord. If Cubmaster or Webelos den
leader is przsent, ask him to wel-
come the new den chief into the pack
or den.)

Instaliation of Other Treop Offlear.
EQUIPMENT. Insignia of office (as-
sistant senior patrol ieader, scribe,
librarian, quartermaster, bugler, in-
structor).

Scoutmaster -alls forward troop
officer to be Ir: .Jied,

SCOUTMASTER: *.
(name) has been appointed by Sen-
ior Patrol Leader ________ to the of-
fice of troop ... This is an im-
portant office in the troop's structure.
(ltemize several responsibilities of
the troop office as listed in Patrol
and Troop Leadership, Chapter 6)
I ask (name) to pledge
that he will do his best to live up
to the confidence Senior Patrol
Leader —___ has shown in him by
selecting him for this office.” (Scout
indicates that he will do his best. Pin
on Insignia.)

B 66




ALL SCDOTERS
z

THE ODRDER OF
THe ARRpW

Bz



ALL, SCOUTERS AND THE ORDER OF THE ARROW

I The adult role in the Order of the Arrow
a. Support
b. Responsibility

II. Discussion of ways to‘fullfill the "purposes' of the 0.A.
a. Maintain camping tradition § spirit.

b. Kindle a flame of Brotherhood, leadership, § cheerful
service to others.

PRESENIOR: - TIM MAYFIELD

L5-768



The Order of the Arrow is a national service organization which assists
Scouting in many areas.

Once each year, Scouts are elected to the OA by their peers. Each
candidate must have met specific requirements in order to be eligible.
Before becoming a member of the OA, the candidate must first pass the
Ordeal.

The Ordeal is a time for Lhe candidate to turn his thoughtns inward
and try to understand himself, and gain a greater understanding of the
Scout Oath and Law. It is a weekend of hard work, little food, and spending
the night alone.

There are no ranks to be earned in the OA. There are, however, levels
of membership. Once elected by his troop or post and having passed the
Ordeal, a candidate becomes an Ordeal Member. Here he is given time
to learn of the OA and to determine if he wishes to seal his membership.
Upon showing his knowledge of the OA and his willingness to serve he may
become a Breotherhood Member.

The OA recognizes those who provide outstanding service with the Vvigil
Honor. An individual is elected to this honor by his fellow OA members;
it is not something which can be earned.

All the OA members within a District are organized into units called
Chapters. All the Chapters in the Council make up the Lodge. The leader
of each Chapter and the Lodge is called a Chief. This boy is elected by the
members. Chapter and Lodge Advisors are adults who assist the officers
of the OA and are appointed by the Council and/or District.

The OA is not out to take boys away from the troop program. Indeed, the
greatest task for all OA members is to serve their units by supporting a
healthy outdoor program. If an OA event should conflict with a unit
activity, members are always encouraged to place their unit ahead of the
OA.

There are many opportunities within the Order of the Arrow for a Scout
to hone his leadership skills. The Lodge Chief is but one post which
teaches boys how ,to campaign and how to deal with politics of a large
organization. Positions such as Secretary, Treasurer, Ceremonies Team,
etc. all provide good opportunities for a boy to grow in many different
ireas.

/69



T CANDIDATES TO THE
OF THE ARROW

W CRUEE OF THE ARROW 15 THE NATIONAL BROTHER -
LA GF sCOUT HONOR CAMPERS ; ITS PURPOSES
o WECOGNIZE SCOUT CAMPERS WHC: BEST

4 THE SCOUT OATH AND: Law, (i
SCOUT CARPARPING AND AORITST £ Gap 1m0
; S AND SPIRIT; AND TC FINDL S A LAME
h@ SA EROTHERHOOD, LEADERSHIF A CHFERFLLL

3
\\

SERVICE TC OTHERS,
_‘,_,—»-'—'— A R T 3

% ~
ey <" ONCE A YEAR CANDIDATES %
bt 7 ARE ELECTER TO LOCAL O A WLDGE.

' BY SCOUT TROOPS AND EXPLORER P,
UNUER THE LEADERSHIP OF THE ELECTICH |

COMMITTEE OF THE LOCAL © A LCDGE.

b HE D A HANUBOOK GIVES DETALED  /

8 INFORMATION ON ELECTICN A
e PROCEULIRES. g

. : /,/\\,7 ﬁ

/S

i /

CANDIDATES MUST BE RESISTERED,
FIRST CLASS SCOUTS LNDER THi: |
AGE OF 18, OR MALE EXPLORERS |
UNDER Zl. THEY MUST HAVE
COMPLETED AT LEAST IS DAYS
AND NIGHTS OF SCOUT OF EX -
PLORER CAMPING, INCLUDING
ONE LONG-TERM CAMP (S)1X
CONSECUTIVE DAYS AND NIGHTS)
WITHIN TWO YEARS PRIOR 1O i
THE ELECTION DATE. i
AN ORDER OF THE ARROW :
ELECTION IS AOT A POPULARITY |
CONTEST! THE TEST OF A SCOUT'S

i

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE HONOR. OF
MEMBERSHIP IS HIS LOYALTY i
TO THE SCOUT PROMISE OR THE |
EXPLORER CODE, ,

AT LEAST 50 PERCENT OF THE |
MEMBERSHIP MUST BE AT THE |
FLECTION MEETING. ALL MEMBERS |
OF THE TROOP OR POST ARE !

ELIGIBLE TO VOTE.

—

N THE TIME AND
P 2 PLACE ©OF THE ™
ELECTION AND O THER

. 4 ' 5
HiE PUKPOSE OF THE ) AR% EEEEZ“SE”&E&
CANVEAL 1S TO HAVE THE 7T s | THE UNIT | EADER
e AATE REFLECT ON IS COWN - N\ aANp THE Local S |
© iFE AND CHARE . R AND L O A LGDGE. (W
. £ DEEPER UNGEFSTAI'DING /’ N 7
LT OUT PROMISE AND THE el e
CWLES OF THE SRR R -7 HE ORDEAL 7 N

H 3
CONSISTS ¥ KEEFING COMPLETE N\~
SHLENCE, DACIGHT i 4ilS DF
HAKD LABOR DEVOTED T THE

BENEFIT OF OTHERS; VEW 7 |
LIN, Tea ang LITTLE FOOD; AND SLEEPING ‘ !
THECE : ALONE QOUTDCORS.

Fie.an o w
PATRIY . al s
Furoe gv:

s AFTER /O MONTHS OF
COMTINUED SERVICE IN
SCOUTING, THE ORDEAL
MEMBER IS FLIGIBLE SOR
BROTHER - L MEMBERSHIP

.k







fod

rJ

WHAT ENOTE
&
NOT KNOTE

cresentors: WYONA WOLELEY/ . JAY WOLFLEY

BACKGROUN.

A, CARE OF ROPE, WHAT ECPE MEANS T 5
B. RATITNMALE FOR S5TUDYING "PLONEER" S
ROPE SAPETY

COUTING
5]

i

(¢

BASIC: HOW TC TILE AND USE KNOTS

TIMBER HITCH
SHEET BEND
SQUARE KNOT

)y, CLOVE HITCH

E. TAUT LINK HLTOH
F. -BOWLINE

0w

=3

ADVANCED KNOTS: HGW TO TIE AND THEIR USES.
A, BOWLINE ON A BIGHT

B. PIPE HITCH

C. SHEEP SHANK

ENOT Y iING GAMES TO INTEREST B0YS

PIONEERING 3KILLS

A, BASIC LASHINGS

1, DIAGONAL

2. SQUARE

3. SHEAR _
B, CAMPCRAPFT ITEMS
., DOVETAILING
D

« USING PIONEERING SKILLS TO FURTHER TROOP PROGRAMS

fS-,22

RVIVAL

SKILL



‘ados pupas-¢ PIvI-A3smoy ‘puvy jySry
uonniIsHod s,adoy 1 ‘S1y

SUNIWY 7/
$ITIUS SYIG/ |

NeoA

-ufs ‘ajqensap si SSauizzny J1 ‘ranamoyy “yoows adox

£ SEW PIYM way jo yoey ayy pue \Wﬁuﬁz adox uwn_ww%uﬁm
1 spuo ardeys Sunosford 350U3 [ie st 31 yonpoid jemnjeu Aue 10
sanuemari ayy aary Aayj pue .S91deys,, se umouy are \b:mmv
pue 3zis 105 paperd 's13qy yong wayy paonpoid jewy H.:EQ

"adox Lue jo uoyonysuos JO s3un S1seq ayy axe asay) pue -
“B[Y 10) s1aqy unp woy unds Azsoo; st uzef yoes “Ajpeuryg
\ ‘Spuens i3
0} aysoddo Papuey-1y3u dn prej “asinos 3O ‘are suzey .Awuwm.hwm
n mumn_wmm.ﬁ 0} %um: SA1 ‘puens e ur suwref Auew are
PUe ‘ded rexnds e aaes| [, no4 41 saowar noA uaypy -
3 I UM "puexns ayj dn
STEUW PIYM sured ay3 3o auo no deredas qeyy A1 nof E&Mm
\ SUIn SuIes ay) Je s1my papuey-jjar v
w_ w?rw 0s[e Inq ‘240013 [exds Papuey-1y8u £3dws ay 9:_: bwm.w:
uu el wEo ousnw nof ‘Ajinjssanons Puens pmy) ayy wum._mmh o1
9312303 spuens om; 1ayjo 350U3 spoy Ajrenyoe yeym st adox pue

3133 asnedaq

61 3JO¥ INOaV 171y

spuens usamiaq isimj 3uisoddo ey, ‘Sunyewador feuontper jo
ardound [e3ia ayy st snyy, -adox soym ay; o3 ayisoddo Surpends
‘papuey-ya s3] (dn pre[ puens pajeredas ayy st Aem Yoy
"0} pajuem noA j1 ‘puens juasqe ayy adefdar pinod nok yorym
Ojur molmy pauyap A[1e3P e aq [[im 3I3Yj pue ‘adI0J I[QISIAUIL
ue £q A[21nd3s play “19y32303 SuIp 03 ANURUOD [IM SpURLS OM)
Bururewar sy, ‘ado1 jo adard 1oL jo puens auo [1odUN Mo
‘Teuajewr deayd jo (a100)
1eay e yym pafy oq jsnwr aoeds sy, -ador ayj Jo 1a3uad ay)
y3nory; [puuny e ax1[ suns jey; adeds papyun ue sajean (adox
PUBI}S-9 B JARY YOUL] 9Y3)) SpPUens 10w I0 Inoj Juisn ‘uon
-1ppe U] "Inoj uey} 133u01s 318 SPUBI}S 3JIY], "SPUBHS INOj Jo
s3s1suod AJjensn ‘aduspadxa Aw ur ‘pue fuer e st adox papuey
-1y27 "st Aqreraual adox puens-¢ ‘papuey-1ySu (paysimi) ,prey,,
st adox jey] (3y3u ayy 03 pue spremdn asow spuens Yy} moy
33 "Aj[eon124 31 pioy *adar puens-g jo yy8uaj Hoys e sunuexy
(1 "81J) pasonnsuod st ador moy JjasmoA 105 no purg

J4ILONYISNOD SI 34O MOH

'syms Bunyieq pue souqej ssaap ‘sajerd 1aded
‘sjxpel y0oq se paurea se swajl [j2s 0) surdjyed jouy asn s1ouis
-3 "Anawoa8d [euotsuawip-aa1y; Jo 1108 e, ‘KI0aY) jouy, Apms
uasd Aew syuspnis yiew padueapy ‘afzznd jo yos 1ayjo Aue
se Sugeunsey se sjowy pajedrdwod Suify puy ajdoad surog
'S20B[20Ys 313 0} Padul [[e am pue ‘Y s, 1ou033epq ay3 asn Lewr
SIBALIP YOni], ‘sI93uel pue sjnods op 0s pue ‘aale sjouy jnoqe
a3pa[mouy sy dasy SIINBUL-[IES PUE SIDNIOM ISALL ‘SIABIA
'9pen IBY} JO S[00} 3} dIe SJOW ‘SaI0padls pue sydelord
-39S ‘(193893 a3 pue sndIp Ay ur) 1383 ‘UsWIAIY 104 “SUOLS
-52501d 12y} UI 0M} 10 JOUS| B ISN [[B SISUOD[E] pue SI9BWIOYS
‘s12puIqoog ‘S3ULISMOQ UMO IIDY} SMEW [[IS SIBYDIR IWOG
‘S}9U pUIW puE IH[EW 0} INURUOD UIULIdYSL] ‘sadoz
Paplelq WIapow Ul wayj 3y jng ‘SIalejeas po 3yj Jo sjouy ay)
aa1asa1d syynq Suneogq ‘(1oqy apewr-uew jo sand a[3urs) syuaw
-B[jouowr ut sjouy 3y 313 A3Y) Inq ‘Yi3uans Jouy yjim pauIaduod

ale—SIaquI MI—SI9[8uy “papouy aq o} aaey jeyy sadox uo|

-Au uo puadap (saae> a1o[dxa pue Apnys oym asouy) sIaxunjads
pue squIP ooy ‘sjouy pasu (s Aepoy adoad jng

2008 LONX FHL 81

A=A TR



‘ado1 ojur apew usaq sey wiy profny

-[3 uas3 :unds pue paquiod ‘papparys aq UEd SIIULISANS 1YJ0

Auep sasn 31 sey 11 ‘aanpeije 394 deay> 'yonoy ayy 03 Axem
pue yeam A[panepas st ‘ponpoid rolewr 1ayjoue ‘susiiyiakiog

‘3uneoq pue saulyI] 10j pasn

SI 1 UsyMm aZejueApe ue—sjeO[ J1 pue “IPIY} 3t Anq ued noA os
‘radeayp s 1 1nq ‘aary; ay jo Suoxs jsed] ay st susjhdordLjog

"SNIOIJSESIP UIAD

I0 JUSTUSAUOIUL 3q P[NOd ssaude[s alaym sqol rejnurs pue Suid

-8u 3urpueys 10y pajns Apemonaed st g “JEY) UAD DAQWIBI UED

armpejnuew sy Jurmp Junydjans-axd pue ‘ysjans yonw asey
31 s90p J0u ‘uojAu se Juons se Jou Inq ‘00) Juons s1 19353L[0]

‘Buuroow pue

Burmoy “Buiquurp 10§ [eapr 31 saxew Surydans £q Suipeop-spoys

qiosqe 03 AIIqe sj| "OUSE[d Jsour pue 3s33U0NS Y} SI——[E0d WOIj
S3W0d YdIym—uoldu nq ‘o woly ajeur3uo sonayIuls JSop

‘€:%:G Jo uony

-1odoxd a3 ut syy3uans aandadser sy Jo Yuny ued nox ‘speu

-orewr adox urews s,Aepoy are susjddoid£jod pue 193s34[0d “uoy

-AN ‘s13qy onayjuAs 10§ sauiojeroqe] sy 0y peajsur jnq ‘syuerd
105 syrod dpoxa 03 puas 1a8uo] ou siyewador s{ep asay]

sadoy syayjuig

‘sdox Gupjewador ajgemauar Suimoid oy uinjar
0} Aep auo asuas ayew JySnu jI ‘SIDIN0SAI JJUY §,P[IOM INO
3unardap inoqe pausaduod AjSuiseaour swodaq am Se ‘SMOUY
OUM ‘[ests 4zzny uapjoS pue ‘sysNY JNUOd0D WO 1100 AIrey pue
umoiq ‘(syyoe£ s,uawu You 10§ jemoewnur) uojod ueyd43y ‘(sem
313y} 3s3q ay3) dway pairey uerje)| :sadox pjo ayj jo sawreu aaned
-0A3 U} pue [[3WIS “[33] 9y} U BI3[LISOU SI 313U} ‘SSI[Y}IDAdN]
‘sreq uoat Ay1ds ax1 3z01y A3y UsYM sSnoraydeayy
Ajreradss azam £ayy ‘aum Lue je s10[tes Jo spuey sy} uo (PN aq
p[nod £ay; 3y 'saoeds aBerojs a3re; Suumbai ‘Aynq Ajsnow
-Ious way} Junjew ‘mof sem oyger ySrem-o-ydusys Iyl
'S[EdTWAYD pue Iayjeam ‘uns Aq payoeype aram Lay] ‘padeosp
pue ‘pamapfiur ‘papor A3yj ‘Aqises arowr Jurjesiq pue way)
ur pay sjowy ay) Junuwel Jam USYM PIUINEIM PUE PI[[IMS
Aay], ‘sadejueapesip Auewr pey s{empe sador 1aqy [eanjeN
"spunod ((0‘§ 19A0 pueSYIM P[NOD IZIS
Teruuts e Jo sadox Surquup uofdu 0961 £g spunod paxpuny may

17 4d0¥ 1No4v 11V

€ JO UTEX}S 21} PUBISYIIM P[NOd Ju[a[eym your-z e jeys pnoid [[us
2IaM UdW (96 Ul Ing ‘ersny pue AreSuniy Jo SSUIU I3A[IS Y}
ur pasn a1am sado1 1M UOIT [€Q] PUNOIE ‘aN1], ‘SIE3A puesnoy)
e ur ySnoaypyeaiq 1528819 a1y sem s1y, “S[ELISJEW DRAYFUAS WOl
ado1 ayew 0} sem IaMsSue 3], "UOHN[OS M3U B X33S 0] UIALP
aram s1aewadoI 210U 3IU() "B[TURIA] JJO 11D SJUIAS [[ TEA PIIOM
uayMm ‘16l [pun—iemrajewr a8epiod juejrodwr 3sOWw Ay auredaq
Appmb 31 jeyy sfem Luewr os ur rouadns pasoid dway enrely
‘3seq req ayy woiy dway
eQueI PIeY O} dwy jey) [un A[DAISNIXd pasn siaqy Ifqixaly
/J0s 8y} WoOIj uIny 0} apen 3yj paEduod yorym ‘pey o3 duay
uerssny] jo Ajddns ay) pasned s,0081- P 9Yj JO Jepy Ueawil)) ay],
"319YMaS[3 S[eLIajeW 113y} 328 0] padio] a1am siaxewador ‘apen
UM paIajiajul Iem I0 JSaIun [IAD ‘feaeaydn jeontod uaypm
"SIIpU] 1SaM A}
pue uede( “euny) ‘e1puj se [[om Se BOLY YHON pue uredg woxy
sse1d ojiedsa pue ‘pue[eaz MaN WOIj XE[j ‘U0HOD UEdIBWY
pue uend4A8g sem aray] "(uo[da)) exue] UG pue }Se0d Ieqe[ely
3y} Woij aured 110D ‘eAUs)y| pue eruezZUE] ‘BAE[ WOIJ dUIED (e[ns
-utuad uejeony ayy uo j1od [EWS B I9}je pIwWeU) [esIg "BISSIY
pue Ajey) woiy duray ‘sautddijny ayy wory swred e[ruejy ‘plIom
3} I9AO0 [[B WOl S[eM3jewW MEI I3y} paurejqo siyewadoy
[IS pue [0OM U3A3 pue ‘eljel
pue an{ papnpur s1a30 "dwsy pue (s)nuod0d Woly 3peur) 110d
‘[eSIS ‘BJIURIA] PUTRUIAI SI3CIJ UOUILIOD }SOW 31} SILINJUID 3SOLf)
Ire Suungy ‘If 1ep PHOM [Bun pasn sem adol 1aqy a[qensdap
"S[re} ,SISIOY Iy
woxj IRy Ay} UM SUIEYD UdJeM 2AOM A[SNOLIOQE] UdA3 OUM
‘sAoqmod Aq sassaurey pue $30SSe] OJUl papielq Sem IpIymey]
,/$3a1], Jo yreg jo Suons pue jea1d ayewr Aay}
yorym ador e, pasn aurepy jo jseod ayj 3uofe Jureym suerpu]
yey3 paytodar ymnowdapy 981099 1a1oidxa ysy3ug ayy Oz91 u
puV ,,S1aqy JNU0d0d Wwoij apew urek jo puny e, Aq 191432803 pan
2I2M S[3SSIA URISISJ JLUOS 1B} 3J0IM O[O ORI [/Z] PUNOIY
-ado1 ayew 03 s1eak
jo spuesnoyy 1oj—iaded ayr-jusunyored paonpoid osie Aoy
Yorym woiy pasi ayj—snidded yym paszom suend4337 juspuy
"S[EWIWIBW B3S JO UIYS Y} pasn sBunjIp ay], ‘Ind 10 Mauls ‘s3001
woiy adox Suons A12A ynq apnm paysimy sajdoad aanmuiig
sadoy 12q1] (jeanieN) 21qe1ddap

Q04 IONX 7L 0T

L2-79/



‘s1unpads pue siaquimd
4q £jrenadsa—unosoe OJuT Uaxey aq 1snur 31 ynq ‘sdustusauodur

10 prezey jea1d e aq 03 paau jou sa0p adoz sgayyuds jo Lyadord
SIUL "pPanun 3q 03 urele 1aasu—iay;afo; [[e Wwayy asny Ajenjoe
Aew suorpe 983y, “Iayjoue jsurede suo jo Suipurq ayy ‘peo|
® 13pun dn susyydy jowy ay3 se ‘10 syred ador zmw.aumn uore
3uimes jo 3108 Aue ploae 03 jueyrodunt 31 “syrey pue mzwxm..wi
3eys os 11 jeay Aewr rayjoue ssone Suiqqn adox sy jo yred suo

€0 3d0¥ 1nogv 11v

JO uondLY 3y} UIAY ‘pajesy usym jppur osfe sadol ogayyukg
"WI3Y} 3INJ3S 0} }ON} J0 YDYIH J[eH eIiXs ue pasu
Aew sjouy yong -purwr ur yday aq pinoys sy -ador oyayjuds
ut pay a1,43y; uaym auopun difs sjouy PO PajsnI} AWOG ‘SSU
-yjoows s31 st a8ep1od pue adox apew-uewr yym Jeus Siq ay .
"X0q[00} SIY JO ISUIOD JUO OJul
a]oe}-pue-3oo[q pue adoimoy e 3onj ued diueydaw piesydeq 3y}
pue ‘Ayifenb Surpuesino jo j10m aonpoid uajjo ued sayIOMIRId
Iayjo pue sistdqqoy swenew ‘srayewador ayy o3 syueyj

‘pHom Suijres ayy ur sonoerd

paysiiqeisa mou st sapq3uip pue syyoed uo (apoey pue sador)
spied[ey pue sjaays jo Gurpos 10[0)) ‘a[qe[Ieae os[e susaig pue
san[q ‘sadueIo ‘spar yim ‘oe[q 0} AIym woij aSuel s10[0D)
: L
Buop pue Lmpqemp ‘saniadord Swide juspEoxe aaey qe apym
‘A;ugapur os op jeopy jeyy asoyy -oner jySram-ol-yidusns
Y8y e asey Loy pue ‘ar01s pue Aued> 03 £sea ySamiyly
are Aayy -savejins paystuy A3y aSewep j,uom ainyxay 3jos
T2y pue—AIp 10 Jam—ajpuey 03 £ses are sadol apew-uepy
‘(1am uaym Juad
13d (p—0¢ seseamap yi8uans 1aqy 2[qeiadan) jam uaym juels
-uod surewar urens 3upjeaiq 18y) ‘uondiosqe 193em MO I13Y) JO
ISTEIAY “SJUIA[OS UOWILIOD pue aurjosed ‘S[10 Yjim Joejuod puejs
-y3m ued pue ‘Suuayjeam “oeye [eonuaYpd IS1sar Aay ‘Aedap
3ULEW PUR MIP[IU ‘oI 0} AJrunurun ‘SUIpeo[-[P0YS qIosqe 0}
Aypedes Sutpuejsino ue aaey Lay] “aduewroyrad peoj paurejsns
[euondaoxs pue wyiBuans aisusy Yy aaey sador onayjulg
'santenb 3ugpuey pue ainyxay ‘10[0> ur sadox 1aqy fer

* -Njeu plo 3y} ajejru jey) sadol apeUI-UBW 3]8aID UIAS ued Aay]

*a[qed auoydaa} e s33e10dI00UT YDIYM ‘SUIRJ] S JAATP € Se yons
‘sasodind [eads 105 sadox ayew [m siayewadoy -sypnpord
1adesyd pue 19pn ae aray) ‘uspIed ayj Ul 10 ‘Sajs [eLnsnpul
uo sqol y3nojy 103 a[rym ‘sured pue sp1od [rews jo }auea e Ang
UED USWSHEID IJ0 PUR SIDABIAL ‘ILals UsA0Mm A[jeau e apisur
pasopua ARy3y syusurery d1sels Jo 2100 e y3noryy ssauyyip pue
Apqrepy “pusns auiquod sador s1aquiy ‘preiq 13a0 preiq
*adox pajrerd 1a81e[ uaaas ue £q paraaod ador pajrerd jumg suo
Jo spew aq Aewr s1axuepadns 10y sadox Guuoow aaissepy -asod
-ind £1243 105 30 s1 219y} ‘papreiq 10 payreld (£3uiseanur) 10
Spuel}s pajsim) 1ay3eyp ‘qiadns are sador spew-uew s epoy,

008 LONX "L 2T

E-/75



agey |.nok

BipyLtM =n>1=w

1 oannd i e

‘sdoo)

SOUIITH SICH OM, Y],

"aseajas yainb o) uoyy ‘391043
15aq inok si aA0[d ay}
‘wajqosd o puyy isod
-1eyj-0)-buyy-siyy-ay

— -eyiea paddijs ay) 3joN

. YSMHBAOID YL

W Atjojseg
ay) ‘jouy |, Jaydel,,
Aem-auo e s} "1no

uayej ag o0} sey yaels
uaym ‘ayjo ayj uy

Piis 8q uea ng ‘uoyaal
-Ip auo ul spjoy auy)
-iney ay) ‘(918 ‘sAnb
ju3) ‘saui|sayjoja) awn
13ao fies o} spuaj ey}
by ados e daay 0)
pasu noA vaym Ajuiew
pasn S1 yajly auijine}
ay] -auo poob Apejnay
-ied e jnq ‘isyjeroads y

14

"It Inoypm alun

o0} ybno} ag uajjo ued
jouy Siy} aauts ‘uey
-jodwi Apejnaiped s
uoneuea paddys ayy

‘Ajinaas pue Apaydwis
10} yjoq ‘adnjoya 1saq
au) Ajgeqoud 1 sayapy
jley om) ‘ob juom
aAD]d ay) asaym sased
ul pue sadeys uo ‘ssa|
-ayyianay (1usi Ajjeal
)l yBnoy)je) an o1
131583 SWaas Ji asnea
-ag Ajqeqoad ‘aaojd
3] UBL) UOLILLIOD BIOW
"YouH asodind-jly

J0 8131 8y} Joj Japua)
-u09 Jayje Ajuo ayy

€

‘[11w-ay)-jo-uni 1noA
10} ynq ‘sjepdosdde
10U S 3A0|2 ayj—iaq
-win| jo adsaid & ajyy
—adeys azenbs e 0}
ados e Guiyseye ai,noA
11 pue ‘Ajanaas Jnoge
pawiaauod Ajjersadsa
al1,nok Ji saydly Janag
2J 213Y] ‘uiel)s
13pun we/l j,uom pue
‘anun o) ajduwns ‘al o}
ajdwg ‘yapy asodind
-jje-Ajieau ajione) AW

4

E-/76



A Uiyl

“sdiyy jo ayd

-N0J B 1M Ino )1 ayeys uea nok Jaao s} qol ay)
uaym -ados aiy uo uens e s,a:ay) se Buoy se ')
IOy pue x3e|s dn axe} |m yueysdaays 3y} ‘adas
Lanw 00y jo waqoid ay} ajos o} paufiisap jouy y

‘ ‘pua ayy 1e Bnus Auly) ajoym

1,

ay} Guyind sy ‘wiebe asuo ‘Aay ay} ‘Ajjejuapiau)

‘)t paau nok uaym puo

-33s B'UJ 3uopun sawod pue ‘jeau adod ay) sdaay
‘wioj 0} 3jduys s,)| ‘aal)-ajbuey shejs ) 0s ados
afiuesie pue daay o} Aem e Ing “Jouy e Ajjeas joN

oy ayy 61

"adeys Aue jsow o} a|qejdepe

‘uo-a1} |es1anun ay) si fiagy ayp “pusy awos
10 Jayynp e 1o ‘ajdwiexa Jof yaor e—sadeys ppo
Jo sajpunq Assaw f)q soj pauBisap st Bajiry ayy
Yoy s3qui ay) jo uonesydde ue 1sn{ Ajlemay

‘I3ljoue Jo aippiur ay)
0} ados auo fuAy as,nok
uaym aaloyd Jo jouy au)
0S|E § ]| "Spiemumop o

dn ‘asimyibua) si ) uo
Jind ayj uaym ajod e uo
nd Buifeys 1o0j jouy jsag

ay) jnoge sj yay Gu

-J104 83U} ‘yayy auljine)

ay) 0} uisnoa Jeau y

= Y231H Surfioy 3y, ST YOIIH 3aIIIN YT, 9%

LB-/77



_ | Bt . —‘Ggwnﬁ 41:—4«.—- d

‘punose dwnf o} ajqey
st [ind ay) jo uonaai
-1p ay} uaym to ‘Auaoud
ubiy e sy Ajunaas uaym

s aljle
J1 @sn J.uop ‘puey iayjo iy i K]
3y} UQ "ugels Juelsuoa 4lom “al
e Japun ag o} fuiob s) 10} ad| isgns
ados ay )i ajeudoidde L pay 10 8y
Asepnapyed s copun Ieay’ ‘pung

0} ajduns Ajbuijiey
-lahau pue 31} 0} Asea
Austpiiyg s yany 1aq

-l ayy ‘asepns ybnos

2 puno4e ji ay nok

J1 aanaas Ajanndasag

YOIIH JIqUULY, SYL ST

al} yim awes ay} oq

L

‘umop yaeq Buipys ‘(uoneisnyp ayy aas) “13AeSa)l|
inoqe ALioM o] aney Jou  ados |earan ay) punose  AIBUIS ym sdooj oMy b0 aq pjnoa yis
pue ‘i ui dajs ‘dn pjoy 10uy Bup ybinosyy 0L SPI0I O} BUL 3B g gy ‘quinga o) aney

-Joo} siyy api|s o} 3|qe -321M] & 0} Sjunole . Sployjooy,, 1ok aq nof jey} ados jeoipian
aqg ||,noA ‘vo Buiquia  jeym ap pue sdooj ayy  m asay] quia o) Bul B yHM pade} 13Aa a1 nok
aq jj,nof ados ayj ueyy  jo auo aye] (‘uoneupes  -puajur a1,noA ados ayy J1 ‘puey Jayjo ay) uo
1a|awWelp J8jjewsS . SeY  pajgnop ay} asn ‘1ayaq Ueyj Jajawep 13jjews ng "} paau Janau A|g
uy }isnid ayy pay an nok uana ‘1g) -uoneLsnyjl J0 ‘pJod jo sasaid  -eqoud §).nof pue ‘jouy

pi02 ay) ) “dooj puoaas  ay) Jad se ‘spuag Jasys HOyS 0M} Yim Leig s 1aguijo e si sy

‘3ouy]

'81ay pajensn||l si |1 se
‘pua 3s00j e yim fjje
-U0ISBII0 pasn os|e s} jng
‘dooj paseja e ypm buy
-leap ainok uaym Ajunaas
up ajewi)n ayj si jouy

Buil ay) ‘pueq Jaggn) e
jim asn nof jouy ay) se
Jeljjwey Jsow Ajgeqoly

jouy] Sury 3y g €1

™




o ‘1g e aypb

eisjeagal sa4au uepaibelu pogh e Jaqudwas puy dogj ey Buiuajioys 3q gy, ok aduis ‘SBunaanaudi
‘uiefe ajug asay} ajety nof|se g e ul|spuey siy paowi|o}

i : 4 aiey J1.pH "ujebe guny)l yyag Sy Jado yi ssed ppe

0 doip iiim y00ajauy Spuey siy peasds o) 14) aef “(§ooq pui jo| ap1s hayjo [ayy up s 1 ke

1 ApE Pup SIlasearl uim paLieisinok doo) gl sl Uil sapbur ) dsaop 1) pdey jybu

Bl.noj “Aibnws wiy papfias gue yjeq puejs vdy)

B1H!l pul 0) puey| Wbu oA yim o Bugpjoy fus sty due y paamlag *yboq ali o apis 1pyto duy

awy sy ing—unefe puey)yap ok yjim pipa
ay) gauid [Aejaq jo _Lm

Y "puey 1960 oA wi|Buipipy s a8,
au} jo ep Buia) Jadau ‘guinyg 13} s|j00} food ay)
1340 piga ayy(ssed |jooq ay) fjue pyey by npk
uagmiag [juiod e je swn giy) ‘ujebe ¥ youl ‘puey
lid] mnod yumiuayl| 'y pipy pug nok|spiemo; pips
ayl [ind “quiny) 3t )y pug yooq ay) daamipq
ujod | je 103 ayy yauid ‘p ey Jybu snok yp
“ajjuig “Jaajunjon snoh jo|squiny
Ul apo 3t ooy pue JgA0d ¥peq aly w oy dAy)
ubnoayy it ssed ‘pioa Jo doo; fig e jayiatio) jo )i

“snouajsiw &)fuikjs)
S Ing|‘op o} Ase3 “jouy adod jeaifj Ajge|jiasly

=

aoﬂn s3epy af :J..o

| | - doo7 s18ey arqIpoasug 3L bz

, Jaddojs g
ainbi4 ay) s1 ‘pauajybyy
Ajjeas uaaqg Buiaey saye
afun o} Jajsea pue ‘aid
-Wiis se noge jsnl jng
‘g abed uo paguasap
‘Jouy puBYIAD B} SI
Isaduns au) -jods by
40 puly awos ybnosyy
Guiddyys wouy ados ayy
daay o 40 ‘jods e yew
0] paufiisap ‘ados ayy
up sdwnj veyy aiow Bug
-ylou ase syouy addo)g

adddess g 2anSig oy €z

Paysiu ‘roddolg g sing

B~ TT



Fun with Commando

TOGGLE A NUMBER OF COMMANDO
_ ROPES TOGETHER FOR CLIMBING A
CLIFF OR ESCAPING FROM A BURN-
ING BUILDING., THE TOGGLES GIVE
A FOOTHOLD.

EYE SPLICE.
UNLAY THE RCPE AFEW
TURNS (A), THEN BRING
STRAND 2 OVER STRAND
C,UNPER B, AND OUT
BETWEEN STRANDS A o _ -

AND B (B).. T ¢ BRING STRAND | OVER STRAND B
AND TUCK IFUNDERSTRAND' A
(C). TUCK STRAND 3 UNDER
STRAND € (D). MAKE TWO OR
MORE ADDITIONAL TUCKS WITH
EACH STRAND AND TRIM OFF

ENDS .

- BOYS' LIFE 4» DECEMBER 1978

AP 1o



SHORT SPLICE

l“"\\‘\ . | 3 " :

-
3!

Shkownrio o
o kol P

pulled &?6{



: ' L,
HoLo '

SranoinGg 3
_ PIRT 1w
UNLAY THE LEFT Havo. A ® TUox
It ran

THE LAY oF THE
" STRANDS.

ToFP

10,

:fﬁ’m You, ANp

T THe (AvoF
| T4 STRAND inTe
" THB Tucy

HAVE MIOPLE
oF Tusre.lamf
"OWARDS You.

OPLN. STRANPS WITH <

:_.Pu.rﬁ«cf RS, TweK wirh

RH., MALING ALK TUWCKI
B 4 Faem R.Tob AND AWAY
FROM You.

Jucx stranp B
ANO TURN TUE WoRK

OVER.

UNDERSIDE VIEW.
OF Fig. 3. TwWIST
STRMD. C* so A5 Ta
TIGHTEN THE YARNS,

THEN LAY IT INTQ.YTS g Reo vE

STRAND C" N Miace,

) FIRST Rovwp os
faoy o B Tuckep,

TUCKS CoMPLETED.

W.YAN B CL.



Make bollom tripod on ils side. Then build second
tripod inside the first. When lashed together, erecl
with ropes and man power, Sink base of tripod 3 or
4 inches in the ground for stability, Add platform
either before or after raising.

This is a bridge lo build where regular crossings are lo be
made. Be sure 1o leave plenty of overlap on each end to add
rigidity to the whale siructure. If this is to be a permanent
bridge, it is suggested that it be bolied together after lashing
it up.

Is fun lo build and fun to use this bridge. especially on a
hot day when a lillle coopetalion will dump the passenger
into the cooling waters of the stream.

In pioneer days this simple lathe was used by selllers to turn
chair and table legs for furniture. It can be used in camp lo
make simple. camp comfiort items.



Where quy lines are used o support pioneering structures,
every precaution must be taken that they are secure. This
holdfast consists of a series of stakes, each faslened to the one
behind it lo keep the lops from pulling forward and out of
the ground.

This holdfast is almost immovable. A log is buried 2 feet
underground, and the guy line led al an angle up and
across another log on the surface. This puts the pull on the
buried log against the firm bank rather than against the soft
fill on top. -

In this adaptation, the log is held in place by a series of
stakes. Each stake is supported by an additional row of
stakes behind the log to keep the tops of the' first row from
pulling forward. Pressure on the log is distributed evenly
across many supporls,

Projects from:
Fun with Ropes and Spars by John Thurman

By permission of C. Arthur Pearson, London, publisher
Pioneering merit badge pamphlet

The two main upright spars musf be quite stout and
buried al their end to a depth of 12 to 18 inches. The
rest of the spars can be quite light. Obviously, this
fower needs strong gquy lines, fastened securely to
well-made holdfasts.

g\
e ) / '
1[_———93—5' o { %




Scout Program:

Dovetail Notches

TEXT AND PHOTOGRAPHS
~ BY TOM DWYER

Camp tables and racks for
tools, fire buckets, and
patrol flags, are easy
to make with dovetail
nofches. Craftsmen use
dovetail notches to build
cabinets and furniture. In
camp, the notches can
replace lashings that
always come loose.
They’re easy to make. All
“it takes is a saw, a
Scout knife, and some™
dead wood.
Use the saw to cut a notch
in the wood, as shown in
the pictures. Chip out the
center of the notch with
your knife. Shape another
branch to fit into the
notch. Your dovetail is
ready-to use. It works well
in dead wood, so there’s
no need to cut live trees.
If you make the notch sev-
-eral inches from the end
of the wood, it shouldn’t
split. But remember, soft
woods, like birch and pine,
split more easily than
hardwoods. So it often
pays to use the harder
woods when making
dovetail notches. «

BOYS' LIFE + AUGUST 1978
- B
e .



At INDOOR FLAG-
POLE REQU RES
ROUND LASHINGS
TO BIND STAVES
TOGETHER, AND
TRIPOD AND S5QUARE
LASHINGS TO MAKE
A TETRAHEDRON--
A STRUCTURE
WITH FOUR TRI-
ANGULAR 5iDES.

" Take up
Pioneering!”

id vou and vour patrol ever cross a
river on a bridue vou built vour-

selves?

o 3

THE TRANSPGORTER !S AN TASY

NAY TO CROSS A BROOK. PUSH
THE FIRST 5COUT ACROSS WiTH
A LONG POLE. PULL THE
LAST SCOUT OVER W|TH A
ROPE ATTACHED TO THE

OP

Did vou ever send a message
from a ~ignal tower vou helped put up’!

No? Then yvou've got some great
rhrills coming.

Proneering i< one of the grandest
Seeuting activities. The really big pio-
Neering proects require a tull troop, But
Youocan bedin by learning the skills
vou'll need at vour patrol meerings,

Forasrut. make an indoor flagpole.
It tses three of the tive lashings on page
SHhab voumr "RBoy Scout Handbook '
rovund. tripod and square. After thar,
e diagonad lashing and compete by
halt-patrol teams= in the chariot race

~hown on page 124 in vour “Patrol " z
Leader Handbook.™ & i @ B Q AHLOG RAFT |‘5_9§_ng:1’ .FOR
Then get outdoors, Assemble a trans- ® % 1\:"‘\*5\\ FUN ON A LAKE, ITS8 A LOG

porter for getting the whaole patrol dry- _x\’ < N_th"_ TNO DUTREQGERS' i
shod aeros< a hrook, learning shear , s "’l rAE ‘9.6;5 T'-{‘C"( ?ED i
Lishing w the process 11w large log is - & AT ‘-QE\EJR;N‘?L‘:‘JSMSCOJ‘AF‘;
avadabic, make a log raft but only if e T My T ' )
vour have life preservers on hand. :

Pivaeering is more than rope work, It
Al e res e Wee of axes and saws, So
SUT o LAVINET'S Permission to cut timhers
d s wvood ot in order 1o huild a lock
byvdae. Put it up first without lashings,
I'hen lash it for permanency.

With thege patrol projects behind
vou, vour Seouts will be ready for the
miore ambitious pioneering of vour
whole troop. & '

TrHE LOCK BRIDGE i5 A TRICKY PIONEERING
PROJECT WHEN MADE WiTHOUT _ASHINGS.
iF PUT TOGETHER CORRECTLY IT 5=40ULD
=Q.2 TAE NEZGAT OF ANY 2ATRO. AEMBER, TO
INC8H TRE 2R DGE, LASH T SECURELY.

BOYS' LIFE + SEPTEMBER 1982



